Offering Memorandum: Part II of Offering Document (Exhibit A to Form C)

Cytonics Corporation
658 W. Indiantown Road
Jupiter, FL 33458
https://cytonics.com/

Up to $3,261,728.90 in Series C Preferred Stock at $2.30
Minimum Target Amount: $9,998.10

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this offering unless you can afford to lose your
entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the issuer and the terms of the offering,
including the merits and risks involved. These securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state
securities commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed upon the accuracy or
adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any securities offered or the terms of the
offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or completeness of any offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
has not made an independent determination that these securities are exempt from registration.

In the event that we become a reporting company under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, we intend to take advantage of
the provisions that relate to “Emerging Growth Companies” under the JOBS Act of 2012, including electing to delay
compliance with certain new and revised accounting standards under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.



Company:

Company: Cytonics Corporation

Address: 658 W. Indiantown Road, Jupiter, FL 33458
State of Incorporation: FL

Date Incorporated: July 19, 2006

Terms:

Equity

Offering Minimum: $9,998.10 | 4,347 shares of Series C Preferred Stock
Offering Maximum: $3,261,728.90 | 1,418,143 shares of Series C Preferred Stock
Type of Security Offered: Series C Preferred Stock

Purchase Price of Security Offered: $2.30

Minimum Investment Amount (per investor): $499.10

*Maximum number of shares offered subject to adjustment for bonus shares. See Bonus info below.
Investment Incentives & Perks®"

Reservations Bonus | 10% Bonus Shares

Reservation Holders in the Testing the Waters Page will receive 10% bonus shares.

Loyalty Bonus | 100% Bonus Shares

As you are a previous investor, you are eligible for additional bonus shares.

Flash Perks

Flash Perk 1

Invest $5,000 in the first month and receive an additional 20% of your investment in bonus shares.

Flash Perk 2

Invest $5,000 in the first month and receive an additional 10% of your investment in bonus shares.
Combo/Avid Investor Perks

Early Bronze

Invest $2,000+ within the first two weeks and receive an additional 10% of your investment in bonus shares.
Early Silver

Invest $5,000+ within the first two weeks and receive an additional 15% of your investment in bonus shares.
Early Gold

Invest $10,000+ within the first two weeks and receive an additional 20% of your investment in bonus shares.
Amount-Based Perks

Bronze | $5,000+

Invest $5,000+ and receive an additional 5% of your investment in bonus shares.

Silver | $10,000+

Invest $10,000+ and receive an additional 10% of your investment in bonus shares + 1 hour call with Joey Bose, President,
and CEO.

Gold | $25,000+

Invest $25,000+ and receive an additional 15% of your investment in bonus shares + 1-hour call with Joey Bose, President
and CEO + complimentary conversation with Gaetano Scuderi, MD (Founder and board-certified orthopedic surgeon)
regarding any musculoskeletal ailments you or a loved one are suffering from.

Diamond | $50,000+



Invest $50,000+ and receive an additional 20% of your investment in bonus shares + 1-hour call with Joey Bose, President
and CEO + 1-hour call with CEO + complimentary conversation with Gaetano Scuderi, MD (Founder and board-certified
orthopedic surgeon) regarding any musculoskeletal ailments you or a loved one are suffering from + free APIC treatment
(our FDA-approved therapy for osteoarthritis).

Platinum | $100,000+

Invest $100,000+ and receive 25% of your investment in bonus shares + 1-hour call with Joey Bose, President and CEO + 1-
hour call with CEO + complimentary conversation with Gaetano Scuderi, MD (Founder and board-certified orthopedic
surgeon) regarding any musculoskeletal ailments you or a loved one are suffering from + free APIC treatment (our FDA-
approved therapy for osteoarthritis.

*In order to receive investment incentives beyond the issuance and ownership of the shares you purchased one must submit
a single investment in the same offering that meets the minimum perk requirement. Bonus shares from perks will not be
granted if an investor submits multiple investments that, when combined, meet the perk requirement. All perks and
investment incentives occur when the offering is completed.

Crowdfunding investments made through a self-directed IRA cannot receive non-bonus share perks and investment
incentives due to tax laws. The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) prohibits self-dealing transactions in which the investor
receives an immediate, personal financial gain on investments owned by their retirement account. As a result, an investor
must refuse those non-bonus share perks and investment incentives because they would be receiving a benefit from their
IRA account.

The 10% StartEngine O ‘B

Cytonics will offer 10% additional bonus shares for all investments that are committed by investors that are eligible for the
StartEngine Crowdfunding Inc. Owner's bonus.

This means eligible StartEngine shareholders will receive a 10% bonus for any shares they purchase in this offering. For
example, if you buy 100 shares of Series C Preferred Stock at $2.30 / share, you will receive 110 shares of Series C Preferred
Stock, meaning you'll own 110 shares for $230. Fractional shares will not be distributed and share bonuses will be
determined by rounding down to the nearest whole share.

This 10% Bonus is only valid during the investors eligibility period. Investors eligible for this bonus will also have priority if
they are on a waitlist to invest and the company surpasses its maximum funding goal. They will have the first opportunity to
invest should room in the offering become available if prior investments are canceled or fail.

Investors will receive the highest single bonus they are eligible for among the bonuses based on the amount invested and
time of offering elapsed (if any). Eligible investors will also receive the Owner’s Bonus as well as the Loyalty and/or
Reservations Bonus in addition to the aforementioned bonus.

The Company and its Business
Company Overview

Cytonics Corporation (*Cytonics” or the "Company’) is a biopharmaceutical company developing novel therapies for
osteoarthritis and other inflammatory diseases. Founded in 2006 by a board-certified orthopedic surgeon and prolific
researcher, the company is on a mission to disrupt the regenerative medicine field with its proprietary and innovative
biologic therapies for osteoarthritis.

If approved by the FDA, we believe Cytonics’ novel treatment for osteoarthritis, CYT-108, will be the first and only therapy
that targets the root cause of osteoarthritis. CYT-108 actually reverses the effects of the disease by repairing cartilage
damage and restoring joint health.

Business Model

We are an early-stage biotechnology research and development company with an FDA-approved therapy in the market. This
medical device, called the Autologous Protease Inhibitor Concentrate system (*APIC" for short), purifies out a therapeutic
blood protein called A2ZM. When injected into the joint, AZM inhibits the destructive enzymes that chew up the protective
cartilage, thereby promoting cartilage regeneration and encouraging joint restoration. Since 2015, APIC therapy has treated
over 8,000 patients and serves as clinical proof that A2M is an effective treatment for osteoarthritis. Now, we are leveraging
the power of A2M to create a "super A2M" - a genetically modified version of the naturally occurring blood protein that has
enhanced efficacy and global commercial potential.

Called "CYT-108," this lead drug candidate has been shown to be up to 4x more effective than the natural A2M in preclinical
studies and is on the verge of a first-in-human Phase 1 clinical trial. We dedicate all of our resources to the development of
CYT-108 and run a very lean operation (-70% of all investor dollars and revenue is spent on research and development).



Once we have clinical data in hand, we will be in an advantageous position to align with a strategic partner and/or license
the development rights to a larger pharmaceutical company. Our investors will realize a return on their investment when we
either (1) sell the entire company in a private acquisition, or (2) publicly list Cytonics’ stock ahead of a developmental
licensing agreement with a strategic partner.

Cytonics Corporation was initially organized as Gamma Spine, Inc., a Florida corporation on July 19, 2006, and changed its
name to Cytonics Corporation on April 20, 2007.

Competitors and Industry
Competitors

Large pharmaceutical companies have not been able to do what we’ve done because they have adopted a very narrow
approach to treating osteoarthritis (OA). Big Pharma has tried to imitate the successful discovery of a treatment for
rheumatoid arthritis (RA) by looking for a single cause of OA. They failed to realize that the cause of OA is multi-faceted
and cannot be distilled down to one root cause. Their attempts failed because they didn’t see the bigger picture, which is
that OA is much more complex and that a successful therapeutic would have to inhibit multiple targets instead of just one.
Fortunately, our lab has proven that A2M is a broad-spectrum inhibitor of all proteins that could potentially cause OA.

Another reason that Big Pharma hasn’t been able to develop a therapeutic like ours is that their focus has historically been
on developing small molecule drugs (think pills that come in a bottle) instead of biologic therapies (like our recombinant
A2ZM). By establishing a biologic treatment, we open ourselves up to potential fast-track status by the FDA, which would
bring our recombinant A2M drug to market much faster and at a significantly lower cost. Biologics have taken off in recent
years, and we are at the forefront of this innovation.

Industry

We have determined the size of the osteoarthritis (OA) market by looking at the current market for rheumatoid arthritis
(RA) treatments. Historically, rheumatoid arthritis was treated by anti-inflammatories and painkillers much like
osteoarthritis. These palliative measures were not adequate. Fortunately, researchers discovered that RA was caused by the
overproduction of a single protein called TNF-alpha. One of the researchers won a Nobel Prize for this discovery. Not long
after, drug companies developed a way to stop TNF-alpha via TNF-alpha Inhibitors. Three of the top ten selling drugs in the
world are TNF-alpha Inhibitors, with over $30 billion worth of worldwide sales last year.

We know that the incidence of OA is six times that of RA. Six times the current sales of TNFalpha Inhibitors equate to a
$180 billion market for any therapy that can treat OA like our A2ZM product does.

It is also important to consider that, unlike rheumatoid arthritis, osteoarthritis can also result from injury to the joint. Qur
estimate of $180 billion is conservative and the actual number is likely much more significant.

Current Stage and Roadmap
Current Stage
The company’s current IP Portfolio includes 22 issued US and international patents with 5 patents pending.

We are currently developing “CYT-108,” a novel biologic therapy for osteoarthritis. We also have an OA biomarker test
("FACT”) and medical device treatment treatment (“APIC”) in the market. Our licensing partner of the APIC device is
currently pursuing FDA approval for a modified APIC device called the “APIC Mini” (a more cost-effective solution for
smaller joints).

We have completed preclinical studies for our genetically modified A2M variant, “CYT-108,” and are ready for our first-in-
human Phase 1 clinical trial. Our Contract Manufacturing Organization, Goodwin Biotechnology, has purified our GMP-
grade CYT-108 for human clinical studies.

APIC, our Autologous Protease Inhibitor Concentrate (APIC) therapy, is FDA-approved and has been used to treat over
8,000 patients to date. It works by concentrating the naturally occurring, therapeutic A2M protein found in the bloodstream
and delivering this purified A2M into arthritic joints. We have licensed the manufacturing and distribution rights to two 3rd
parties manufacturers in the human and veterinary markets. It is also being used to treat racehorses with success.

FACT Diagnostic, or the Fibronectin-Aggrecan Test (“FACT”) is a diagnostic to measure the level of cartilage damage in
arthritic joints. This diagnostic is sold alongside the APIC therapy.

Future Roadmap

Cytonics is on the cusp of a Phase 1 clinical trial for our novel biologic drug candidate, CYT-108, as a treatment for
osteoarthritis of the knee. We have started the manufacturing process to produce a “GMP-grade” (Good Manufacturing
Practices) drug product, which will be ready in early December 2023 to deliver to the clinical trial sites. We have selected an
Australian CRO (Contract Manufacturing Organization) to manage the Phase 1 clinical trial, which will oversee two clinical



trial sites in the country. We anticipate initiating this first-in-human study in early 1Q24. The trial will involve a dosing
period of three months and a three-month follow-up, collecting safety and efficacy data along the six-month time course.
We expect preliminary results to be ready by early 4Q24. This dataset will be used to attract the interest of strategic partners
and potential acquirers. We expect to enter into a strategic partnership to fund the next valuation inflection, a Phase 2
clinical trial, which will determine the efficacy of CYT-108 as a treatment for OA of the knee in a large patient population
(hundreds of subjects) that is sufficiently powered to obtain statistically significant results. We expect that a positive Phase
2 dataset will lead to an exit in the form of (1) a licensing deal with a larger pharmaceutical company followed by an IPO, or
(2) a private sale of Cytonics’ entire intellectual property portfolio. Both of these strategies will allow shareholders to
liquidate their investments.

The Team

Officers and Directors

Name: Gaetano Scuderi

Gaetano Scuderi's current primary role is with Palm Beach Spine and Sport. Gaetano Scuderi currently services 10 hours per
week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Founder & Chairman of the Board (Full Time)
Dates of Service: July, 2006 - Present
Responsibilities: Dr. Scuderi is involved in shareholder relations, recruiting talent, providing expert medical advice,
and designing clinical studies. Dr. Scuderi does not receive salary compensation for this role.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Palm Beach Spine and Sport
Title: Orthopaedic Surgeon
Dates of Service: December, 2012 - Present
Responsibilities: Board-certified orthopaedic surgeon

Name: Joey Bose
Joey Bose's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: CEO & President
Dates of Service: May, 2018 - Present
Responsibilities: Mr. Bose is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the company, raising capital and managing
all of the employees and service providers in pursuance of the Phase 1 clinical study for CYT-108. Mr. Bose currently
receives salary compensation of $204K for this role with a $100K milestone bonus schedule and 434K Common Stock
Options.

Name: Phil LoGrasso
Phil LoGrasso's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Director (Part Time)
Dates of Service: December, 2020 - Present
Responsibilities: The business of Cytonics is managed under the direction of the Board. The Board selects and
provides advice and counsel to the Chief Executive Officer and generally oversees management. The Board reviews
and discusses the strategic direction of the Company and monitors the Company’s performance against goals the
Board has established with management. Dr. LoGrasso's expertise in biotech development from laboratory to
commercialization, and experience in the life sciences capital markets, provides Cytonics with valuable insight and
relationships needed to further its strategic drug development aims.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: GQG



Title: Analyst
Dates of Service: January, 2019 - July, 2023
Responsibilities: Analyse health care companies

Name: Tracy Goeken

Tracy Goeken's current primary role is with Linical. Tracy Goeken currently services 1 hours per week in their role with the
Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Director (Part Time)
Dates of Service: November, 2020 - Present
Responsibilities: The business of Cytonics is managed under the direction of the Board. The Board selects and
provides advice and counsel to the Chief Executive Officer and generally oversees management. The Board reviews
and discusses the strategic direction of the Company and monitors the Company’s performance against goals the
Board has established with management. Dr. Goeken’s experience managing clinical trials gives Cytonics the expertise
necessary to design and conduct Phase 1 and 2 studies. Tracy does not receive salary compensation for this role.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Aventusoft
Title: Medical Advisory Board Member
Dates of Service: December, 2019 - Present
Responsibilities: Provide medical advice and strategy to organization in an advisory capacity

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: BioFlorida
Title: Board of Directors
Dates of Service: March, 2022 - Present
Responsibilities: Provide strategic and operational oversight to BioFlorida

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Keiser University
Title: Advisory Board Member, Biomedical Sciences
Dates of Service: November, 2020 - December, 2021
Responsibilities: Provide strategic and operational support to the Biomedical Sciences educational division.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Linical
Title: Chief Medical Officer
Dates of Service: January, 2018 - Present
Responsibilities: Builds and maintains an “organizational culture” of Quality within the organization. Provides
strategic leadership and management to the organization that mirrors the adopted mission and core value of the
company.

Name: Gordon Ramseier

Gordon Ramseier's current primary role is with BCI Life Science Advisors. Gordon Ramseier currently services 1 hours per
week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Director (Part Time)
Dates of Service: March, 2009 - Present
Responsibilities: The business of Cytonics is managed under the direction of the Board. The Board selects and
provides advice and counsel to the Chief Executive Officer and generally oversees management. The Board reviews
and discusses the strategic direction of the Company and monitors the Company’s performance against goals the
Board has established with management. Mr. Ramseier’s experience as a biotech consultant provides Cytonics with
the experience necessary to identify licensing opportunities for its drug assets.



Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: BCI Life Science Advisors
Title: President
Dates of Service: January, 2019 - Present
Responsibilities: Provide consulting services on a part time basis

Risk Factors

The SEC requires the company to identify risks that are specific to its business and its financial condition. The company is
still subject to all the same risks that all companies in its business, and all companies in the economy, are exposed to. These
include risks relating to economic downturns, political and economic events and technological developments (such as
hacking and the ability to prevent hacking). Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently more risky than more
developed companies. You should consider general risks as well as specific risks when deciding whether to invest.

These are the risks that relate to the Company:

Uncertain Risk

An investment in the Company (also referred to as “we”, “us”, “our”, or the “Company”) involves a high degree of risk and
should only be considered by those who can afford the loss of their entire investment. Furthermore, the purchase of any
securities should only be undertaken by persons whose financial resources are sufficient to enable them to indefinitely
retain an illiquid investment. Each investor in the Company should research thoroughly any offering before making an
investment decision and consider all of the information provided regarding the Company as well as the following risk
factors, in addition to the other information in the Company’s Form C. The following risk factors are not intended, and shall
not be deemed to be, a complete description of the commercial, financial, and other risks inherent in the investment in the
Company.

Our business projections are only projections

There can be no assurance that the Company will meet its projections. There can be no assurance that the Company will be
able to find sufficient demand for its product or service, that people think it's a better option than a competing product or
service, or that we will be able to provide a product or service at a level that allows the Company to generate revenue, make
a profit, or grow the business.

Any valuation is difficult to assess

The valuation for the offering was established by the Company. Unlike listed companies that are independently valued
through market-driven stock prices, the valuation of private companies, especially startups, is difficult to assess, may not be
exact, and you may risk overpaying for your investment.

The transferability of the Securities you are buying is limited

We anticipate needing access to credit in order to support our working capital requirements as we grow. The current market
environment may make it difficult for us to obtain credit on favorable terms. If we cannot obtain credit when we need it, we
could be forced to raise additional equity capital, modify our growth plans, or take some other action that could adversely
affect your investment. Issuing more equity may require bringing on additional investors. Securing these additional
investors could require pricing our equity below its current price. If so, your investment could lose value as a result of this
additional dilution. In addition, even if the equity is not priced lower, your ownership percentage would be decreased with
the addition of more investors. If we are unable to find additional investors willing to provide capital, then it is possible that
we will choose to cease our sales or revenue-generating activity. In that case, the only asset remaining to generate a return
on your investment could be our intellectual property. Even if we are not forced to cease our sales activity, the
unavailability of credit could result in the Company performing below expectations, which could adversely impact the value
of your investment.

Your investment could be illiquid for a long time

You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the 12 months following your investment,
there will be restrictions on how you can resell the securities you receive. More importantly, there are limited established
markets for these securities. As a result, if you decide to sell these securities in the future, you may not be able to find a
buyer. The Company may be acquired by an existing player in the same or a similar industry. However, that may never
happen or it may happen at a price that results in you losing money on this investment.

Terms of subsequent financings may adversely impact your investment

We will likely need to engage in common equity, debt, or preferred stock financings in the future, which may reduce the
value of your investment in the Company. Interest on debt securities could increase costs and negatively impact operating
results. Preferred stock could be issued in series from time to time with such designation, rights, preferences, and
limitations as needed to raise capital. The terms of preferred stock could be more advantageous to those investors than to
the holders of common stock or other securities. In addition, if we need to raise more equity capital from the sale of



Common Stock, institutional or other investors may negotiate terms that are likely to be more favorable than the terms of
your investment, and possibly a lower purchase price per security.

Management's Discretion as to Use of Proceeds

Our success will be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of our management team with respect to the
application and allocation of the proceeds of this offering. The Use of Proceeds described below is an estimate based on our
current business plan. We, however, may find it necessary or advisable to re-allocate portions of the net proceeds reserved
for one category to another, and we will have broad discretion in doing so.

Projections: Forward Looking Information

Any projections or forward-looking statements regarding our anticipated financial or operational performance are
hypothetical and are based on management's best estimate of the probable results of our operations and may not have been
reviewed by our independent accountants. These projections are based on assumptions that management believes are
reasonable. Some assumptions invariably will not materialize due to unanticipated events and circumstances beyond
management's control. Therefore, actual results of operations will vary from such projections, and such variances may be
material. Any projected results cannot be guaranteed.

The amount raised in this offering may include investments from company insiders or immediate family members
Officers, directors, executives, and existing owners with a controlling stake in the Company (or their immediate family
members) may make investments in this offering. Any such investments will be included in the raised amount reflected on
the campaign page.

Some of our products are still in the prototype phase and might never be operational products

Developing new products and technologies can be a complex process that involves significant risks and uncertainties.
Technical challenges, design flaws, manufacturing defects, and regulatory hurdles can all impact the success of a product or
service. It is possible that there may never be an operational product or that the product may never be used to engage in
transactions. It is possible that the failure to release the product is the result of a change in business model upon the
Company’s making a determination that the business model, or some other factor, will not be in the best interest of the
Company and its stockholders.

Supply Chain and Logistics Risks

The availability of raw materials, transportation costs, and supply chain disruptions can all impact the ability to
manufacture and distribute products or services, leading to lost revenue or increased costs. Products or services that are not
available when customers need them can lead to lost sales or damage to the brand's reputation.

Quality and Safety of our Product and Service

The quality of a product or service can vary depending on the manufacturer or provider. Poor quality can result in customer
dissatisfaction, returns, and lost revenue. Furthermore, products or services that are not safe can cause harm to customers
and result in liability for the manufacturer or provider. Safety issues can arise from design flaws, manufacturing defects, or
improper use.

Minority Holder; Securities with No Voting Rights

The Series C Preferred Stock that an investor is buying has no voting rights attached to them. This means that you will have
no rights in dictating how the Company will be run. You are trusting in management's discretion in making good business
decisions that will grow your investments. Furthermore, in the event of a liquidation of our company, you will only be paid
out if there is any cash remaining after all of the creditors of our company have been paid out.

You are trusting that management will make the best decision for the company
You are trusting in management's discretion. You are buying securities as a minority holder, and therefore must trust the
management of the Company to make good business decisions that grow your investment.

This offering involves “rolling closings,” which may mean that earlier investors may not have the benefit of information
that later investors have.

Once we meet our target amount for this offering, we may request that StartEngine instruct the escrow agent to disburse
offering funds to us. At that point, investors whose subscription agreements have been accepted will become our investors.
All early-stage companies are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and it is not uncommon for material changes
to be made to the offering terms, or to companies’ businesses, plans, or prospects, sometimes with little or no notice. When
such changes happen during the course of an offering, we must file an amendment to our Form C with the SEC, and
investors whose subscriptions have not yet been accepted will have the right to withdraw their subscriptions and get their
money back. Investors whose subscriptions have already been accepted, however, will already be our investors and will have
no such right.

Our new product could fail to achieve the sales projections we expect

Our growth projections are based on the assumption that with an increased advertising and marketing budget, our products
will be able to gain traction in the marketplace at a faster rate than our current products have. It is possible that our new
products will fail to gain market acceptance for any number of reasons. If the new products fail to achieve significant sales
and acceptance in the marketplace, this could materially and adversely impact the value of your investment.



We have existing patents that we might not be able to protect properly

One of the Company’'s most valuable assets is its intellectual property. The company’s current IP Portfolio includes 22
issued US and international patents with 5 patents pending. We believe one of the most valuable components of the
Company is our intellectual property portfolio. Due to the value, competitors may misappropriate or violate the rights
owned by the Company. The Company intends to continue to protect its intellectual property portfolio from such
violations. It is important to note that unforeseeable costs associated with such practices may invade the capital of the
Company.

We have pending patent approval’s that might be vulnerable

One of the Company’s most valuable assets is its intellectual property. The Company’s intellectual property such as patents,
trademarks, copyrights, Internet domain names, and trade secrets may not be registered with the proper authorities. We
believe one of the most valuable components of the Company is our intellectual property portfolio. Due to the value,
competitors may misappropriate or violate the rights owned by the Company. The Company intends to continue to protect
its intellectual property portfolio from such violations. It is important to note that unforeseeable costs associated with such
practices may invade the capital of the Company due to its unregistered intellectual property.

Our trademarks, copyrights and other intellectual property could be unenforceable or ineffective

Intellectual property is a complex field of law in which few things are certain. It is possible that competitors will be able to
design around our intellectual property, find prior art to invalidate it, or render the patents unenforceable through some
other mechanism. If competitors are able to bypass our trademark and copyright protection without obtaining a sublicense,
it is likely that the Company’s value will be materially and adversely impacted. This could also impair the Company’s ability
to compete in the marketplace. Moreover, if our trademarks and copyrights are deemed unenforceable, the Company will
almost certainly lose any potential revenue it might be able to raise by entering into sublicenses. This would cut off a
significant potential revenue stream for the Company.

The cost of enforcing our trademarks and copyrights could prevent us from enforcing them

Trademark and copyright litigation has become extremely expensive. Even if we believe that a competitor is infringing on
one or more of our trademarks or copyrights, we might choose not to file suit because we lack the cash to successfully
prosecute a multi-year litigation with an uncertain outcome; or because we believe that the cost of enforcing our
trademark(s) or copyright(s) outweighs the value of winning the suit in light of the risks and consequences of losing it; or
for some other reason. Choosing not to enforce our trademark(s) or copyright(s) could have adverse consequences for the
Company, including undermining the credibility of our intellectual property, reducing our ability to enter into sublicenses,
and weakening our attempts to prevent competitors from entering the market. As a result, if we are unable to enforce our
trademark(s) or copyright(s) because of the cost of enforcement, your investment in the Company could be significantly and
adversely affected.

The loss of one or more of our key personnel, or our failure to attract and retain other highly qualified personnel in the
future, could harm our business

Our business depends on our ability to attract, retain, and develop highly skilled and qualified employees. As we grow, we
will need to continue to attract and hire additional employees in various areas, including sales, marketing, design,
development, operations, finance, legal, and human resources. However, we may face competition for qualified candidates,
and we cannot guarantee that we will be successful in recruiting or retaining suitable employees. Additionally, if we make
hiring mistakes or fail to develop and train our employees adequately, it could have a negative impact on our business,
financial condition, or operating results. We may also need to compete with other companies in our industry for highly
skilled and qualified employees. If we are unable to attract and retain the right talent, it may impact our ability to execute
our business plan successfully, which could adversely affect the value of your investment. Furthermore, the economic
environment may affect our ability to hire qualified candidates, and we cannot predict whether we will be able to find the
right employees when we need them. This would likely adversely impact the value of your investment.

Our ability to sell our product or service is dependent on outside government regulation which can be subject to change at
any time

Our ability to sell our products is subject to various government regulations, including but not limited to, regulations
related to the manufacturing, labeling, distribution, and sale of our products. Changes in these regulations, or the
enactment of new regulations, could impact our ability to sell our products or increase our compliance costs. Furthermore,
the regulatory landscape is subject to regular change, and we may face challenges in adapting to such changes, which could
adversely affect our business, financial condition, or operating results. In addition to government regulations, we may also
be subject to other laws and regulations related to our products, including intellectual property laws, data privacy laws, and
consumer protection laws. Non-compliance with these laws and regulations could result in legal and financial liabilities,
reputational damage, and regulatory fines and penalties. It is also possible that changes in public perception or cultural
norms regarding our products may impact demand for our products, which could adversely affect our business and financial
performance, which may adversely affect your investment.

We rely on third parties to provide services essential to the success of our business

Our business relies on a variety of third-party vendors and service providers, including but not limited to manufacturers,
shippers, accountants, lawyers, public relations firms, advertisers, retailers, and distributors. Our ability to maintain high-
quality operations and services depends on these third-party vendors and service providers, and any failure or delay in their



performance could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operating results. We may have
limited control over the actions of these third-party vendors and service providers, and they may be subject to their own
operational, financial, and reputational risks. We may also be subject to contractual or legal limitations in our ability to
terminate relationships with these vendors or service providers or seek legal recourse for their actions. Additionally, we may
face challenges in finding suitable replacements for these vendors and service providers, which could cause delays or
disruptions to our operations. The loss of key or other critical vendors and service providers could materially and adversely
affect our business, financial condition, and operating results, and as a result, your investment could be adversely impacted
by our reliance on these third-party vendors and service providers.

Some of the Company’s products are ready for commercial sales, but there is no certainty that these products will be
successfully marketed

The Company’s ability to develop and commercialize products based on their proprietary technology will depend on their
ability to develop products internally and may depend upon key outside partnerships that may not materialize on a timely
basis or at all. There is no certainty that products employing their technology will be successfully marketed or licensed. The
products and technologies may prove to be unworkable or economically unfeasible. Many medical and pharmaceutical
products require long development and testing periods and large capital investments with no certainty that the product will
be successfully marketed.

The Company will be dependent upon third party suppliers and manufacturers

Because of the Company's limited resources, they will be dependent upon other companies to conduct research, supply key
components and to manufacture our products. The Company's ability to develop and maintain relationships with these
suppliers, as well as their ability to develop additional sources for key components and manufacturing capabilities, may be
important for long-term success. The Company cannot assure you that they will be able to establish or maintain
relationships with third party suppliers and manufacturers that may be necessary for the execution of their business plan.

The Company may not be able to obtain the regulatory approvals necessary to market our products
Further, if the Company fails to comply with the extensive governmental regulations that affect their business, they could
be subject to penalties and could be precluded from marketing their products.

The development and commercialization of the Company’s products and services are highly competitive

It faces competition with respect to any products and services that it may seek to develop or commercialize in the future. Its
competitors include major companies worldwide. The Biopharmaceutical market is an emerging industry where new
competitors are entering the market frequently. Many of the Company’s competitors have significantly greater financial,
technical, and human resources and may have superior expertise in research and development and marketing approved
services and thus may be better equipped than the Company to develop and commercialize services. These competitors also
compete with the Company in recruiting and retaining qualified personnel and acquiring technologies. Smaller or early
stage companies may also prove to be significant competitors, particularly through collaborative arrangements with large
and established companies. Accordingly, the Company’s competitors may commercialize products more rapidly or
effectively than the Company is able to, which would adversely affect its competitive position, the likelihood that its
services will achieve initial market acceptance and its ability to generate meaningful additional revenues from its products
and services.

The Company may not be able to obtain the regulatory approvals necessary to market our products

Further, if the Company fails to comply with the extensive governmental regulations that affect their business, they could
be subject to penalties and could be precluded from marketing their products. The Company's research and development
activities and the manufacturing, labeling, distribution and marketing of products will be subject to regulation by numerous
governmental agencies, including but not limited to the FDA, the State of Florida, HHS, and CMS. The United States Food
and Drug Administration (“FDA”) imposes mandatory procedures and standards for the conduct of clinical trials and the
production and marketing of products for diagnostic and human therapeutic use. The Company's products are subject to
approvals or clearances prior to marketing for commercial use. The process of obtaining necessary approvals or clearances
can take years and is expensive and full of uncertainties. The inability to obtain required regulatory approvals on a timely or
acceptable basis could have a material adverse effect upon the business, prospects, financial condition and results of
operations. Further, approvals or clearances may place substantial restrictions on the indications for which the Company's
products may be marketed or the persons to whom they may be marketed. To gain approval for the use of a product for
clinical indications other than those for which the product was initially approved or cleared or for significant changes to the
product, further studies, including clinical trials and approvals, may be required. The Company believes that the most
significant risk relates to the regulatory classification of certain of our products. In the filing of each application, the
Company makes a legal judgment about the appropriate form and content of the application. If the regulator disagrees with
their judgment in any particular case and, for example, requires them to file a pre-market approval application rather than
allowing them to market for approved uses while we seek broader approvals, or requires extensive additional clinical data,
the time and expense required to obtain the required approval might be significantly increased or the approval might not be
granted. Approved products will be subject to continuing regulatory requirements relating to quality control and quality
assurance, maintenance of records, reporting of adverse events, documentation, and labeling and promotion of medical
devices. The regulatory authorities require that the products be manufactured according to rigorous standards. These
regulatory requirements may significantly increase the production or purchasing costs above currently expected levels and
may even prevent the Company from making their products in quantities sufficient to meet market demand. If the Company



changes the approved manufacturing process, regulators may require a new approval before that process may be used.
Failure to develop manufacturing capability may mean that even if they develop promising new products, they may not be
able to produce them profitably, as a result of delays and additional capital investment costs. Manufacturing facilities are
also subject to inspections by or under the authority of the relevant regulator. In addition, failure to comply with applicable
regulatory requirements could subject the Company to enforcement action, including product seizures, recalls, withdrawal
of clearances or approvals, restrictions on or injunctions against marketing the product or products based on the
technology, and civil and criminal penalties.

The Company's existing investors have not waived their pre-emptive rights and may plan on exercising those rights

The pre-emptive right entitles those investors to participate in this securities issuance on a pro rata basis. If those investors
choose to exercise their pre-emptive right, it could dilute shareholders in this round. This dilution could reduce the
economic value of the investment, the relative ownership resulting from the investment, or both.

A majority of the Company is owned by a small number of owners

Prior to the Offering the Company’s current owners of 20% or more beneficially own up to 25.2% of the Company. Subject to
any fiduciary duties owed to our other owners or investors under Florida law, these owners may be able to exercise
significant influence over matters requiring owner approval, including the election of directors or managers and approval of
significant Company transactions, and will have significant control over the Company’s management and policies. Some of
these persons may have interests that are different from yours. For example, these owners may support proposals and
actions with which you may disagree. The concentration of ownership could delay or prevent a change in control of the
Company or otherwise discourage a potential acquirer from attempting to obtain control of the Company, which in turn
could reduce the price potential investors are willing to pay for the Company. In addition, these owners could use their
voting influence to maintain the Company's existing management, delay or prevent changes in control of the Company, or
support or reject other management and board proposals that are subject to owner approval.

There can be no assurance that we will ever provide liquidity to Purchasers through either a sale of the Company or a
registration of the Securities

There can be no assurance that any form of merger, combination, or sale of the Company will take place, or that any merger,
combination, or sale would provide liquidity for Purchasers. Furthermore, we may be unable to register the Securities for
resale by Purchasers for legal, commercial, regulatory, market-related or other reasons. In the event that we are unable to
effect a registration, Purchasers could be unable to sell their Securities unless an exemption from registration is available.

The Company does not anticipate paying any cash dividends for the foreseeable future.

The Company currently intends to retain future earnings, if any, for the foreseeable future, to repay indebtedness and to
support its business. The Company does not intend in the foreseeable future to pay any dividends to holders of its Series C
Preferred Stock.

We may not have enough capital as needed and may be required to raise more capital

We anticipate needing access to credit in order to support our working capital requirements as we grow. The current market
environment may make it difficult for us to obtain credit on favorable terms. If we cannot obtain credit when we need it, we
could be forced to raise additional equity capital, modify our growth plans, or take some other action that could adversely
affect your investment. Issuing more equity may require bringing on additional investors. Securing these additional
investors could require pricing our equity below its current price. If so, your investment could lose value as a result of this
additional dilution. In addition, even if the equity is not priced lower, your ownership percentage would be decreased with
the addition of more investors. If we are unable to find additional investors willing to provide capital, then it is possible that
we will choose to cease our sales or revenue-generating activity. In that case, the only asset remaining to generate a return
on your investment could be our intellectual property. Even if we are not forced to cease our sales activity, the
unavailability of credit could result in the Company performing below expectations, which could adversely impact the value
of your investment.



Ownership and Capital Structure; Rights of the Securities

Ownership
The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of the company’s holders of 20% or more of any
class of voting securities as of the date of this Offering Statement filing.

Stockholder Name[Number of Securities Owned|Type of Security Owned|Percentage|
Gaetano Scuderi 6,453,384 Common Stock 22.4%

The Company's Securities

The Company has authorized Common Stock, Initial Preferred Stock, Series A Preferred Stock, Series B Preferred Stock, and
Series C Preferred Stock . As part of the Regulation Crowdfunding raise, the Company will be offering up to 1,418,143 of
Series C Preferred Stock .

Common Stock

The amount of security authorized is 50,000,000 with a total of 16,528,698 outstanding.
Voting Rights

One Vote Per Share.
Material Rights

In 2018, the Company effected a 2-1 forward stock split of common stock and common stock equivalents.
Initial Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 150,000 with a total of 150,000 outstanding.
Voting Rights

One vote per share of Common Stock
Material Rights

One share of Initial Preferred Stock is convertible into 1.2 shares of Common Stock. As a result of the forward stock split and
conversion ratio, there are 360,000 common stock equivalents generated from the conversion of Initial Preferred Stock, on a
fully-diluted basis.

Dividends: The holders of Initial Preferred Stock shall participate in all dividendsand other distributions that are declared
and paid on Common Stock on the same basis as if each share of Initial Preferred Stock has been converted into Common
Stock.

Liquidation: Upon (i) any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, whether voluntary or involuntary, (ii) a
"Sale of the Corporation” (as defined below) or (ili) a reorganization of the Corporation required by any court or
administrative body in order ot comply with any provision of law each of the events referred to ni clauses (i), (ii) and (iii)
being referred to as a "Liquidation Event"), each holder of Initial Preferred Stock shall be entitled, after provision for the
payment of the Corporation's debts and other liabilities and in parity with the holders of Series A Preferred Stock and in
preference to, and, before any amount or property shall be paid or distributed on account of any “Junior Securities” (as
defined below), to be paid ni full ni cash with respect ot each share of Initial Preferred Stock out of the assets of the
Corporation available for distribution to shareholders, an amount equal to the “Initial Purchase Price".

Conversion: Holders of Initial Preferred Stock have the right to voluntarily convert their shares into Common Stock at any
time without additional cost, at a conversion ratio of one to 1.2, meaning each share of Initial Preferred Stock converts into
1.2 shares of Common Stock, with adjustments to this ratio possible in certain circumstances.

Voting: Holders of Initial Preferred Stock have the right to vote with Common Stock holders as a single class on all matters
presented to shareholders. The number of votes per share of Initial Preferred Stock is equivalent to the maximum number of
Common Stock shares it can be converted into, with fractional votes rounded to the nearest whole number and no
cumulative voting allowed.

For additional information regarding these rights please refer to the Company’'s Amended and Restated Articles of
Incorporation attached as Exhibit F.

Series A Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 1,500,000 with a total of 1,127,380 outstanding.



Voting Rights
One vote per share of Common Stock.
Material Rights

One share of Series A Preferred Stock converts into one share of Common Stock. As a result of the forward stock split and
conversion ratio, there are 1,127,380 common stock equivalents generated from the conversion of Series A Preferred Stock,
on a fully-diluted basis.

Dividends: Holders of Series A Preferred Stock participate in dividends and distributions declared on Common Stock as if
their shares were converted into Common Stock, except for stock dividends like stock splits or selective repurchases.

Liquidation Preference: In a liquidation event, Series A Preferred Stock holders are entitled to be paid an amount equal to
the "Series A Purchase Price” in parity with Initial Preferred Stock holders, after debts and liabilities are settled. If funds are
insufficient for full payment, they are distributed proportionally between Initial and Series A Preferred Stock holders.

Voluntary Conversion: Series A Preferred Stock holders can voluntarily convert their stock into Common Stock, with the
conversion being effective upon delivery of a conversion notice and surrender of the stock certificates.

Automatic Conversion: Series A Preferred Stock automatically converts into Common Stock upon a Qualified Public
Offering, with accrued unpaid cash dividends being canceled.

Fractional Shares: No fractional shares are issued upon conversion. Fractional interests are aggregated, and any fractional
share is compensated with cash equivalent to its market value.

For additional information regarding these rights please refer to the Company’'s Amended and Restated Articles of
Incorporation attached as Exhibit F.

Series B Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 6,000,000 with a total of 5,149,730 outstanding.
Voting Rights

One vote per share of Common Stock.
Material Rights

One share of Series B Preferred Stock converts into one share of Common Stock. As a result of the forward stock split and
conversion ratio, there are 5,149,730 common stock equivalents generated from the conversion of Series B Preferred Stock,
on a fully-diluted basis.

Dividends: Series B Preferred Stockholders are entitled to participate in all dividends and distributions declared on Common
Stock, as if their shares were converted into Common Stock, excluding stock dividends like stock splits or selective
repurchases.

Liquidation Preference: In a liquidation event, after satisfying debts and liabilities and the preferential payments to Initial
and Series A Preferred Stock, Series B Preferred Stockholders are entitled to be paid the "Series B Purchase Price” in full
before any Junior Securities. If insufficient funds, payments are made ratably among Series B holders.

Voluntary Conversion: Series B Preferred Stockholders can elect to convert their stock into Common Stock. Conversion is
effective upon delivery of a conversion notice and surrender of stock certificates.

Automatic Conversion: Series B Preferred Stock automatically converts into Common Stock upon a Qualified Public
Offering, with all accrued but unpaid cash dividends being canceled.

Fractional Shares: No fractional shares are issued upon conversion. Fractional interests are aggregated and compensated in
cash equivalent to their market value.

For additional information regarding these rights please refer to the Company’'s Amended and Restated Articles of
Incorporation attached as Exhibit F.

Series C Preferred Stock
The amount of security authorized is 10,000,000 with a total of 5,439,444 outstanding.
Voting Rights

One vote per share of Common Stock



Material Rights

The total number of shares outstanding on a fully diluted basis, 28,605,252 shares, includes 16,528,698 shares of Common
Stock (which includes 10,201,388 shares of Common Stock and 6,327,310 shares of issued stock options), 360,000 shares of
Initial Preferred Stock, 1,127,380 shares of Series A Preferred Stock, 5,149,730 shares of Series B Preferred Stock, and
5,439,444 shares of Series C Preferred Stock.

One share of Series C Preferred converts into one share of Common Stock. There are 5,439,444 Common Stock equivalents
generated from the conversion of Series C Preferred Shares, on a fully-diluted basis.

Dividends: Holders of Series C Preferred Stock participate in dividends on the same basis as if they were Common Stock,
except for stock dividends from splits or non-pro-rata repurchases.

Liquidation Preference: In a Liquidation Event, Series C Preferred Stockholders are paid in full in cash before any Junior
Securities.

If funds are insufficient, Series C, A, and Initial Preferred Stockholders are paid proportionally.

After satisfying Preferred Stockholders, any remaining net assets are distributed ratably among all classes of stock, treating
each Preferred Stock as convertible into Common Stock.

Conversion into Common Stock: Series C Preferred Stock can be voluntarily converted to Common Stock on a one-to-one
ratio.

On voluntary conversion, the holder must notify the Corporation and surrender the stock certificates or provide an Affidavit
of Loss.

The Corporation issues Common Stock certificates without charge for the converted shares.
Automatic conversion to Common Stock occurs upon a Qualified Public Offering, with all accrued dividends canceled.

No fractional shares are issued upon conversion; instead, cash is paid for the fair market value of fractions.

These preferences do not limit the right to convert Series C Preferred Stock to Common Stock at any time.
A Qualified Public Offering or certain other events can trigger automatic conversion to Common Stock.

More than 50% of Series C Preferred Stockholders can waive liquidation preferences for a sale or reorganization of the
Corporation.

Transfer of Shares. Transfers of shares of capital stock of the Corporation shall be made only on the books of the
Corporation.

Restriction on Transfer of Stock. A written restriction on the transfer or registration of transfer of capital stock of the
Corporation, if permitted by the provisions of the Act, and noted conspicuously on the certificate representing such capital
stock, may be enforced against the holder of the restricted capital stock of any successor or transferee of the holder
including an executor, administrator, trustee, guardian or other fiduciary entrusted with like responsibility for the person or
estate of the holder.

For additional information regarding these rights please refer to the Company's Amended and Restated Articles of
Incorporation attached as Exhibit F.

What it means to be a minority holder

As a minority holder of Series C Preferred Stock of the company, you will have limited rights in regards to the corporate
actions of the company, including additional issuances of securities, company repurchases of securities, a sale of the
company or its significant assets, or company transactions with related parties. Further, investors in this offering may have
rights less than those of other investors, and will have limited influence on the corporate actions of the company.

Dilution

Investors should understand the potential for dilution. The investor’s stake in a company could be diluted due to the
company issuing additional shares. In other words, when the company issues more shares, the percentage of the company
that you own will go down, even though the value of the company may go up. You will own a smaller piece of a larger
company. This increase in number of shares outstanding could result from a stock offering (such as an initial public
offering, another crowdfunding round, a venture capital round, angel investment), employees exercising stock options, or



by conversion of certain instruments (e.g. convertible bonds, preferred shares or warrants) into stock. If the company
decides to issue more shares, an investor could experience value dilution, with each share being worth less than before, and
control dilution, with the total percentage an investor owns being less than before. There may also be earnings dilution,
with a reduction in the amount earned per share (though this typically occurs only if the company offers dividends, and
most early stage companies are unlikely to offer dividends, preferring to invest any earnings into the company).

Transferability of securities

For a year, the securities can only be resold:
e InanlPO;
e To the company;
e To an accredited investor; and

e Toamember of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created
for the benefit of a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or divorce
of the purchaser or other similar circumstance.

Recent Offerings of Securities

We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three years:

e Name: Series C Preferred Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $1,738,265.00
Number of Securities Sold: 737,334
Use of proceeds: Phase 1 clinical trial for osteoarthritis
Date: April 15, 2023
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation CF

e Name: Series C Preferred Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $2,843,709.00
Number of Securities Sold: 1,393,005
Use of proceeds: Phase 1 clinical trial for osteoarthritis.
Date: October 20, 2022
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation CF

& Name: Series C Preferred Shares
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $650,000.00
Number of Securities Sold: 282,609
Use of proceeds: GMP drug manufacturing.
Date: October 26, 2022
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(c)

e Name: Series C Preferred Shares
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $4,729,700.00
Number of Securities Sold: 2,364,850
Use of proceeds: Preclinical studies
Date: June 29, 2021
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation A+

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Financial Condition

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of our operations together with
our financial statements and related notes appearing at the end of this Offering Memorandum. This discussion contains
forward-looking statements reflecting our current expectations that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results and the
timing of events may differ materially from those contained in these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors,
including those discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Offering Memorandum.



Results of Operations

Circumstances which led to the performance of financial statements:

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the realization of
assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. During the year ended December 31, 2022, the
Company sustained a net loss of approximately $2.84 million and had net cash used in operations of approximately $2.49
million. The vast majority of these expenses are related to the research and development of the Company's experimental
drug candidate, CYT-108, as a treatment for osteoarthritis.

R&D expense 2022: $2,057,466
R&D expense 2021: $2,205,358
R&D expenses remained flat.

The Company recognizes revenue from minimum guaranteed royalties (MGRs) from the sale of their autologous APIC
medical device when they become due under the terms of the contract and the consideration has been received or is
expected to be received. The Company also generates revenues from running diagnostic tests.

Revenue 2022: $405,000
Revenue 2021: $310,000
Revenues increased in 2022 due to an increase in APIC sales.

To date, the Company has funded its research and development and operating activities through sales of debt and equity
securities, grant funding, and licenses of its products. The Company intends to continue to seek funding through
investments by strategic partners and from private and public sales of securities until such a time that the Company
generates sufficient cash flow to sustain its operations.

Historical results and cash flows:

The Company is currently in the research and development stage of its biopharmaceutical drug development activities and
is revenue-generating for its medical device and diagnostic business. We are of the opinion the historical cash flows will not
be indicative of the revenue and cash flows expected for the future because biopharmaceutical development is very capital-
intensive and the month-to-month variance in expenses is high. Past cash was primarily generated through equity
investments and from royalties generated by medical device sales. Our goal is to develop our lead drug candidate for
osteoarthritis, CYT-108, through Phase 1 and 2 clinical trials before selling the company’s intellectual property portfolio to
a large pharmaceutical company or licensing the development and sales rights to a partner. The cost of a Phase 2 clinical
trial is significantly more expensive than a Phase 1, and we expect to align with a strategic partner to co-sponsor the study.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

What capital resources are currently available to the Company? (Cash on hand, existing lines of credit, shareholder loans,
etc...)

As of September 2023, the Company has capital resources available in the form of approximately $1.3M cash on hand. The
Company has no outstanding long-term debt nor significant lines of credit.

How do the funds of this campaign factor into your financial resources? (Are these funds critical to your company
operations? Or do you have other funds or capital resources available?)

We believe the funds of this campaign are critical to our company operations. These funds are required to support the first-
in-human Phase 1 clinical trial of our biologic drug candidate for osteoarthritis.

Are the funds from this campaign necessary to the viability of the company? (Of the total funds that your company has, how
much of that will be made up of funds raised from the crowdfunding campaign?)

We believe the funds from this campaign are necessary to the viability of the Company. Of the total funds that our Company
has, 80% will be made up of funds raised from the crowdfunding campaign, if it raises its maximum funding goal.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your minimum? What expenses is this estimate based on?

If the Company raises the minimum offering amount, we anticipate the Company will be able to operate for approximately
six (6) months. This is based on a current monthly burn rate of $200,000 for expenses related to research and development



and employee compensation.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your maximum funding goal?

If the Company raises the maximum offering amount, we anticipate the Company will be able to operate until it identifies a
strategic partner to pursue Phase 2 clinical trials. This timeline is highly dependent on the M&A market conditions and
could occur immediately after Phase 1 results are reported, or possibly take 1-2 years while biotech deal-making activity
recuperates from the ongoing bear market and general risk aversion.

Are there any additional future sources of capital available to your company? (Required capital contributions, lines of credit,
contemplated future capital raises, etc...)

Currently, the Company has contemplated additional future sources of capital including a bridge round offering to its
current investors prior to the Reg CF.

Indebtedness

e Creditor: Joey Bose
Amount Owed: $30,000.00
Interest Rate: 15.0%
Maturity Date: September 01, 0203
During the month of September 2022, a convertible promissory note was issued to Mr. Joey Bose (CEO & President -
Key Managerial Person). The note had a principal amount of $30,000 at the rate of 15% interest per annum with
maturity date of one (1) year. As additional consideration for the Note, 15,000 stock options were awarded to the
holder of the note to purchase common stock of the Company at a purchase price of two dollars ($2.00) per share. Per
the terms of the note, investors will receive the stock option at no additional cost, which provides the investor with
the right but not the obligation to purchase shares for up to 5 years at a fixed price of $2.00 per share.

e Creditor: Gaetano Scuderi, MD
Amount Owed: $25,000.00
Interest Rate: 0.0%
Maturity Date: June 01, 2022
A convertible promissory note with a principal amount of $25,000 was issued Gaetano Scuderi, MD (Founder and
Chairman) in June 2022. The debt was issued with 12,500 stock options to purchase Company common stock at a
purchase price of $2.00 per share. Per the terms of the note, investors will receive the stock option at no additional
cost, which provides the investor with the right but not the obligation to purchase shares for up to 5 years at a fixed
price of $2.00 per share. The note has a maturity period of one (1) year.

Related Party Transactions

« Name of Entity: Joey Bose
Relationship to Company: Officer
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: During the month of September 2022, a convertible promissory note
was issued to Mr. Joey Bose (CEO & President — Key Managerial Person)
Material Terms: The note had a principal amount of $30,000 at the rate of 15% interest per annum with maturity date
of one (1) year. As additional consideration for the Note, 15,000 stock options were awarded to the holder of the note
to purchase common stock of the Company at a purchase price of two dollars ($2.00) per share. Per the terms of the
note, investors will receive the stock option at no additional cost, which provides the investor with the right but not
the obligation to purchase shares for up to 5 years at a fixed price of $2.00 per share.

e Name of Entity: Gaetano Scuderi, MD
Relationship to Company: Director
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: A convertible promissory note with a principal amount of $25,000 was
issued Gaetano Scuderi, MD (Founder and Chairman) in June 2022.
Material Terms: The debt was issued with 12,500 stock options to purchase Company common stock at a purchase
price of $2.00 per share. Per the terms of the note, investors will receive the stock option at no additional cost, which
provides the investor with the right but not the obligation to purchase shares for up to 5 years at a fixed price of $2.00
per share. The note has a maturity period of one (1) year

e Name of Entity: Lewis Hanna, PhD
Relationship to Company: Officer



Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Professional fees in the amount of $74,200 were paid to Lewis Hanna,
PhD (Chief Scientific Officer).
Material Terms: These fees are related consulting services provided to the Company during the year 2022.

e Name of Entity: Tracy Goeken, MD; Gordon Ramseier; Phil LoGrasso, PhD
Relationship to Company: Director
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: All three independent Directors (Tracy Goeken, MD; Gordon Ramseier;
Phil LoGrasso, PhD) were granted 50,000 common stock options in January 2022
Material Terms: These stock options were granted as compensation for their services. The options vested immediately,
have a 5-year expiration, and are exercisable at $2.00 per share.

Valuation
Pre-Money Valuation: $65,792,079.60
Valuation Details:

Early-stage biotechs are valued based on a risk-adjusted discounted cash flow (DCF) model of future cash flows generated
over the patent lifetime of their assets (20 years). Like all financial models, certain assumptions need to be made in order to
conduct this analysis.

These assumptions can be grouped into three categories:

1. Revenue Drivers, which include:

@ Market capture post-drug approval

@ Drug sales price once it enters the market

@ Number of treatments administered/doses given per patient

@ Revenue in perpetuity - after the proprietary drug comes off of patent, generics flood the market, and the revenue from
the drug decreases substantially.

2. Cost Drivers, which include:

@ An estimate of Sales, Goods, and Administrative fees related to marketing and selling the drug (advertising, sales
personnel, salaries, etc)

@ Cost of Goods Sold - the unit cost of producing each dose of the drug
3. Risk Metrics, which include:

@ The Discount Rate applied to the cash flows - this discounting factor represents the opportunity cost of funding a
particular drug development program. A larger discount factor implies more risk, and the value of the cash flows is reduced
accordingly.

@ Clinical Trial Risk Rate - this metric factors in the probability of clinical trial success/failure at each of the 3 Phases. The
earlier the stage, the greater the risk.

Cytonics’ valuation of approximately $65M is imputed by assuming a 1% market capture for CYT-108 post-approval, a
$1,500 price per dose of CYT-108, each patient receives 2 doses annually, a Discount Rate of 50% (representing a very large
amount of risk), and a 60% success rate of the Phase 1 clinical trial (based on historical data. Cost assumptions include
COGS 15% (as a percent of revenue) and SG&A 34% (as a percent of revenue).

The Company set its valuation internally without a formal third-party independent evaluation.
Use of Proceeds

If we raise the Target Offering Amount of $9,998.10 we plan to use these proceeds as follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
5.5%

¢ Working Capital
94.5%
General working capital

If we raise the over allotment amount of $3,261,728.90, we plan to use these proceeds as follows:



e StartEngine Platform Fees
5.5%

e Research & Development
70.0%
We will use 70% of the funds raised for market and customer research, new product development and market testing.

e Company Employment
9.0%
We will use 9% of the funds to hire key personnel for daily operations, including the following roles: CEO and
consultant fees (SEC counsel, patent attorneys, accountants, and advisors).. Wages to be commensurate with training,
experience and position.

e Working Capital
14.5%
We will use 14.5% of the funds for working capital to cover expenses for the Phase 1 clinical trial as well as ongoing
day-to-day operations of the Company.

e StartEngine Service Fees
1.0%
Fees for certain creative design, legal, marketing, technical, and administrative support services provided by
StartEngine, of which the final amount may vary.

The Company may change the intended use of proceeds if our officers believe it is in the best interests of the company.

Regulatory Information

Disqualification

No disqualifying event has been recorded in respect to the company or its officers or directors.
Compliance Failure

The company has not previously failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation Crowdfunding.
Ongoing Reporting

The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the report on its website no later than April 29
(120 days after Fiscal Year End). Once posted, the annual report may be found on the Company’s website at
https://cytonics.com/ (cytonics.com/investors).

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements until:
(1) it is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act;

(2) it has filed at least one (1) annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and has fewer than three hundred (300)
holders of record and has total assets that do not exceed $10,000,000;

(3) it has filed at least three (3) annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding;

(4) it or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act, including
any payment in full of debt securities or any complete redemption of redeemable securities; or

(5) it liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.

Updates

Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at: www.startengine.com/cytonics
Investing Process

See Exhibit E to the Offering Statement of which this Offering Memorandum forms a part.
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S SALBERG & COMPANY, P.A.

Certified Public Accountants and Consultants

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of:
Cytonics Corporation:

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Cytonics Corporation (the “Company™) as of
December 31, 2022, the related statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows
for the year then ended, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “financial statements”). In
our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as of December 31, 2022, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a
going concern. As discussed in Note 3 to the financial statements, the Company has a net loss of
$2,844,674 and cash used in operations of $2,492,600 for the year ended December 31, 2022. The
Company also had an accumulated deficit as of December 31, 2022 of $22,752,181. These matters raise
substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s Plans in
regard to these matters are also described in Note 3. The financial statements do not include any
adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Company’s financial statements based on our audit. We are a public accounting
firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB™) and
are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities
laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB and in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor
were we engaged to perform, an audit of internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audit, we
are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audit included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such
procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. Our audit also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

2295 NW Corporate Blvd., Suite 240 * Boca Raton, FL 33431-7326
Phone: (561) 9958270 « Toll Free: (866) CPA-8500 * Fax: (561) 995-1920
www.salbergco.com * info@salbergco.com
Member National Association of Certified Valuation Analysts ® Registered with the PCAOB
Member CPAConnect with Affiliated Offices Worldwide © Member AICPA Center for Audit Quality



Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters are matters arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that
were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relate to
accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially
challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not
alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by
communicating the critical audit matters below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit
matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they relate.

Valuation of Stock Options

As described in Footnote 2 “Share-Based Payments”, Footnote 5 “2022 Notes™ and Footnote 7 “Stock-
Based Compensation” to the financial statements, the Company recorded stock options expense during
2022 resulting from grants in year 2022 to certain employees and to certain note holders and grants in
previous years. The grants in 2022 resulted in a total stock options value of $112,833 being recognized
over the service periods for compensatory grants and over the debt term for grants issued with Notes. The
Company had to obtain a valuation of the business which was then allocated to the various classes of
capital stock outstanding in order to determine the value of the common stock on the grant dates. This
common stock value was then used in a modified Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the
value of the options on the grant dates.

We identified the valuation the stock options as a critical audit matter. Auditing management’s valuation
of stock options involved a high degree of subjectivity.

The primary procedures we performed to address these critical audit matters included (a) reviewed
management’s process for valuing the business and the stock options, (b) determined whether the
valuation method management selected was reasonable by comparing it to generally accepted
methodologies for valuing a business and stock options, (c) tested management’s valuation of the
business and stock options by testing assumptions and data used in the valuation models, and (d)
recomputed the stock options valuations. We agreed with management’s final conclusions with regard to
the stock options valuation.

%.é./.? P.A.

SALBERG & COMPANY, P.A.

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2023.
Boca Raton, Florida

November 3, 2023



I) D.BROOKS

& ASSOCIATES CPAs

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and
Cytonics Corporation

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Cytonics Corporation (“the Company™) as of December 31, 2021, and the related
statements of operations, stockholders® equity (deficit), and cash flows for the year then ended and the related notes to the financial
statements (collectively referred to as the financial statements). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year
then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Substantial Doubt Regarding Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed
in Note 3 of the financial statements, the Company suffered recurring losses from operations and has a significant accumulated deficit.
In addition, the Company continues to experience negative cash flows from operations. These factors raise substantial doubt about the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s plans regarding these matters are described in Note 3 of the financial
statements. The accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company’s financial statements based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S.
federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB and in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were
we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audit, we are required to obtain an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly. we express no such opinion.

Our audit included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error
or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audit also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audit
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

Critical audit matters are matters arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that were communicated or required to
be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relate to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2)
involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. We determined that there were no critical audit matters,

D. Brooks and Associates CPAs, P.A.

(Q\)_ St oo il egna, B A,

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2017,

Palm Beach Gardens, Florida
March 30, 2022

4440 PGA Blvd, Suite 104 = Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 ® Main Office: 561.429.6225 ™ Fax: 561.282.3444

dbrookscpa.com




CYTONICS CORPORATION
Balance Sheets
As of December 31, 2022 and 2021
(in whole dollars, except per share data)

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $0 and $0, respectively)

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Accounts receivable, non-current, net
Intangible assets, net

Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Notes payable, net of debt discounts

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 9)

Stockholders' equity:
Convertible Initial Preferred Stock, $.001 par value;
150,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding
Convertible Series-A Preferred Stock, $.001 par value;
1,500,000 shares authorized; 576,190 shares issued and outstanding
Convertible Series-B Preferred Stock. $.001 par value;
6,000,000 shares authorized; 2,574,865 shares issued and outstanding
Convertible Series-C and C-1 Preferred Stock, $.001 par value;
10,000,000 shares authorized; 4,702,042 and 2,994,557 shares issued and
outstanding, respectively
Common Stock, $.001 par value; 50,000,000 shares authorized,
10,257,042 and 10,117,042 shares issued and outstanding, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

As of December 31,

2022 2021
$ 1,166,390 $ 967.757
100,000 123,333
22,833 1.968
1,289,223 1.093,058
148,753 217.860
— 445,840
$ 1,437,976 S 1,756,758

$ 247 817 $ 554,929
56,429 —
304,246 554,929
$ 304,246 S 554,929
150 150
576 576
2,575 2,575
4,703 2,995
10,257 10,117
23,867,651 21,092,923
(22,752,181) (19,907,507)
1,133,730 1,201,829
$ 1,437,976 S 1,756,758




CYTONICS CORPORATION
Statements of Operations
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
(in whole dollars, except per share data)

2022 2021
Revenues:

License and royalty revenues S 405,000  § 307,500
Total revenues 405,000 307,500
Operating Expenses:

Research and development expense 2,057,466 2,205,358
Payroll expense 315414 237,674
Selling, general and administrative expenses 103,670 584,045
Professional fees 223,863 143,930
Amortization 21,894 30,376
Impairment loss on intangibles 453,456 —
Total operating expenses 3,175,764 3,201,383
Loss from operations (2,770,764) (2.893.883)
Other (expense) income:
Interest income 11,093 14514
Other Income 22,001 —
Interest (expense) (56,091) (263.857)
Paycheck protection program loan forgiveness - 27,408
Loss on extinguishment of debt (19,675) —
Gain on extinguishment of debt — 571,629
Amortization of debt discount (31,239) —
Total other (expense)/income (73,910) 349,694
Net (loss) before income taxes (2,844,674) (2.544,189)
Income taxes — —_
Net (loss) S (2,844,674) § (2,544,189)
Net (loss) per common share: basic S (0.28) % (0.25)
Net (loss) per common share: diluted S (0.28) $ (0.25)
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic 10,152,039 10,023,030
Diluted 10,152,039 10,023,030

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



Baancs, December 31, 2020
Stack-haced compensation

Issuance preferred stock for cash, net of
Ssumce costs

Converzsion of dedt to aquity
Net loss
Baance, December 31, 2021

Stock-based compensaton
Stock-hazed compensation issuad with deht
Execcase of stock cptions

Tssuance praferred stock for cash, net of
BSsuance costs

Conversion of deat to aquity
Net loss

Balance, December 31, 2022

CYTONICS CORPORATION

Statements of Changes in Stockholders® Equity (Deficit)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

(in whole dollars, except per share data)

Total In

Stockholders”
Equiry (Deflclr)

(1,041,417)
33248
3,767,308
086,878

(2,544.186)
1,201,828

58,348
54,485
28,000

2,602,743

13,000
(2,844,674)

Initial Convertible Series-A Convertible Series-B Convertible Series-C and C-1 Convertible
Preferved Stock Preferred Stock Common Steck
Shares Par Value Shares Par Value

370,190 2,514,803 = 9,547,120 9,547
R = 2424 = N

- - bY) | 566,922 370
576,190 2,574,865 2,903 10,117,042 10,117
140,000 140

- - 1,004 - -

R - 14 . -
576,190 2,574,863 4,703 10,237,042 3 10,257

1,133,730

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



CYTONICS CORPORATION
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net (loss) $ (2.844,674) $ (2.544,189)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Amortization of intangibles 21,894 30,376
Amortization of debt discounts 31,239 122,639
Impairment loss on intangibles 453,456 —
Stock-based compensation 58,348 33,248
Interest expense 237 —
Paycheck protection program loan and accrued interest forgiveness — (27,408)
Loss on extinguishment of debt 19,675 -
Gain on extinguishment of debt — (571,629)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Decrease in accounts receivable 92,440 22,483

Increase in prepaid expenses (21,101) (65)

(Decrease)/ increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses (304,113) 150,042
Net cash (used) in operating activities (2.492.600) (2,784,503)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of intangible assets (29,510) (50,285)
Net cash (used) in investing activities (29.510) (50,285)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable 360,000 30,000
Repayments of notes payable - related parties (30,000) (40,000)
Repayments of notes payable (240,000) (630,000)
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock, net of fees 2,602,743 3.905,191
Proceed from exercise of stock options 28,000 —
Net cash provided by financing activities 2,720,743 3,265,191
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 198,633 430,403
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD 967,757 537,354
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD $ 1,166,390 $ 967,757

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for interest $ 54,000 $ 153,183
Cash paid for taxes — —

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH INVESTING AND
FINANCING TRANSACTIONS:

Issuance of stock options with debt $ 54,485 $ —
Conversion of notes payable along with interest into Series C Preferred Stock $ 33,000 $ —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



CYTONICS CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Note 1 — Nature of Business

Cytonics Corporation (the “Company”) is a research and development company that develops therapies and
diagnostics for back and joint pain, which it then licenses to unrelated third parties. The Company was
incorporated in the State of Florida under the name Gamma Spine, Inc. on July 19, 2006 and was renamed

Cytonics Corporation on April 17, 2007.

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) for financial information and pursuant to the rules
and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying
Notes. Actual results could differ materially from those estimates. The Company’s most significant
estimates include the valuations and useful life of intangible assets, the fair value of stock-based
compensation, and stock options issued with convertible notes and notes payable.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash deposited in major financial institutions, which at times may exceed Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation insurance limits.

The Company considers highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less from the date of
purchase to be cash equivalents. These investments are conducted at a cost that approximates fair value. As
of December 31, 2022, and 2021, the Company had no cash equivalents.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when obligations under the terms of a contract with a customer are
satisfied; this occurs with the transfer of control or access to the Company’s licenses or the performance of
services. Revenue is measured as the amount of consideration the company expects to receive in exchange
for transferring goods or providing services. A performance obligation is a promise in a contract to transfer
a distinct good or service to the customer and is the unit of account in the contract. A contract’s transaction
price is allocated to each distinct performance obligation and recognized as revenue when, or as, the
performance obligation is satisfied.

Contracts with customers consist of licensing arrangements and, to a lesser extent, research and
development-related services. Revenues from licensing and royalty fees are received from the granting of
exclusive sales, marketing, manufacturing, and distribution rights associated with the Company’s functional
intellectual property (IP). The Company’s performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time (upon
delivery to the customer) where the Company has no remaining obligation to support or maintain the
intellectual property licensed to the customer. The Company typically requires a non-refundable license
fee, paid over several years, and quarterly royalty payments based on a percentage of sales, with minimum

10



CYTONICS CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

quarterly royalty guarantees. The Company applies a discount to license fees that represent earned revenues
at the time of contract execution that will be received overtime.

Revenue from license fees is recognized at a point in time when the Company transfers the functional IP to
the customer, as long as management believes the total consideration owed by the customer for the license
fee is probable to be received. Due to the financing component embedded in the license fee, the Company
records the revenue and accounts receivable at their net present value using an estimated discount rate at
the point in time when the performance obligation associated with the license fee has been completed.
Management applies a discount rate that reflects the customers’ creditworthiness and the amount that would
have been received from the customer if the license fee was paid upon execution of the contract. The effect
of the financial component is separately presented from revenue as interest income.

Minimum guaranteed royalty (MGR) payments are not binding and are considered to be contingent on the
customers’ ability to generate sales. The Company’s contracts include termination clauses for nonpayment
by customers or mutual agreement. The termination clauses are likely to be triggered if the customer is
unable to make the MGRs. The Company has historically made price concessions when needed by
customers. Given the contractual nature of the MGRs and customary business practices, the Company
recognizes revenue from MGRs pursuant to ASC 606-10-55-65 guidance for a sales-based or usage-based
royalty, which requires recognition for a sales-based royalty promised in exchange for a license of
intellectual property only when (or as) the later of the following events occurs:

a. The subsequent sale or usage occurs.
b. The performance obligation to which some or all of the sales-based or usage-based royalty
has been satisfied (or partially satisfied).

The Company recognizes revenue from MGRs when they become due under the terms of the contract and
the consideration has been received or is expected to be received.

Licenses and royalties due under the contract not yet received have been reflected as accounts receivable
on the balance sheets, net of any discounts,

The Company also generates revenues from running diagnostic tests. The service is invoiced, and the
revenue is recognized upon completion of the test and after the test results are reported to the customer,
which is at the point at which the Company has satisfied its performance obligation.

Except for the estimate of the discount rate to be applied to license fees to be received over a period of
years, the Company’s contracts do not include multiple performance obligations or variable consideration.
Since the Company’s revenue is generated from a small number of customer contracts, it does not have
material contract assets or liabilities.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company received consideration from a customer in
connection with the granting of exclusive sales, marketing, manufacturing, and distribution rights
associated with the Company’s functional intellectual property. Upon execution of the contract, the
Company required a $450,000 nonrefundable license fee, payable in installments over a period of years
through 2025, which management believes is probable of collecting. In the event the contract is terminated
prior to its ten-year term, the customer is required to pay a portion of the license fee based on a sliding scale
and the year of termination. As of December 31, 2021, $240,000 of the nonrefundable fee remains due,
after one year, which has been presented on the balance sheet as an accounts receivable in the amount of
$217.860, net of a $22,140 discount. As of December 31, 2022, $160,000 of the nonrefundable fees remain
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CYTONICS CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

due after one year, which has been presented on the balance sheets as an accounts receivable in the amount
of $148,753, net of a $11,247 discount.

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company recognized revenue from license fees
and MGRs of $405,000 and $307,500, respectively, which is presented on the statement of operations as
license and royalty revenues.

Disaggregation of revenue bas n revenue streams December 31,

2022 2021
APIC' and VET? Royalty 300.000 292,500
Licensing Revenue 105.000 15,000
Total Revenue 405,000 307,500

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.
The Company estimates the collectability of its receivables and establishes allowances for the amount of
accounts receivable that the Company estimates to be uncollectible. The Company bases these allowances
on its historical collection experience, the length of time accounts receivables are outstanding, the financial
condition of individual customers, and current economic conditions that may affect a customer’s ability to
pay. An individual balance is charged to the allowance when all collection efforts have been exhausted and
it is deemed likely to be uncollectible, taking into consideration the financial condition of the customer and
other factors. Accounts receivables are classified as current which are receivable within the period of one
year. Non-current account receivables are receivables outstanding and expected to be received after the
period of one year and are reflected at their present value using a discount rate of 5%.

Intangible Assets

The Company’s intangible assets include seven U.S. patents (US 10,265,388, US 11,040,092, US
10,940,189, US 9,352,021, US 9,498,514, US 10,400,028, US 10,889,631), three U.K. patents
(GB2501611, GB2503131, and GB2522561), two European patents (EP 2827882 and EP 3221341; each
of'which is validated in FR, DE, and GB), one Canadian patent (CA 2865170), two Australian patents (AU
2013222414, AU 2015349782), and one Japanese patent (JP 6861152). The Company also has five
additional related pending patent applications. The cost of issued patents is capitalized and amortized over
the life of the patents, which is 20 years from the earliest filing date of the non-provisional or PCT
application to which priority is claimed. The costs of patent in development are expensed as they are
incurred. The unamortized costs associated with previously capitalized patents that have expired or been
abandoned are written off.

The Company assesses potential impairments of its intangible assets when there is evidence that events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recovered. Any required
impairment loss is measured as the amount by which the asset’s carrying value exceeds its fair value and is
recorded as a reduction in the carrying value of the related asset and a charge to operating results. During
the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company concluded through its qualitative assessment that there
were indicators of impairment. As such, during the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company wrote off
the remaining book value of these intangible assets and recorded an impairment expense of $453,456 in the

! APIC stands for Autologous Platelet Integrated Concentrate
2 Royalty income from Veterinary Market
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CYTONICS CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

statement of operations. The Company had no impairment of intangible assets for the year ended December
31,2021.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company defines fair value as the price received to transfer an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In accordance with ASC 820, Fair
Value Measurements and Disclosures, the Company uses the fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the
inputs used to measure fair value. The hierarchy, as defined below, gives the highest priority to unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable
inputs, The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are set forth below:

Level | inputs — unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Company can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs — inputs other than quoted market prices included within Level 1 that are observable, either
directly or indirectly, for the asset or liability.

Level 3 inputs — unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, which are based on the Company’s own
assumptions as there is little, if any, observable activity in identical assets or liabilities.

Non-Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Non-Recurring Basis

Certain non-financial assets and liabilities are required to be measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis
in certain circumstances, including in the event of impairment. As of December 31, 2022 the Company
recorded 100% impairment losses on patents. These are not measured at Level 3 as there was no valuation
technique used and there was no ability for management to project positive cash flows. Other than patents,
the Company did not have any significant non-financial assets or liabilities that had been measured at fair
value on a non-recurring basis subsequent to initial recognition.

Financial Instruments not Recognized at Fair Value

The carrying amounts of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued liabilities, and
convertible notes approximate their fair values because of the short maturities and/or market interest of
these financial instruments.

Research and Development

The Company enters into consulting, research, and other agreements with commercial entities, researchers,
universities, and others for the provision of goods and services. The Company’s research and development
expenses involves (i) costs associated with entering R&D collaboration agreement with third party
contractor to perform a filter retention study of Cyt-108 BDS material mimicking the conditions expected
during upcoming clinical trials; (ii) perform a shipping qualification study to evaluate the impact of vial
transportation on the integrity of the product, external research and development expenses incurred under
arrangements with third parties, such as contract research organization agreements, investigational sites and
consultants; (iii) the cost of acquiring, developing and manufacturing stability study materials and (iv) costs
incurred in development of intellectual property. Costs incurred in connection with rescarch and
development activities are expensed as incurred. For the period ended December 31, 2022, and 2021, the
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CYTONICS CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
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Company had incurred $2,057.466 and $2.205,358 respectively for research and development activities
which are expensed under statement of operations.

Extinguishment of Debt

The Company evaluates the settlement of debt transactions in accordance with ASC 405 Liabilities and
ASC 470 Debt. If debt is converted or exchanged into issuer’s equity shares on terms different from those
at issuance, the transaction is accounted for as a debt extinguishment, with the difference between the
carrying value of the debt and the fair value of equity shares being recorded in earnings as a gain or loss.
At December 31, 2022, and 2021, the Company had $0 and $571,629, respectively, of gain on
extinguishment due to the conversion of convertible notes payable and notes payable and at December 31,
2022, and 2021, the Company had $19,675 and $0, respectively, of loss on extinguishment due to the
conversion of convertible notes payable and notes payable (see Note 5).

Contingencies

The Company records contingent liabilities resulting from asserted and unasserted claims when it is
probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss is reasonably estimable. Contingent
liabilities are disclosed when there is a reasonable possibility that the ultimate loss will exceed the recorded
liability. The process of estimating probable losses requires professional judgment in the analysis of
multiple factors, in some cases including judgments about the potential actions of third-party claimants and
courts.

Concentrations of Risk

In the normal course of business, the Company is potentially subject to concentrations of credit risk in its
trade receivables. Although the Company is directly affected by the financial condition of its customers,
management does not believe significant credit risks exist as of December 31, 2022, or 2021. Generally,
the Company does not require collateral or other securities to support its trade receivables.

Stock-Based Payments

The Company measures the cost of services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments to
employees and non-employees based on the grant date fair value of the award, which is recognized as
compensation expense over the vesting term.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share (“EPS™)

Basic carnings (loss) per common share is calculated by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the period. Shares issued during the year are weighted for
the portion of the year that they were outstanding. Except when the effect would be anti-dilutive, diluted
earnings per share is computed in a manner consistent with that of basic earnings per share while giving
effect to all potentially dilutive common shares that were outstanding during the period.

The reconciliation of the numerator and denominator of the Company’s basic and diluted earnings (loss)
per share is shown in the following table (in whole dollars, except share and per share amounts):
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December 31,
2022 2021
Net loss $ (2,844.674) S (2.544,189)
Weighted average number of basic common shares outstanding 10,152,039 10,023,030
Loss per share:
Basic $ (0.28) S (0.25)
Diluted $ (0.28) S (0.25)

Because the Company incurred a net loss for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, weighted
average basic shares and weighted average diluted shares outstanding are equal for the periods. The
Company estimated potential diluted shares, all the series Preferred Stocks if converted into Common
Shares.

Preferred Series Type Number of Conversion Price per  Potential If Converted
Outstanding Shares Share Common Shares
Initial Convertible Preferred Stock 150,000 $2.4 360,000
Series-A Convertible Preferred Stock 576,190 $2.0 1,152,380
Series-B Convertible Preferred Stock 2,574,865 $2.0 5,149,730
Series-C and C-1 Convertible Preferred Stock 4,702,042 $1.0 4,702,042
Total 8,003,097 11,364,152

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method, which requires the
recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that have
been included in the financial statements. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
determined on the basis of the differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and
liabilities using the enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse.
The effect of a change in tax rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in income in the period
that includes the enactment date.

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets to the extent that management believes these assets are more
likely than not to be realized. In making such a determination, management considers all available positive
and negative evidence, including future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences, projected future
taxable income, tax-planning strategies, and the results of recent operations. If we determine that the
Company would be able to realize deferred tax assets in the future in excess of their net recorded amount,
the Company would make an adjustment to the deferred tax asset valuation allowance, which would reduce
the provision for income taxes.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

Earnings Per Share

In May 2021, the FASB issued ASU No. 2021-04, Earnings Per Share (Topic 260), Debt-Modifications and
Extinguishments (Subtopic 470-50), Compensation — Stock Compensation (Topic 718), and Derivatives and
Hedging — Contracts in Entity’s Own Equity (Subtopic 815-40) Issuer’s Accounting for Certain
Modifications or Exchanges of Freestanding Equity-Classified Written Call Options (a consensus of the
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FASB Emerging Issues Task Force) (“ASU 2021-04"), which clarifies and reduces the diversity in an
issuer’s accounting for modifications or exchanges of freestanding equity-classified written call options that
remain equity classified after modification or exchange. ASU 2021-04 is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2022 and interim periods within those fiscal years, with early adoption permitted. The
adoption of ASU 2021-04 on January 1, 2022 did not have a material impact on its financial position, results
of operations, and cash flows.

Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted

Convertible Debt

On August 5, 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-06,1 (“ASU 2020™) which simplifies the accounting for
certain financial instruments with characteristics of liabilities and equity, including convertible instruments
and contracts on an entity’s own equity. The ASU is part of the FASB’s simplification initiative, which
aims to reduce unnecessary complexity in U.S. GAAP. ASU 2020 is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 31, 2023. The Company feels the adoption of ASU 2020 will not have a material impact to
the financial statements.

Credit Losses

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments-Credit Losses (Topic 326):
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments (“ASC 326). The amendments in ASC 326 will
provide more decision-useful information about the expected credit losses on financial instruments and
other commitments to extend credit held by a reporting entity at each reporting date. In November 2019,
the FASB issued No. 2019-10, Financial Instruments—Credit Losses (Topic 326), Derivatives and Hedging
(Topic 815), and Leases (Topic 842), which deferred the effective date of ASU 2016-13 for Smaller
Reporting Companies for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022, including interim periods within
those fiscal years. The Company is currently evaluating the impact the adoption of ASU 2016-13 will have
on its financial statements.

All other ASUs issued but not yet adopted were assessed and determined to be either not applicable or are
not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements.

Note 3 — Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates
the realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. During the year
ended December 31, 2022, the Company sustained a net loss of approximately $2.84 million and had net
cash used in operations of approximately $2.49 million. As of December 31, 2022, the Company had an
accumulated deficit of approximately $22.75 million. These conditions raise substantial doubt about the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of one year from the date of issuance of these
financial statements.

To date, the Company has funded its research and development and operating activities through sales of
debt and equity securities, grant funding, and licenses of its products.

The Company intends to continue to seek funding through investments by strategic partners and from
private and public sales of securities until such a time that the Company generates sufficient cash flow to
sustain its operations.
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There is no guarantee that the Company will be able to raise sufficient capital or generate sufficient revenue
to sustain its operations. Management believes that the Company’s capital requirements depend on many
factors, including the liquidity necessary for the continued development and marketing of its products.
These financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the carrying amounts of recorded
assets or the carrying amounts and classification of recorded liabilities that may be required should the
Company be unable to continue as a going concern.

Note 4 — Intangible Assets

The following is a summary of activity related to intangible assets, which consists of capitalized patent
costs as follows:

Patents
Carrying value at December 31, 2020 $ 425930
Add: Additions 50,285
Less: Amortization (30,376)
Carrying value at December 31, 2021 445,839
Add: Additions 29,511
Less: Amortization (21,894)
Less: Impairments (453,456)

Carrying value at December 31, 2022 b -

Amortization expenses were $21,894 and $30,376 for the years ended December 31, 2022, and 2021,
respectively.

Note 5 — Convertible Notes and Notes Pavable. Net

2018 Notes

During 2018, the Company initiated a private placement offering for the issuance of $1,000,000 in
aggregate principal convertible promissory notes (“2018 Notes™), resulting in the issuance of multiple notes
in the aggregate principal amount of $794,000, inclusive of a $50,000 note to a principal stockholder and
chairman of the board and a $50,000 note to the former Company’s Chairman of the Board and the prior
chief financial officer. During 2019, an additional $10,000 promissory note was issued with the same terms.
The 2018 Notes bore interest at a rate of 10% per year, payable quarterly on March 31, June 30, September
30, and December 31 of each year, with a maturity date of June 30, 2021.

Prior to the completion of an Initial Public Offering (“IPO”) of Common Stock, as defined, the holders of
the 2018 Notes may elect to convert all outstanding principal and accrued interest into shares of Common
Stock at a conversion price of $1.60 per share and at a conversion price equal to the sale price of the
Common Stock at any time following the completion of an IPO.

After the completion of an IPO of at least $1,000,000, the Company may elect to require holders of the
2018 Notes to convert all the outstanding principal and accrued interest into shares of Common Stock at a

conversion price equal to 80% of the sale price of the Common Stock in the IPO.

Conversion of the 2018 Notes
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With the completion of a Series C Preferred Stock Offering (“Series C Offering™), which resulted in gross
proceeds in excess of $1,000,000 during 2021, the Company required the holders of the 2018 notes to
convert their outstanding principal and accrued interest into shares of Common Stock at a conversion rate
of $1.60 (80% of the $2 price per share in the Series C Offering). During the year ended December 31,
2021, $804,000 of principal and accrued interest of $19,870 were converted to 514,922 shares of Common
Stock.

Since the 2018 Notes were converted to shares of Common Stock under terms that differed from the original
conversion terms of the 2018 Notes, the Company recorded a gain on the extinguishment of the 2018 Notes
in the amount of $516,464. The gain reflects the difference between the carrying amount of the 2018 Notes
and the estimated fair value of the shares of Common Stock issued upon conversion.

In estimating the fair value of Common Stock, the Company used the Backsolve method, which utilizes the
option pricing method, to calculate an implied value of $.597 per share of Common Stock. For purposes of
the Backsolve method, the Company used the recent sales transactions of the Series C Preferred Stock,
which were purchased at a price of $2.00 per share (see Note 6). A summary of the key inputs used in the
Backsolve method on December 31, 2021, were volatility of 96%, risk-free rate of .31%, and an estimated
three-year period until liquidity or an exit.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the total principal outstanding on the 2018 Notes was $0.
2019 Notes

During 2019, the Company issued convertible promissory notes in the aggregate amount of $486,511 (the
*2019 Notes"). The issuance of the 2019 Notes resulted in the Company receiving net proceeds of $418,593.
The 2019 Notes bore interest at a rate of 5% compounded each calendar quarter commencing June 30, 2019.
All outstanding principal and accrued interest were due in May 2021 ("Maturity Date™).

Of the total 2019 Notes, $23,167 was issued as consideration related to debt issuance costs. In addition, the
Company paid debt issuance costs of $44,751 for total aggregate debt issuance costs of $67,918 that were
recorded as a discount on the debt to be amortized over the twenty-four-month term of the 2019 Notes.

The 2019 Notes will automatically convert to equity upon the occurrence of: 1) the sale and issuance of
Preferred Stock in which the Company receives gross proceeds of $1,000,000 or more ("Qualified Equity
Financing™) or 2) a Corporate Transaction, as defined in the agreement. If automatic conversion does not
occur by the Maturity Date, the 2019 Note holders can elect, by a majority, to require the Company to pay
the outstanding balance or convert the 2019 Notes into shares.

Upon conversion, the conversion price shall be based on the following:

Qualified Equity Financing — the lower of: a) a 20% discount to the price paid per share for the
Preferred Stock (the “Discount”) issued in the Qualified Equity Financing or b) the quotient resulting
from dividing $32,400,000 (the "Valuation Cap™) by the fully-diluted shares outstanding immediately
prior to the closing of the Qualified Equity Financing. Upon conversion, the 2019 Note holders will
receive shares equivalent to shares issued in the Qualified Equity Financing except the liquidation
preference per share shall equal the conversion price.

Corporate Transaction — the quotient resulting from dividing the Valuation Cap by the fully diluted
shares outstanding immediately prior to the closing of a Corporate Transaction.
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At Maturity — the quotient resulting from dividing the Valuation Cap by the fully diluted shares
outstanding immediately prior to the closing of a Corporate Transaction.

If the Company issues convertible debt in any future series separate from the 2019 Notes at a lower pre-
money valuation cap or higher discount, the Valuation Cap and/or Discount on the 2019 Notes will be
automatically amended to the lower Valuation Cap and/or higher Discount, as applicable.

The above conversion features embedded in the 2019 Notes resulted in the Company recognizing a
beneficial conversion feature, measured at its intrinsic value on issuance date, of approximately $392,000,
which was recorded as a discount to the debt and additional paid in capital. The debt discount is being
amortized over the term of the 2019 Notes.

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company recognized aggregate amortization
expenses of S0 and $98,648, respectively, related to the beneficial conversion feature and debt issuance
costs which are included on the statements of operations. As of December 31, 2022, and 2021, the aggregate
unamortized debt discount was $0.

2019 Promissory Note

On October 31, 2019, the Company issued a promissory note (2019 Promissory Note™) to an unrelated
individual in the amount of $100,000. The promissory note bears interest at 10% and is due October 31,
2024. The note holder may elect to convert all, but only all, of the outstanding principal and accrued interest
into shares as follows: 1) prior to an initial public offering (IPO) at a conversion price of $2.00; or 2) at the
completion of an IPO at a conversion price equal to the share price paid in the IPO less a 10% discount.

Further, the Company may elect to repay the principal and accrued interest in the form of equity shares as
follows: 1) upon 15 days advance notice to the lender of the Company’s election to convert into equity
shares at a conversion rate of $2; or 2) at any time following a public offering of stock that results in gross
proceeds of at least $1,000,000, the Company may elect to require the lender to convert all outstanding
principal and accrued interest into equity shares at a 10% discount to the offering price.

Conversion of the 2019 Notes and 2019 Promissory Note

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the aggregate outstanding principal and accrued interest
outstanding on the 2019 Notes and 2019 Promissory Note of $586,511 and $60,126, respectively, were
converted to 570,541 shares of Series C Preferred Stock. The conversion of the 2019 Notes was triggered
by a Qualified Equity Financing that occurred in 2021. The Company elected to require the holder of the
2019 Promissory Note to convert the outstanding principal and accrued interest into Series C Preferred
Stock after the sale of Series C Preferred Stock that resulted in gross proceeds in excess of $1,000,000 (see
Note 6). Since the conversion was in accordance with the original terms of the 2019 Notes and 2019
Promissory Note, no gain or loss was recorded upon conversion, and the $646,637 of outstanding principal
and accrued interest was classified as equity.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the total principal outstanding on the 2019 Notes and 2019 Promissory
Note was $0.

2020 Notes
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During 2020, the Company issued promissory notes in the principal amount of $715.000, of which $40,000
was with related parties. In 2021, the Company issued an additional promissory note with a principal
amount of $30,000 (collectively referred to as the “2020 Notes”). In connection with the 2020 notes, the
Company issued options to purchase 372,500 shares of Common Stock at a share price of $2.00, which was
recorded as a debt discount in the amount of $28,463 and additional paid-in-capital based on the relative
fair value method. The fair value of the options issued was determined using the Blacksholes method, an
application of the option pricing model, which uses the price established by a recent financing transaction
of the Company’s equity participating securities to compute a total equity value for the Company (see Notes
6 and 7). The debt discount was amortized over the terms of the 2020 notes for one (1) year. In 2021,
$670,000, including $40,000 to related parties, of the outstanding principal on the 2020 Notes was repaid
in cash, and all accrued interest was outstanding at that time.

Certain holders of the 2020 Notes elected to convert their outstanding principal and accrued interest into
shares of Common Stock.

Conversion of the 2020 Notes

During the year ended December 31, 2021, $75,000 of outstanding principal and accrued interest of $13,000
on the 2020 Notes were converted to 55,000 shares of Common Stock. Since the 2020 Notes were converted
to shares of Common Stock, the Company recorded a gain on the extinguishment of the 2020 Notes in the
amount of $55,165. The gain reflects the difference between the carrying amount of the 2020 Notes and the
estimated fair value of the shares of Common Stock issued upon conversion.

In estimating the fair value of Common Stock, the Company used the Backsolve method, which utilizes the
option pricing method, to calculate an implied value of $.597 per share of Common Stock. For purposes of
the Backsolve method, the company used the recent sales transactions of the Series C Preferred Stock,
which were purchased at a price of $2.00 per share (see Note 6). A summary of the key inputs used in the
Backsolve method on December 31, 2021, were volatility of 96%, risk-free rate of .31%, and an estimated
period of three-years till liquidity or an exit.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, an aggregate of outstanding principal and accrued interest of
$1,558,506 on the 2018 Notes, 2019 Notes, and 2020 Notes was converted into 570,541 shares of Series C
Preferred Stock and 569,922 shares of Common Stock. This resulted in an aggregate gain on extinguishment
of $571,629, which has been reflected in the statement of operations.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the total principal outstanding on the 2020 Notes was $0.
2022 Notes

During 2022, the Company issued promissory notes in the principal amount of $360,000 (collectively
referred to as the 2022 Notes™) with applicable interest per annum ranging from 15% to 20%. In connection
with the 2022 notes, the Company issued options to purchase 202,500 shares of Common Stock at an
exercise price of $2.00 per share, which was recorded as a debt discount in the amount of $54,485 and
additional paid-in-capital based on the relative fair value method. The fair value of the options issued was
determined using the Black Scholes method, an application of the option pricing model, which uses the
price established by a recent financing transaction of the Company’s equity participating securities to
compute a total equity value for the Company (see Notes 6 and 7). The debt discount was amortized over
the terms of the 2022 notes for one (1) year. During the year, $31,239 of debt discount was amortized from
the outstanding notes. During the year, $270,000 notes were repaid in cash and notes of $30,000 plus
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accrued interest of $3,000 were converted to 14,348 shares of Series C-1 Preferred Stock. Following the
repayments and conversions, $19,675 was recorded as loss extinguishment as a result of the write off of the
unamortized debt discount on the debt that was settled during the year and the remaining unamortized debt
discount for these 2022 Notes is $3.571.

The 2022 notes are due at the earlier of the close of a qualified equity financing or one year from the date
of the note (“Maturity Date™). Qualified equity financing is defined as when the Company issues and sells
shares of its equity securities to investors prior to the Maturity Date in an equity financing of not less than
$1.5 or $2.0 million. Upon Qualified equity financing, the outstanding principal amount plus interest, as if
the loan were being repaid on the Maturity Date. (e.g., if the principal amount of the Note is $100,000, then
upon a qualified financing the holder shall be repaid $115,000, which is inclusive of all accrued interest of
15%), would be due and payable.

As at December 31, 2022, and 2021, the outstanding principal on the 2018 Notes, 2019 Notes, 2020 Note
and 2022 Notes was $56.429 and $0, respectively, net of debt discounts of $3,571 and S0 respectively and
loss on extinguishment of debt for $19.675 and $0. On December 31, 2022 and 2021, outstanding interest
on the 2022 Notes was $9,000 and $0, respectively.

CARES Act Paycheck Protection Program Loan

In April 2020, the Company entered into a promissory note evidencing an unsecured loan (the “Loan”) in
the amount of $27,212 made to the Company under the Paycheck Protection Program (the “PPP”"). The PPP
was established under the CARES Act and is administered by the U.S. Small Business Administration. In
2021, the Company received notification that the Loan was forgiven and recorded a gain on extinguishment
of $27.408.

Note 6 — Stockholders’ Equity

The Company is authorized to issue 50,000,000 shares of Common Stock with a par value of $0.001 per
share and 20,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock with a par value of $0.001. The Board of Directors has
designated (a) 150,000 shares as Initial Preferred Stock, (b) 1,500,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock,
(¢) 6,000,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock, and (d) 10,000,000 shares of Series C Preferred Stock of
which 510,000 shares were designated as Series C-1 Preferred Stock.

Common Stock

In 2021, the completion of a Series C Preferred Stock Offering that resulted in gross proceeds in excess of
$1,000,000, the Company had convertible notes and notes payable convert to 569,922 shares of Common
Stock in 2021 (see Note 5). During 2022, one of the stock option holders exercised the option to convert
140,000 stock options into 140,000 Common Shares for an exercise price of $0.20 per share totaling
$28,000.

On December 31, 2022, and 2021, the Company had 10,257,042 and 10,117,042 shares of Common Stock
issued and outstanding, respectively. The holders of Common Stock are entitled to one vote for each share
held of record on such matters and in such manner as may be provided by law. Subject to preferences
applicable to any shares of the Company’s outstanding Preferred Stock, the holders of Common Stock are
entitled to receive ratably such dividends, if any, as may be declared by the Board of Directors out of funds
legally available. In the event of a liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of the Company, the holders of
Common Stock are entitled to share ratably in all assets remaining after payment of liabilities and
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liquidation preferences of any shares of the Company’s outstanding Preferred Stock. Holders of Common
Stock have no pre-emptive rights or rights to convert their Common Stock into any other securities. There
are no redemption or sinking fund provisions applicable to the Common Stock. All outstanding shares of
Common Stock are fully paid and non-assessable.

Preferred Stock

On December 31, 2022, and 2021, the Company had (1) 150,000 shares of Initial Convertible Preferred
Stock (Initial Preferred), (2) 576,190 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (Series A Preferred),
and (3) 2,574,865 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (Series B Preferred) issued and
outstanding. The Initial Convertible Preferred stock has a liquidation preference of $2.00 per share
($300,000). The Series A Convertible Preferred Stock has a liquidation preference of $4.00 per share
($2,304,760). The Series B Convertible Preferred Stock has a liquidation preference in the amount paid by
the holders (ranging from $2.50 to $4.00 per share, or $7,360,960 in the aggregate). In the event of any
liquidation event, the order of liquidation preference is as follows: the (1) Initial Preferred Stock (in parity
with Series A Preferred), (2) Series A Preferred (in parity with Initial Preferred Stock) and (3) Series B
Preferred.

Each share of Initial Preferred Stock is convertible into 2.4 shares of Common Stock, and both the Series
A and Series B Preferred stock are each convertible into two (2) shares of Common Stock.

During 2020, the Company amended its Articles of Incorporation to designate 10,000,000 shares as
Series C Preferred Stock, of which 500,000 shares were designated as Series C-1 Preferred Stock. In 2021,
the articles were amended to increase the designated C-1 Preferred Stock to 510,000. Each share of
Series C-1 Preferred Stock (“Series C-17) has a par value of $0.001 and a stated value equal to its conversion
rate.

Each share of Series C Preferred Stock has a par value of $0.001 and a stated value equal to $2.00 (“Series C
Purchase Price™). All other rights and privileges of the Series C Preferred Stock and Series C-1 are identical
except for the stated value mentioned above.

Holders of Series C and C-1 Preferred Stock will vote with holders of common Stock as a single class and
will participate in all dividends that are declared and paid on Common Stock on the same basis as if each
share of Series C and C-1 Preferred Stock were converted into Common Stock.

Holders of the Series C and C-1 Preferred Stock may voluntarily convert the Series C and C-1 Preferred
Stock into shares of Common Stock on a one-to-one ratio, and the Series C and C-1 Preferred Stock will
automatically convert upon a Public Offering.

In the event of any liquidation event, the holders of Series C and C-1 Preferred Stock will have a liquidation
preference in parity with the holders of Initial Preferred Stock and Series A Preferred Stock. The Series C
Convertible Preferred Stock has a liquidation preference of $8,263,002 (4,131,501 at $2.00 per share). The
Series C-1 Convertible Preferred Stock has a liquidation preference calculated at lesser of (1) $1.60 and (B)
the quotient resulting from dividing (1) $32,400,000 by (2) the number of shares of Common Stock issued
and outstanding on a fully diluted basis per share value of a share of Common Stock, on a fully diluted,
thus, liquidation preference is calculated at lesser value of $1.05 calculated as $599,068 (570,541 at $1.05
per share).
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In 2021, with the completion of a Series C Preferred Stock Offering (“Offering”) that resulted in gross
proceeds of more than $1,000,000, the Company issued 2,424,016 Series C Preferred Stock for $2.00 which
generated $3,767,309 of net proceeds, net of $962,391 equity issuance costs. Upon completion of the Series
C Offering $137,882 of deferred offering costs were recorded as a reduction of additional paid-in capital.
As further disclosed in Note 5, the completion of the Offering resulted in convertible notes payable being
converted into 570,541 of Series C-1 Preferred Stock.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company initiated a Series C Preferred Stock Offering
(2022 Offering™) which resulted in gross proceeds in excess of $3,700,000, the Company issued 1,693,138
Series C Preferred Stock for either (a) $1.84 per share for subscriptions received no later than April 22,
2022, (b) $2.07 per share for subscriptions received after April 22, 2022 but not later than April 29, 2022,
and (c) $2.30 per share for subscriptions received after April 29, 2022 or where all or a portion of the
Purchase Price is being paid by cancellation of indebtedness of the Company to such Purchaser. The 2022
Offering generated $2,616,205 of proceeds, net of $291,073 direct attributable equity issuance costs,
$13,463 of previously deferred offering costs and $837.980 for costs for digital and marketing expenses
incurred to raise such capital from offering. Upon completion of the Series C 2022 Offering these deferred
offering costs were recorded as a reduction of additional paid-in capital. Refer to subsequent events (Note
12) for additional investment obtained after the year end.

Additionally, 14,348 Series C Preferred Stock were issued to two investors in exchange for 2022 convertible
promissory notes at $2.30 per share. Refer to convertible notes and notes payable (Note 5) for additional

information on 2022 promissory notes issuance and conversion.

On December 31, 2022, and 2021, the Company had issued and outstanding 4,702,042 (4,131,501 Series
C and 570,541 Series C-1) and 2,994,557 (2,424,016 Series C and 570,541 Series C-1) respectively.

Note 7 — Stock-Based Compensation

In April 2007, the Company’s sharcholders adopted the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan (“2007 Plan™), providing
for the grant of stock options and restricted stock awards to employees, non-employee service providers
and Board members. Plan Options granted under the plan may include non-statutory stock options as well
as incentive stock options intended to qualify under Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code. Awards
under 2007 may be granted only during the ten years immediately following the effective date of the Plan.

During 2018, the Company’s Board adopted the 2018 Stock Incentive Plan (“2018 Plan”), effectively
replacing the 2007 Plan, to provide for the issuance of up to 5,000,000 shares of stock through the grant of
stock options, restricted stock, or restricted stock units.

During 2021, the Company granted options to the Company’s President to purchase 424,800 shares of
Common Stock at an exercise price of $2.00 per share and a grant date fair value of $0.16 vested 35,400
per quarter and exercisable over five years.

In January 2022, the Company granted options to board directors to purchase 150,000 shares of Common
Stock at an exercise price of $2.00 per share and a grant date fair value of $0.237 which vest 12,500 per
quarter and are exercisable over five years. In June 2022, debt holders were given options to purchase
202,500 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $2.00 per share that is fully vested on issuance
and exercisable over five years (see Note 5). Stock compensation expenses for non-debt related grants
during 2022 was $58,348.

23



CYTONICS CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

On December 31, 2022, the Company has options outstanding to purchase 4,706,034 shares of Common
Stock under the 2007 and 2018 Plans at exercise prices ranging from $0.05 to $2.00 per share and with
remaining vesting periods of one to five years.

The Company determined the grant date fair value of the options granted using the Black Scholes Method
using the following assumptions:

Expected Volatility
Expected Term
Risk Free Rate
Dividend Rate

The following is a summary of the Company’s stock option activity:

Outstanding
Granted
Forfeited
Exercised
Expired
Outstanding

Exercisable

The following table summarizes stock option information at December 31, 2022:

Exercise Price

0.05
0.38
0.38
0.57
1.00
2.00

Total

WA A A AN

Outstanding

800,000
629,276
170,000
346,000
440,000

1,974,600

2022 2021
98.1% 93.6%
1.5 years 2.5 years
2.48% 0.16%
0.00% 0.00%
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Weighted-
Option Average Exercise Option Weighted-Average
Shares Price Shares Exercise Price
S8ILII0  § 1.10 6,382,586 $ 0.94
352,500 § 2.00 439,800 $ 2.00
— — (709,276) $ 0.38
(140,000) 0.20 - -
(1,663,734) S 1.48 (302,000) $ 1.00
4359876 1.06 5811110 $ 1.10
4.147.476 1.06 5,457,110 $ 1.04
Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average
Contractual Life Contractual Life
(Years) Exercisable (Years)
Indefinite 800,000 Indefinite
Indefinite 629.276 Indefinite
4.24 170,000 424
0.74 346,000 0.74
4.81 440,000 4.81
2.88 1,762,200 2.88
4.147.476

4,359,876

During the year ended December 31, 2022, 494,100 options vested with a weighted average grant date fair
value of $0.32. Stock compensation expenses for the years ended December 31, 2022, and 2021 were
$58,348 and $33,248, respectively, which is included in payroll expense on the statements of operations.
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On December 31, 2022, there were 212,400 options unvested with an average grant date fair value of $0.32
and $34,196 of unrecognized compensation costs related to stock options which will be recognized over

the weighted average remaining 1.50 years.

Note 8 — Related Partv Transactions

During the month of September 2022, a convertible promissory note was issued to Mr. Joey Bose (CEO &
President — Key Managerial Person) in the principal amount of $30,000 at the rate of 15% interest per
annum with maturity date of one (1) year. As additional consideration for the Note, 15,000 stock options
were awarded to the holder of the note to purchase common stock of the Company at a purchase price of
two dollars ($2.00) per share. Per the terms of the note, investors will receive the stock option at no
additional cost, which provides the investor with the right but not the obligation to purchase shares for up
to 5 years at a fixed price of $2.00 per share.

Similarly, a convertible promissory note with a principal amount of $25,000 and a maturity period of one
(1) year was issued Gaetano Scuderi, MD (Founder and Chairman) in June 2022. The debt was issued with
12,500 stock options to purchase Company common stock at a purchase price of $2.00 per share. Per the
terms of the note, investors will receive the stock option at no additional cost, which provides the investor
with the right but not the obligation to purchase shares for up to 5 years at a fixed price of $2.00 per share.

Both principal amounts along with accrued interest for the two promissory notes were repaid during the
year. Thus, no related party convertible notes balance remains outstanding as on December 31, 2022.

Professional fees in the amount of $74,200 was paid to Lewis Hanna, PhD (Chief Scientific Officer) for his
consulting services provided to the Company during the year 2022.

All three independent Directors (Tracy Goeken, MD: Gordon Ramseier; Phil LoGrasso, PhD) were granted
50,000 common stock options in January 2022 as compensation for their services. The options vested
immediately, have a 5-year expiration, and are exercisable at $2.00 per share.

Note 9 — Commitments and Contingencies

From time-to-time, the Company may become involved in various claims and legal proceedings of a nature
considered normal to its business. While it is not feasible to predict or determine the financial outcome of
any proceedings, management does not believe that the resolve of unasserted claims and proceedings will
result in a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

Note 10 — Concentration of Credit Risks

During the years ended December 31, 2022, and 2021, the Company generated revenues and accounts
receivable from two (2) customers.

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of cash deposits in excess of the FDIC insured limit of $250,000. On December 31, 2022, and
2021, such cash balances were in excess of federally insured amounts by approximately $929,694 and
$1,204,000, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company purchased from one (1) vendor 84% of research
and laboratory fees, and the vendor accounted for 21% of total accounts payable.
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Note 11 — Income Taxes

Components of income tax benefit are as follows for the years ended December 31:

2022 2021
Current income tax expense (refund) - federal $ — $ -
Current income tax expense (refund) — state — -
Total current income tax expense (refund) — —
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) - federal 918,530 377.026
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) — state 254,569 65.792
Total deferred income tax expense (benefit) 1,173,098 442,818
Change in valuation allowance (1,173,098) (301,134)
$ $

Total provision for income taxes — f—

The tax effects of temporary differences which give rise to the significant portions of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are summarized as follows as of December 31:

2022 2021

Deferred Tax Assets:

Net operating loss $ 3,855,965 3,260,443
Stock options 434,779 381.304
Tax credits 263,834 263.834
Amortization 626,551 65,045
Total deferred tax assets 5,181,129 3,970,626
Deferred Tax Liabilities:

Net deferred tax liability — s
Less: Valuation Allowance (5,181,129) (3.970,626)
Total Net Deferred Tax Assets $ - -

The Company will have approximately $15.21M of operating loss carryforwards as of December 31, 2022.
Net deferred tax assets are mainly comprised of temporary differences between the financial statement
carrying amount and the tax basis of assets and liabilities.

Net deferred tax assets are mainly comprised of temporary differences between the financial statement
carrying amount and the tax basis of assets and liabilities.

ASC 740 Income Taxes, requires a valuation allowance to reduce the deferred tax assets reported if, based
on the weight of the evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets
will not be realized. At December 31, 2022 and 2021, a full valuation allowance was required.
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In addition, the Company performed a comprehensive review of its uncertain tax positions and determined
that no adjustments were necessary relating to unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2022. The
Company's federal and state income tax returns are subject to examination by taxing authorities for three
years after the returns are filed, and the Company's federal and state income tax returns for 2018 through
2021 remain open to examination.

The reconciliation of the income tax benefit is computed at the U.S. federal statutory rate as follows at
December 31:

2022 2021
Federal statutory income tax 21.00% 21.00%
Permanent Differences 6.29% 0.23%
Change in Tax Rate 8.59% -3.81%
Change in Valuation Allowance -41.24% -17.41%
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 5.65% 2.82%
Prior Year Adjustments -0.28% -2.83%
Total 0.00% 0.00%

Note 12 — Subsequent Events

Series C Preferred Stock

Management has evaluated subsequent events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure in
the financial statements through November 3, 2023, the date these financial statements were available to
be issued.

In April 2023, the Company obtained additional investments in connection with the Preferred C Round 2
Offering, which resulted in gross proceeds in excess of $1,600,000. the Company issued 737,334 Series C
Preferred Stock for either (a) $1.84 per share for subscriptions received no later than April 22, 2022; (b)
$2.07 per share for subscriptions received after April 22, 2022 but not later than April 29, 2022; or (c) $2.30
per share for subscriptions received after April 29, 2022, or where all or a portion of the Purchase Price is
being paid by cancellation of indebtedness of the Company to such Purchaser. These additional investments
were initiated in 2023, settled subsequent to December 31, 2022, and generated $1,695,868 of proceeds,
net of $128,000 equity issuance costs (7.5% of brokerage fees). Upon completion of the Series C Round 2
Offering, these deferred offering costs were recorded as a reduction of additional paid-in capital.

Common Shares to Related Party

In order to conserve cash, the Company paid professional fees to Lewis Hanna, PhD (Chief Scientific
Officer) in the form of common shares of 9,349 on January 11, 2023 for his consulting services provided
to the Company.

Stock Options to Related Party
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During the month of June 2023, Mr. Joey Bose (CEO & President — Key Managerial Person) was granted

434,000 common stock options as compensation for his services. The options vested immediately, have a
5-year expiration, and are exercisable at $2.00 per share.
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RESERVE NOW ©

GET A PIECE OF CYTONICS

Our mission is to rid the world of the
pain, suffering, and reduced quality
of life caused by Osteoarthritis (OA).

Cytonics is a biotechnology research and that ializes in
developing diagnostics and therapeutics for Osteoarthritis.

This Reg CF offering is made avallable through Starténgine
Capital, LLC. This investment is speculative, iliquid, and involves
ahigh degree of risk, including the possible loss of your entire
investment.

OVERVIEW ABOUT UPDATES REWARDS DISCUSSION INVESTING FAQS

REASONS TO INVEST

Cytonics is rewriting the Osteoarthritis (OA) treatment playbook
"(‘D with our novel biologic therapy based on a naturally-occurring
N blood protein called “A2M.” Unlike palliative treatments, A2M
lly halts OA's progression and encourages cartilage repair.

Our 1st generation technology has already treated 8k+ patients,
generating $591K revenue (2022) and providing clinical proof
that our core A2M technology works. * The historical
;D performance, including the number of patients treated and
revenue generated, is not necessarily indicative of future results.
Future success and performance are subject to various risks,
uncertainties, and market ditions that may not repli past
achievements.

We are led by an experienced team of MDs and PhDs, have 22 US
and international patents, and boast Johnson and Johnson as a

D large shareholder. We invite you to join us as we aim to restore
the quality of life of 365M suffering patients by advancing our
novel A2M therapeutic into FDA clinical trials.

THE PITCH

>

a preview for demo purposes only.

| Addtowatchlist JoARV

YcyTonics

Revolutionizing
Osteoarthriti

Our new drug, “CYT-108,

proven to protect against
damage in preclinical studies by
targeting the root cause of
osteoarthritis,

$338,613.09 Reserved

) Earn 100% Bonus Shares

EVIOUSLY CROWDFUNDED @
$9,311,674

ESERVED ® INVESTORS
$338,613.09 132

Breaking Boundaries in Osteoarthritis
Care

Poised for transformative growth and disruption
in the regenerative medicine landscape

KNEE JOINT
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Unveiling Cytonics: A Biotech Powerhouse Revolutionizing Osteoarthritis Care.

Since 2006, we have been developing diagnostics and therapeutics for Osteoarthritis (OA),
a debilitating joint disease that affects over 365M people worldwide and for which there
are no effective treatments. Our breakthrough FACT™ biomarker test has guided
thousands of patients to effective treatments by linking joint pain to cartilage damage,
allowing physicians and patients to determine their best course of therapy . In 2015 we

transformed the OA treatment game with our Autol Protease Inhibi

Concentrate™ therapy (or “APIC™” for short). APIC™ leverages the therapeutic activity of a
naturally occurring blood protein called Alpha-2-Macroglobulin (“A2M”) by selectively
concentrating the A2M protein from patients’ own blood (autologous means obtained
from self), then injecting the A2M concentrate directly into their arthritic joints. APIC™ has
successfully treated over 8,000 patients to-date, and is clinical proof that our core
A2M technology is a potent solution for OA.

Now, we are redefining regenerative medicine once again with the development of CYT-
108, a genetically engineered variant of the naturally occurring A2M protein that we

believe will be the ultimate solution to OA. Preclinical studies of CYT-108 have established

Ad 1 1

its superior efficacy compared to natural A2M in
of Osteoarthritis. If approved by the FDA, CYT-108 will be the first and only disease-
modifying treatment that will address a $240 billion global market currently occupied by

ing the root

inferior, temporary, palliative treatments that merely mask the pain and inflammation
caused by the disease. We believe we’re positioned to completely change the OA
treatment landscape with CYT-108 by treating the root cause of the disease, resulting
d pain and infl ion, and bringing lasting relief.

o

in cartilage repair, r

Our breakthrough test that
has guided countless patients
to effective treatments

APIC™ SYSTEM

Our acclaimed autologous
therapy that's changing
lives for 8,000+ patients

CYT-108

Potently treating the root
cause of OA, restoring joint
health and quality of life

THE PROBLEM & OUR SOLUTION




Pioneering a Breakthrough Solution for
Joint Health and Cartilage Damage

Current Treatments Only Mask
the Symptoms of Osteoarthritis (OA)

More than 365M patients worldwide yearn
for a solution that targets the root cause
of cartilage damage and pain

Osteoarthritis (OA) afflicts over 365 million worldwide and is a massive burden to the
global economy, yet current treatments only mask symptoms and do not bring lasting
relief. Patients yearn for a solution that targets the root cause of cartilage damage,
eliminating pain and restoring joint function for life. Cytonics is on a mission to rewrite the
script for OA by leveraging the power of Alpha-2-Macroglobulin (A2M), a naturally-
occurring blood serum protein that plays a critical role in blood clotting. Via that same
mechanism of action, it also has the remarkable ability to shield against cartilage
deterioration by blocking very specific boli y called “pr ”. By

counteracting these destructive protease enzymes, which accumulate in OA-afflicted
joints and “chew” up the cartilage tissue, A2M prevents cartilage degradation and

fotod

red joint infl ion and pain. A2M's comprehensive suppression of

inflammatory triggers not only eases the immune system's load but also facilitates the
body's autonomous healing. Although native A2M levels in the joints are too low to halt OA
progression, Cytonics has demonstrated that delivering highly-concentrated A2M
processed from patients’ blood directly into the joint effectively arrests the disease,

providing substantial long-term and robust relief for suffering patients.

This led to the development of our first-generation A2M therapy, called the “Autologous
P Inhibitor C ate™” therapy (“APIC™”), which has successfully treated

over 8,000 patients nationwide and has recently been shown effective in treating race
horses. The royalty stream from APIC™ sales is a great source of non-dilutive funding for
our company, but the most important feature of the therapy is that it is a testament to
A2M'’s ability to potently treat Osteoarthritis.

Patient’s blood is drawn
and centrifuged




All the proteins that could
cause damage to the joint (such
as proteases and inflammatory

cytokines) are filtered out

The purified A2M from the
patient’s blood is injected
into their arthritic joints

But why stop there?

Introducing CYT-108: the “super A2M”

Emboldened by APIC™s clinical and commercial success, we embarked on a mission to
create a “super A2M” that would overcome the limitations of relying on the naturally
occurring A2M —namely, the amount of A2M varies significantly from patient-to-patient,
and the therapy requires equipment and time to administer, reducing its global scalability.
Named “CYT-108,” this super A2M is a genetically-engineered variant of the naturally
occurring protein that can be synthesized in a lab, produced on an industrial scale,

distributed globally, and made “off-the-shelf” for ease of administration. After 5 years’
of intensive and thorough experimentation, we have completed the critical preclinical
experiments (data below) that allow us to proceed into a first-in-human Phase 1 clinical
trial of CYT-108. We stand at this critical juncture with unbridled enthusiasm and
confidence that we will demonstrate superior efficacy (up to 4x more potent than the
natural A2M) and (most importantly) safety in our clinical trial participants. APIC™ has
proven that A2M is an effective OA treatment. Now, we just have to prove that CYT-

108 will perform even better.

Cartilage Damage

Treatment with CYT-108

6 restored~57% of the cartilage

damage that occurred over
5 the 12-week time-course
4

OARSI Score
w

1
0
Baseline
No Treatment CYT-108 (healthy cartilage)
Joint Membrane Inflammation
Treatment with CYT-108 restored ¢
~60% of cellular thickening of the
synovial membrane that occurred
over the 12-week time-course
4.25
3.75



3.25

2,75

Baseline
(healthy cartilage)

No Treatment CYT-108

Intra-articular injection of our recombinant A2M variant, CYT-108, results in reduced cartilage degradation and
reduced joint membrane inflammation in subjects suffering from post-traumatic Osteoarthritis. Histopathological

grading (modified OARSI scoring system) of the joint tissues reveals that treatment with CYT-108 results in a 57%

reduction in cartilage damage and a 60% reduction in joint i as byan
pathologist. These results indicate that CYT-108 is therapeutically active against joint tissue damage, not only
protecting cartilage but reducing inflammation in arthritic joints. Taken together with the toxicology and
immunogenicity data (not shown), this preliminary preclinical data indicates that CYT-108 may be a viable treatment

for Osteoarthritis. Error bars +/- SEM.

Cytonics presents a unique investment opportunity fueled by cutting-edge biotechnology
innovation and dual revenue streams. Through exclusive agreements with two
independent manufacturers (one operating in the human market and the other in the
veterinary space) we have secured over $4M in license acquisition fees and royalties
through 2029, with guaranteed royalty minimums of $400,000 annually, providing stable
and non-dilutive capital to fund our research and development of CYT-108. We're at the

forefront of i ion with our genetically-engi ed A2M variant, the development

of which is significantly de-risked by the proven success of our APIC™ treatment.

Driven by an accomplished and seasoned team of medical doctors and PhDs, we have
emerged as pioneers in regenerative medicine and have solidified our position as leaders
in the industry. Dr. Gaetano Scuderi, Founder and Chairman, discovered the therapeutic
potential of A2M while conducting research at Stanford Medical School before he founded
Cytonics in 2006, and he brings extensive medical expertise (over 30 years as a practicing
orthopedic surgeon) and academic distinction (over 45 published papers in the field of
regenerative medicine) with him. Guided by Dr. Lewis Hanna, Chief Scientific Officer and
former Director of R&D at Alexion, Cytonics’s research and development of CYT-108 is
poised to reach its pinnacle with a successful first-in-human Phase 1 clinical trial. By
integrating over 15 years’ experience as both a biomedical researcher and healthcare
investment banker, Joey Bose, President & CEO, is leading the charge through this
exciting path of biotechnology R&D.

Our team is dedicated to developing the cure for Osteoarthritis once and for all, and it is
with this dogged passion that we will bring relief to millions of suffering patients and give
them their lives back.

THE MARKET & OUR TRACTION

Patently Impressive, Proven and
Promising

11.8% $400K

Stake held by Johnson & Secured annually

Johnson Development Corp. through both equine
and healthcare

industry royalties

8K+ Patients
Benefitted from our $591 K

APIC therapy Revenue in 2022

$1.8M 22 Patents




Total NIH grants Issued with 5 more pending

Raised from healthcare focused

$20 M == Family Offices, orthopedic surgeons,

and equity crowdfunding.

The OA market is enormous. Drawing parallels from the success of rheumatoid arthritis
(RA) treatments (TNF-alpha inhibitors, like Abbvie’s Humira, one of the best selling drugs
of all-time) we estimate the market for a “true” disease-modifying OA treatment to be
~$240B ($40B is spent on TNF-alpha drugs x 6-fold more OA patients than RA| ).
Cytonics entered the arena with the intent of developing a universally effective solution for
OA, the analog to TNF-alpha inhibitors which have effectively eradicated RA. Our Founder,
Dr. Gaetano Scuderi (a fourth-degree black belt in jujitsu and respected instructor in the
BJJ and MMA community), testifies to A2M's effectiveness in extending his athletic career
into his 60’s (as does Royce Gracie, decorated UFC and MMA veteran), and endorsements
from training partners and an expanding patient population of athletes and the elderly
(and everyone in between!) reinforce the potential of Cytonics' core technology to heal
joints and transform lives.

“Breathtaking and timely.”

@ Alexander R Vaccaro
MD, PhD, MBA

“| expect a huge demand for it [CYT-108]."

a Laurence Rosenfield
S~ MD

“Cytonics’ strategic efforts are exciting
as they target the development of a
first biologic therapy for patients
suffering from osteoarthritis.”

Martin Angst, MD

“Before he did the procedure, | could
not bend my knee [...] after the
procedure | was walking.”

Gi“:' Gail Lynn & Robert Lynn

“1 was so impressed with these results
that | have been evangelizing for APIC
treatment to my doctors and friends
ever since.”

-
‘g’ Gabe

“The A2M therapy has given me my
sports and mobility life back and |
have recommended this treatment
to all of my friends.”

“‘") Daryle Bobb

*These i may not be repi ive of the experience of other customers and are not a guarantee of future

performance or success.



Cytonics showcases an extensive IP portfolio with 22 issued US and international
patents (protecting all three of our technologies - FACT™, APIC™, and CYT-108) that
solidify our competitive edge. Jok & Jok Develop Corp. holds a
significant stake (12%) in Cytonics, validating our potential and providing an avenue for

acquisition once an exit is sought. Notably, many of our early investors are orthopedic
surgeons, physicians, and patients who've experienced the impact of APIC™ first hand.
Over 8,000 patients have had their lives changed by our APIC™ therapy, which provides
critical validation of the positive preclinical data that backs CYT-108's safety and efficacy
in treating Osteoarthritis. With a track record of

£ 1 fundi i ladi

over
$20M raised from Family Offices, orthopedic surgeons, and equity crowdfunding
(most recently $7 million+ raised on SeedInvest), Cytonics is ready to bring on new
investors to advance CYT-108 out of the laboratory and into FDA Phase 1 clinical
trials. This is a pivotal juncture in our corporate trajectory, and we welcome you to join us
as we transform into a clinical-stage company and cross over a substantial valuation
inflection point.

why invest

Join the Regenerative Medicine
Revolution

INVEST TODAY

Become a driving force
behind the transformation
of millions of lives

With a dynamic blend of groundbreaking innovation, strategic partnerships, and proven
traction, Cytonics is on the brink of transforming the Osteoarthritis treatment landscape.
This paradigm shift will be accomplished by targeting the root causes of OA through the
cartilage-protecting power of a naturally occurring blood protein called A2M. We're not
just masking symptoms — we're rewriting the script for a pain-free future. Backed by an
impressive base of sophisticated investors, track record of industry-advancing research,
and a history of successful funding, Cytonics is positioned to disrupt the OA market and
redefine the standard of care. Seize this opportunity to be part of a journey that's
reshaping the landscape of regenerative medicine, bringing hope back to millions of

people.

Invest today and become a driving force behind the transformation of millions of lives.

ABOUT

HEADQUARTERS WEBSITE
658 W. Indiantown Road View Site @
Jupiter, FL 33458

Cytonics is a bit research and company that i in
diagnostics and therapeutics for Osteoarthritis.

TEAM
P Psse =y



Gaetano Scuderi, MD
Founder & Chairman of the
Board (Full Time)

Gaetano Scuderi, MD is the Founder and
Chairman of the Board of Cytonics Corporation.
Dr. Scuderi is a fellowship-trained (UCSD, San
Diego, CA) spine surgeon who has practiced
medicine since 1993. He was also appointed to
Clinical Assistant Professor in the Department of
Orthopedic Surgery of Stanford University. He
graduated medical school from State University
of New York (Buffalo, NY) and completed his
Residency at University of Miami School of
Medicine (Miami, FL). Dr. Scuderi has published
over 45 scientific articles and has lectured
worldwide. Dr. Scuderi currently practices
orthopedic surgery in Jupiter, FL.

In addition to his clinical practice and his role
with Cytonics, Dr. Scuderi is a 4th-degree black
belt in Jiu-Jitsu and the founder/principal
instructor of Scuderi Self Defense (Jupiter, FL).
Dr. Scuderi’s love for this martial art is only
surpassed by his passion for helping the sick
and elderly reclaim their mobility and quality of
life.

[in]

Joey Bose
CEO & President (Full Time)

Mr. Bose has over 10 years’ experience in

i research and
healthcare investment banking. As President of
Cytonics, his primary responsibilities include
coordinating capital raising efforts, initiating
clinical trials for the company’s lead drug
candidate (CYT-108), filing and maintaining
patent protection of intellectual property, and
identifying strategic buyers and out-licensing
opportunities for the company. He holds a BS in
Biomedical Engineering from the University of
Virginia (Charlottesville, VA) and an MS in
Biomedical Engineering from Johns Hopkins
University (Baltimore, MD).

o

Lewis Hanna, PhD
Chief Scientific Officer

Dr. Hanna has served as Chief
Scientific Officer of Cytonics
since February 2008. Dr.
Hanna has over 28 years’
experience in phar {

Phil LoGrasso, PhD
Director (Part Time)

Phil LoGrasso, Ph.D. joined the
company'’s growing Board of
Directors in December of
2020. Dr. LoGrasso's expertise
in the bit industry

research and development,
specializing in the
development of recombinant
protein therapies. He has
extensive knowledge of protein
folding, purification,
formulation, large-scale
production, quality, and the
regulatory requirements to
obtain FDA new drug approval.
Until 2004, Dr. Hanna was the
Director of Process
Development at Alexion
Pharmaceutical, and prior to
that he was a Group Leader at
Bristol-Myers Squibb
Pharmaceutical Research
Institute. He also served a
Principal Research Scientist at
R.W. Johnson Pharmaceutical
Research Institute (Raritan,
NJ) for 7 years. Dr. Hanna
received his BS degree from
Cairo University (Giza, Egypt),
received his PhD from City
University of New York (New
York City, NY), and completed
a postdoctoral fellowship at
Cornell University (Ithaca, NY).

includes experience as a
Program Director at the
National Institute of Health
(NIH), Research Fellow in drug
discovery and at

Tracy Goeken, MD
Director (Part Time)

Cytonics recently welcomed
Tracy Goeken, MD to the
company’s Board of Directors.
As a member of the Board, Dr.
Goeken will help drive the
company'’s direction and
manage clinical trials. Dr.
Goeken brings over 15 years of
expertise in the

i industry

Merck and Avera
Pharmaceuticals, and as a
senior analyst at GQG Partners
(a $56B global hedge fund).
Phil has spent almost three
decades actively involved in
forming relationships with Big

and currently serves as the
Chief Medical Officer for Linical
Americas, a contract research
organization that provides the
full spectrum of drug
development services. Prior to
Linical, Dr. Goeken held

Pharma, backed
biotech companies, academic
researchers at the NIH, and
biotech-focused hedge funds.

atThe
Hospital Research Institute in
Houston, Texas, Pharm-Olam
International, Nuron Biotech,
and Somabhlution. During his
tenure as Vice President of
Clinical and Medical Affairs at
Nuron Biotech Inc., the
company secured $80mm in
financing for the
commercialization and
expansion of its vaccine
Meningitec.

(ind



EXHIBIT D TO FORM C

VIDEO TRANSCRIPT

Gail: I haven't had an ounce of pain since the treatment.
Doug: The APIC treatment has changed my life.

Bob: The APIC A2ZM was like a dream come true.

Joey: Over 25 percent of the adult population is expected to suffer from osteoarthritis by 2030 and it affects over six million athletes
today. Cytonics is tackling this problem at its source, actually addressing the root cause of the disease instead of just masking the
symptoms with palliative treatments. The global market for osteoarthritis is enormous. Over one hundred and eighty billion dollars are
spent globally on treating the symptoms, the pain and the inflammation of the disease, but not the actual root cause. Cytonics is
developing innovative treatments that actually address the disease at its source.

Guy: For medical therapies, the mainstay of treatment has been injections of steroids, and patients felt great with a steroid injection
because it's a very potent anti-inflammatory. And unfortunately, something that we've only found out over the last decade is injecting
patients’ joints with corticosteroids, softens the cartilage and weakens the joints. It actually accelerates the degenerative process,
resulting in an earlier time that the patient will need a joint replacement therapy or disc replacement therapy in the case of the spine. So,
corticosteroids are not the solution. In fact, we're making the problem worse with these types of injections. In osteoarthritis, enzymes act
as little Pac-Man that go in and eat up the cartilage in the joint. Alpha-2-macroglobulin is the protein in our bodies that surrounds and
encapsulates the Pac-Man that renders it incapable of eating up the cartilage.

Joey: What we found is that if you can purify and concentrate alpha two macro globulin or AZM from a patient's own blood and inject it
into the joint space of an arthritic joint, you can actually help repair the cartilage damage by blocking these enzymes that chew up the
cartilage matrix.

Guy: At Cytonics, we ve developed a genetically engineered alpha-2-macroglobulin that's more effective than the natural version. This
ability of alpha-2-macroglobulin is very, very powerful, and it acts via this Venus flytrap type of mechanism. And once that enzyme docks
on this site, it closes around that enzyme and it renders it incapable of eating up the joint.

Joey: So we developed a first-generation away therapy that leverages the anti-protease activity of A2ZM by purifying and selectively
concentrating the A2M from a patient’s own blood. Named the Autologous Protease Inhibitor Concentrate system, or APIC for short, our
device processes blood by centrifugation to isolate the blood serum containing the A2M protein, followed by a proprietary filtration
mechanism that selectively enriches the A2M while eliminating other inflammatory blood proteins. This pure A2M concentrate is then
injected into the patient's damaged joint - a simple and sophisticated process, and it's been sold in the market since 2015 in both the
human market, as well as the veterinary market. The clinical and commercial success of our APIC therapy is a testament to the power of
AZM as a treatment for osteoarthritis. Now, the next logical step from utilizing human A2M is to create a synthetic version of A2ZM. So,
the analogy is with what Eli Lilly did in the 1980s with synthetic insulin. After Eli Lilly created their recombinant, which means the
genetically engineered synthetic variant of that naturally occurring insulin, they were able to create off-the-shelf, highly concentrated,
genetically modified insulin protein that they could adapt to fit their needs. For example, changing the half-life.

So in a very similar way, we've created a recombinant, genetically modified A2M variant, we call it CYT-108, that we've been able to tune
to increase its efficacy for binding to and inhibiting the destructive action of those catabolic enzymes that chew up cartilage in joints.

Tracy: Development of biologics is challenging, but with the autologous use of the A2M in patients, I think that we really have the
opportunity to position this product into commercial development space for off-the-shelf use.

Joey: Cytonics goal is to take CYT-108 through Phase 1 and into Phase 2 clinical studies, which at that point big pharmaceutical
companies will start to take interest in either acquiring the company or licensing the development rights.

Philip: So success starts and ends with clinical efficacy. If Cytonics achieves clinical efficacy with A2M, the sky is the limit.

Gordon: The world is getting older - there are more and more patients with these problems, so the market potential for a product like that
is monstrous.

Joey: Now what's really exciting about the development of CYT-108 is that we already know that the core technology, which relies on the
therapeutic efficacy of A2M as an inhibitor of cartilage damage, already works. What we've been able to do was leverage the therapeutic
potential of the naturally occurring A2M and create an improved version through careful genetic engineering.

We stand at the cusp between pre-clinical and Phase 1 clinical trials. Cytonics holds over 20 patents covering our core technologies - a
diagnostic, two medical devices for the treatment of osteoarthritis, and our novel biologic, "CYT-108". An investment in Cytonics isn't
only an opportunity to invest in a therapy that has the potential to disrupt a $180 billion global market. It's also an opportunity to invest
in the health of yourself, your friends, and your family.

Cindy: Dr. Scuderi is amazing, and this process has made a big difference to my quality of life.

Now is the time to invest in Cytonics and join us on this exciting journey of drug development and discovery.



VIDEO #2
Guy: At Cytonics, we've developed a genetically engineered alpha-2-macroglobulin that's more effective than the natural version.
Philip: So success starts and ends with clinical efficacy. If Cytonics achieves clinical efficacy with A2M, the sky is the limit.

Tracy: Development of biologics is challenging, but with the autologous use of A2M in patients, I think that we really have the
opportunity to position this product into commercial development space for off-the-shelf use.

Joey: After many years of research and millions of dollars in R&D, our novel pharmaceutical, CYT-108, is ready for a first-in-human Phase
1 clinical study in osteoarthritis - the most significant milestone in the company’s history. CYT-108 is a genetically engineered variant of
the naturally occurring A2M protein, which, when selectively concentrated from patients’ blood and injected into damaged joints, is an
effective inhibitor of cartilage damage in arthritic joints.

And now, we are giving you the opportunity to invest in Cytonics as we advance CYT-108 into clinical trials and transform from a
preclinical research to a clinical development stage company - an opportunity that has historically been exclusive to venture capital, and
is perfectly timed before a significant valuation inflection point - the Phase 1 clinical trial.

Your investment will directly fund the clinical development of CYT-108, which, if approved by the FDA, we believe will be the first and
only disease-modifying treatment for osteoarthritis capable of bringing lasting relief to the 600M people suffering from joint damage
worldwide. Unlike the vast majority of drug development projects, CYT-108 is substantially de-risked because we already know that the
core A2M technology works. The clinical and commercial success of our first-generation, FDA-approved A2M therapy is a testament to
that.

Guy: In osteoarthritis, enzymes act as little Pac-Man that go in and eat up the cartilage in the joint. Alpha-2-macroglobulin is the protein
in our bodies that surrounds and encapsulates the Pac-Man that renders it incapable of eating up the cartilage.

Joey: What we found is that if you can purify and concentrate alpha-2-macroglobulin or a2m from a patient’s own blood and inject it into
the joint space of an arthritic joint, you can actually help repair the cartilage damage by blocking these enzymes that chew up the
cartilage matrix.

Guy: This ability of alpha two macro globulin is very, very powerful, and it acts via this Venus flytrap type of mechanism. And once that
enzyme docks on this site, it closes around that enzyme and it renders it incapable of eating up the other part of the joint.

Joey: The next logical step from utilizing human A2M is to create a synthetic version of AZM. We’ve created a recombinant genetically
modified A2M variant, we call it CYT-108, that we’ve been able to tune to increase its efficacy for binding to and inhibiting the
destructive action of those catabolic enzymes that chew up cartilage in joints. Cytonic’s goal is to take CYT-108 through phase one and
into phase two clinical studies, which at that point big pharmaceutical companies will start to take interest in either acquiring the
company or licensing the development rights.

Since the last raise, Cytonics has completed GMP drug manufacturing of CYT-108 for the Phase 1 clinical trial, finalized the Phase 1 study
protocol for regulatory submission, engaged with the Contract Research Organization (CRO - Southern Star Research) in Australia,
selected the Phase 1 clinical sites which are ready to begin patient recruitment, and prepared the other regulatory documents which will
be submitted to the FDA while the study is ongoing in Australia.

Gordon: The world is getting older - more and more patients with these problems, so the market potential for a product like that is
monstrous.

Joey: Cytonics holds over 20 patents covering our core technologies - a diagnostic, two medical devices for the treatment of osteoarthritis,
and our novel biologic CYT-108.

An investment in Cytonics isn’t only an opportunity to invest in a therapy that has the potential to disrupt the $180 billion global market.
It’s also an opportunity to invest in the health of yourself, your friends and your family.

Now is the time to invest in Cytonics and join us on this exciting journey of drug development and discovery.



STARTENGINE SUBSCRIPTION PROCESS (Exhibit E)

Platform Compensation

As compensation for the services provided by StartEngine Capital, the issuer is required
to pay to StartEngine Capital a fee consisting of a 5.5-13% (five and one-half to thirteen)
commission based on the dollar amount of securities sold in the Offering and paid upon
disbursement of funds from escrow at the time of closing. The commission is paid in cash
and in securities of the Issuer identical to those offered to the public in the Offering at the
sole discretion of StartEngine Capital. Additionally, the issuer must reimburse certain
expenses related to the Offering. The securities issued to StartEngine Capital, if any, will
be of the same class and have the same terms, conditions, and rights as the securities
being offered and sold by the issuer on StartEngine Capital’s website.

As compensation for the services provided by StartEngine Capital, investors are also
required to pay StartEngine Capital a fee consisting of a 0-3.5% (zero to three and a half
percent) service fee based on the dollar amount of securities purchased in each
investment.

Information Regarding Length of Time of Offering

Investment Cancellations: Investors will have up to 48 hours prior to the end of the
offering period to change their minds and cancel their investment commitments for any
reason. Once within 48 hours of ending, investors will not be able to cancel for any
reason, even if they make a commitment during this period.

Material Changes: Material changes to an offering include but are not limited to: A
change in minimum offering amount, change in security price, change in management,
material change to financial information, etc. If an issuer makes a material change to the
offering terms or other information disclosed, including a change to the offering deadline,
investors will be given five business days to reconfirm their investment commitment. If
investors do not reconfirm, their investment will be canceled and the funds will be
returned.

Hittine The T oal Farly & C bscrinti

e StartEngine Capital will notify investors by email when the target offering amount has hit

25%, 50%, and 100% of the funding goal. If the issuer hits its goal early, the issuer can
create a new target deadline at least 5 business days out. Investors will be notified of the



new target deadline via email and will then have the opportunity to cancel up to 48 hours
before the new deadline.

e Oversubscriptions: We require all issuers to accept oversubscriptions. This may not be
possible if: 1) it vaults an issuer into a different category for financial statement
requirements (and they do not have the requisite financial statements); or 2) they reach
$5M in investments. In the event of an oversubscription, shares will be allocated at the
discretion of the issuer, with priority given to StartEngine Owners Bonus members.

e If the sum of the investment commitments does not equal or exceed the target offering
amount at the offering deadline, no securities will be sold in the offering, investment
commitments will be canceled and committed funds will be returned.

e If a StartEngine issuer reaches its target offering amount prior to the deadline, it may
conduct an initial closing of the offering early if they provide notice of the new offering
deadline at least five business days prior to the new offering deadline (absent a material
change that would require an extension of the offering and reconfirmation of the
investment commitment). StartEngine will notify investors when the issuer meets its
target offering amount. Thereafter, the issuer may conduct additional closings until the
offering deadline.

Minimum and Maximum Investment Amounts

e In order to invest, commit to an investment or communicate on our platform, users must
open an account on StartEngine Capital and provide certain personal and non-personal
information including information related to income, net worth, and other investments.

e [nvestor Limitations: There are no investment limits for investing in crowdfunding
offerings for accredited investors. Non-accredited investors are limited in how much they
can invest in all crowdfunding offerings during any 12-month period. The limitation on
how much they can invest depends on their net worth (excluding the value of their
primary residence) and annual income. If either their annual income or net worth is less
than $124,000, then during any 12-month period, they can invest cither $2,500 or 5% of
their annual income or net worth, whichever is greater. If both their annual income and net
worth are equal to or more than $124,000, then during any 12-month period, they can
invest up to 10% of annual income or net worth, whichever is greater, but their
investments cannot exceed $124,000.



EXHIBIT F TO FORM C
ADDITIONAL CORPORATE DOCUMENTS

[See attached]
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TO: Amendment Section
Division of Corporations

NAME OF CORPORATION: e s i ’7édn

DOCUMENT NUMBER: /ﬁé 0000 93047

The enclosed Articles of Amendment and fee are submitted for filing.

Please return all correspondence conggrning this matter to the 'following:

D oAnson

Name of Contact Person

(')/;4n:¢5 d’/d/’d 740»1

Firm/ Company /7

4’3”;—,;44/,% Zive ﬁé /S

Addfess

;:7// 7‘00’. };/ 3 345%

" City/ State and Zip Code

For further ipformation concerning this matter, please call:

n’) Daﬁmn a( 4@/ ) /4~ 4894

Name of Contact Person Area Code & Daytime Telephone Number

/

Enclosed is a check for the following amount made payable to the Florida Department of State:

[ $35 Filing Fee m’@s Filing Fee & [ $43.75 Filing Fee & [0 $52.50 Filing Fee
Certificate of Status Certified Copy Certificate of Status

(Additional copy is enclosed) Certified Copy
(Additional Copy is enclosed)

Mailing Address Street Address

Amendment Section Amendment Section
Division of Corporations Division of Corporations
P.O. Box 6327 Clifton Building

Tallahassee, FL 32314 2661 Executive Center Circle

Tallahassee, FL 32301
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THIRD AMENDED AND RESTATED 2 5

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION o
OF | Ee

CYTONICS CORPORATION e =

CYTONICS CORPORATION (the “Corporation”), a corporation organized m‘i_d,‘éxmdhg
under and by virtue of the Florida Business Corporation Act (the “Act”), does hereby cqﬂfy at:
FIRST.

‘Corporation™).

The name of this corporation is Cytonics Corporation (hereinafter, the
SECOND.

The original Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation were filed on
July 26, 2006, and amended and restated on April 20, 2007 and November 13, 2009 (the
“Articles of Incorporation™).

THIRD. The resolutions amending and restating the Corporation’s Articles of
Incorporation were approved by the Corporation’s Board of Directors (the “Board of Directors™)
at a meeting convened by conference call on February 4, 2011. Shareholder action to approve
the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation was not required.

FOURTH.

The Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation are hereby amended and
restated in their entirety as follows:

ARTICLE I. NAME
The name of the Corporation is “Cytonics Corporation.”

ARTICLE II. NATURE OF BUSINESS

territory or nation.

The Corporation may engage or transact in any or all lawful activities or business
permitted under the laws of the United States, the State of Florida or any other state, country,

ARTICLE IT1I. CAPITAL STOCK

1.

(“Common Stock™); and

The total number of shares of all classes, which the Corporation is authorized to issue, is
Sixty Million (60,000,000) shares, consisting of:
Fifty Million (50,000,000) shares of common stock, $0.001 par value per share

2.

Ten Million (10,000,000) shares of preferred stock, $0.001 par value per share

(“Preferred Stock™), including One Hundred Fifty Thousand (150,000) shares designated as
“Initial Preferred Stock,” par value $0.001 per share (the “Initial Preferred Stock™), One Million

Five Hundred Thousand (1,500,000) shares designated as “Series A Preferred Stock,” par value
$0.001 per share (the “Series A Preferred Stock™), and Three Million (3,000,000) shares
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designated as “Series B Preferred Stock,” par value $0.001 per share (the “Series B Preferred
Stock™).

Except as otherwise restricted by this Articles of Incorporation, the Corporation is
authorized to issue from time to time all or any portion of the capital stock of the Corporation
that is authorized but not issued to such person or persons and for such lawful consideration as it
may deem appropriate, and generally in its absclute discretion to determine the terms and
manner of any disposition of such authorized but unissued capital stock.

Any and all such shares issued for which the full consideration has been paid or delivered
shall be deemed fully paid shares of capital stock, and the holder of such shares shall not be
liable for any further call or assessment or any other payment thercon.

The voting powers, designations, preferences, privileges and relative, participating,
optional or other special rights, and the qualifications, limitations and restrictions of each class
(and series) of capital stock of the Corporation are as hereafter provided in this Article III.

A, INITIAL PREFERRED STOCK

The first series of Preferred Stock shall be designated “Initiai Preferred Stock™ and shalli
consist of One Hundred Fifty Thousand (150,000} shares. The rights, preferences, privileges,
and restrictions granted o and imposed on the [nitial Preferred Stock are as set forth below.

1. Dividends.

The holders of Initial Preferred Stock shall participate in all dividends and other
distributions (other than stock dividends in the nature of a stock split or the like and repurchases
of securities by the Corporation not made on a pro rata basis from all holders of any class of the
Corporation’s capital stock) that are declared ang paid on Common Stock on the same basis as if
each share of Initial Preferred Stock had been converted into Common Stock in accordance with
Section A.3 hereof immediately prior (o the record date established for such dividends.

2. Liquidation Preference.

(a)  Upon (i) any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, whether
voluntary or involuntary, (ii) a “Sale of the Corporation” (as defined below) or (iii) a
reorganization of the Corporation required by any court or administrative body in order to
comply with any provision of law (each of the events referred to in clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) being
referred to as a “Liquidation Event™), each holder of Initial Preferred Stock shall be entitled, after
provision for the payment of the Corporation’s debts and other liabilities and in parity with the
holders of Series A Preferred Stock and in preference to, and, before any amount or property
shall be paid or distributed on account of any “Junior Securities” (as defined below), to be paid
in full in cash with respect to each share of Initial Preferred Stock out of the assets of the
Corporation available for distribution to shareholders, an amount equa! to the “Initial Purchase
Price” (as defined below). If upon any Liquidation Event the amount available for distribution
among the holders of all outstanding Initial Preferred Stock and Series A Preferred Stock is
insufficient to permit the payment of the Initial Purchase Price to the holders of Initial Preferred

-2-
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* Stock and the Series A Purchase Price to the holders of Series A Preferred Stock, in full, then the
amount available for distribution shall be distributed among the holders of the Initial Preferred
Stock and the holders of Series A Preferred Stock ratably in proportion to the relative Initial
Purchase Price of the Initial Preferred Stock and the Series A Purchase Price of the Series A
Preferred Stock held by such holders, and the holders of Common Stock, Series B Preferred
Stock and of any other Junior Securities shall in no event be entitled to participate in the
distribution of any assets of the Corporation in respect of their ownership thereof. Upon any
liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, whether voluntary or involuntary, after
the holders of Initial Preferred Stock and the holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall have been
paid in full the preferential amounts to which they shall be entitled to receive on account of their
Initial Preferred Stock and Series A Preferred Stock as provided in this Section A.2(a) and
Section B.2(a), respectively, then the holders of Series B Preferred Stock shall be paid in full the
preferential amount to which they shall be entitled to receive on account of their Series B
Preferred Stock as provided in Section C.2(a), and finally any remaining net assets of the
Corporation shall be distributed ratably among the holders of Initial Preferred Stock, Series A
Preferred Stock, Series B Preferred Stock and Common Stock (with each share of Initial
Preferred Stock, each share of Series A Preferred Stock, and each share of Series B Preferred
Stock being deemed for such purpose to equal the number of shares of Common Stock, including
fractions thereof, into which such share of Initial Preferred Stock, such share of Series A
Preferred Stock and such share of Series B Preferred Stock is convertible in accordance with the
provisions of Section A.3, Section B.3, and Section C.3 respectively, hereof). Upon any (i) “Sale
of the Corporation” or (ii) reorganization of the Corporation required by any court or
administrative body in order to comply with any provision of law, after the holders of Initial
Preferred Stock and the holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall have been paid in full the
preferential amounts to which they shall be entitled to receive on account of their Initial
Preferred Stock and Series A Preferred Stock as provided in this Section A.2(a) and Section
B.2(a), respectively, any remaining net assets of the Corporation shall be distributed ratably
among the holders of Initial Preferred Stock, Series A Preferred Stock, Series B Preferred Stock
and Common Stock (with each share of Initial Preferred Stock, each share of Series A Preferred
- Stock, and each share of Series B Preferred Stock being deemed for such purpose to equal the
number of shares of Common Stock, including fractions thereof, into which such share of Initial
Preferred Stock, such share of Series A Preferred Stock and such share of Series B Preferred
Stock is convertible in accordance with the provisions of Section A.3, Section B.3, and Section
C.3 respectively, hereof).

“Sale of the Corporation” means any of the following: (a) a merger or consolidation of
the Corporation into or with any other individual, partnership, corporation, limited liability
company, association, trust, joint venture, unincorporated organization or other entity and any
government, governmental department or agency or political subdivision thereof (“Person” or
“Persons™) who are not “Affiliates” (as defined below) of the Corporation in a single transaction
or a series of transactions, whether or not such transactions are related, in which the shareholders
of the Corporation immediately prior to such merger, consolidation, transaction or first of such
series of transaction possess less than a majority of the Corporation’s issued and outstanding
voting capital stock immediately after such merger, consolidation, transaction or series of such
transactions; or (b) a single transaction or series of transactions, whether or not such transactions
are related, pursuant to which a Person or Persons who are not Affiliates of the Corporation
acquire all or substantially all of the Corporation’s assets determined on a consolidated basis.

-3-
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“Affiliates” means, with respect to any Person other than the Corporation, any other Person that
would be considered to be an affiliate of such Person under Rule 144(a) promulgated under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act™).

“Junior Securities” means any of the Corporation’s Common Stock and all other capital
stock and convertible securities of the Corporation other than (a) Initial Preferred Stock, (b)
Series A Preferred Stock and (b) such capital stock or convertible securities of the Corporation
that by their terms provide the holders thereof with rights pari passu with or senior to those of the
holders of Initial Preferred Stock.

“Initial Purchase Price” means $2.00 per share of Initial Preferred Stock (as equitably
adjusted to reflect any stock split, stock dividend, combination, reorganization, recapitalization,
reclassification or other similar event involving the Initial Preferred Stock after the date these
Articles of Incorporation are filed with the Office of the Secretary of State of Florida in
accordance with the Act).

(b)  Consolidation, Merger, etc. Notwithstanding Section A.2(a) hereof, neither a Sale
of the Corporation nor any reorganization of the Corporation of the type referenced in clause (iii)
of Section A.2(a) hereof shall be deemed to be a Liquidation Event for the purposes of this
Section A.2 if the holders of more than fifty percent (50%) of the issued and outstanding Initial
Preferred Stock (the “Requisite Initial Shareholders™) waive in writing the provisions of this
Section A.2 with respect to such event.

() No Effect on Conversion Rights. The provisions of this Section A.2 shall not in
any way limit the right of the holders of Initial Preferred Stock to elect to convert their shares of
Initial Preferred Stock into shares of Common Stock in accordance with Section A.3 hereof prior
to or in connection with any Liquidation Event.

3. Conversion into Common Stock. The holders of Initial Preferred Stock shall have
the following conversion rights:

(a) Voluntary Conversion. At any time, each holder of Initial Preferred Stock shall
be entitled, without the payment of any additional consideration, to cause all or any portion of
the shares of Initial Preferred Stock held by such holder to be converted into a number of shares
of fully paid and nonassessable Common Stock determined as hereafter provided in this
Section A.3(a). The shares of Initial Preferred Stock shall convert into shares of Common Stock
at a ratio of one to 1.2 (the “Initial Conversion Ratio”), such that the Initial Conversion Ratio
would result in 1.2 shares of Common Stock being issued upon the conversion of one share of
Initial Preferred Stock. The number of shares of Common Stock into which shares of Initial
Preferred Stock are convertible and the Initial Conversion Ratio are subject to adjustment from
time to time as hereafter provided.

(b)  Procedure for Voluntary Conversion: Effective Date. Upon the election to
convert the Initial Preferred Stock made in accordance with Section A.3(a) hereof, the holders of
the Initial Preferred Stock making such election shall provide written notice of such conversion
(the “Voluntary Initial Conversion Notice”) to the Corporation setting forth the number of shares
of Initial Preferred Stock each such holder elects to convert into Common Stock (the “Elected
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Initial Preferred Stock™). On the date the Voluntary Initial Conversion Notice is delivered to the
Corporation, such shares of Elected Initial Preferred Stock shall thereupon be converted, without
further action, into the number of shares of Common Stock provided for in Section A.3(a)
hereof, and such number of shares of Common Stock into which the Elected Initial Preferred
Stock is converted shall thereupon be deemed to have been issued to such holders of the Elected
Initial Preferred Stock. Such holders shall as soon as practicable thereafter surrender to the
Corporation” at the Corporation’s principal executive office the certificate or certificates
evidencing the Elected Initial Preferred Stock, duly assigned or endorsed for transfer to the
Corporation (or accompanied by duly executed stock powers relating thereto), or an affidavit or
agreement satisfactory to the Corporation to indemnify the Corporation from any loss incurred in
connection with the loss of such certificate or certificates (“Affidavit of Loss™). Upon surrender
of such certificates or delivery of an Affidavit of Loss with respect thereto, the Corporation shall
issue and deliver to the holder so surrendering such certificates or to such holder’s designee, at
an address designated by such holder, certificates for the number of shares of Common Stock
into which such holder’s Elected Initial Preferred Stock shall have been converted. The issuance
of certificates for shares of Common Stock upon conversion of Elected Initial Preferred Stock
will be made without charge to the holders of such shares for any issuance tax in respect thereof
or other costs incurred by the Corporation in connection with such conversion and the related
issuance of such stock. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Section A.3(c),
in the event that the holders of shares of Initial Preferred Stock elect to convert such shares
pursuant to Section A.3(a) hereof in connection with any Liquidation Event or any other
specified event, (i) such conversion may at the election of such holders be conditioned upon the
consummation of such Liquidation Event or the occurrence of such other specified event, in
which case, such conversion shall not be deemed to be effective until the consummation of such
Liquidation Event or the occurrence of such other specified event and (ii) if such Liquidation
Event or other specified event is consummated or occurs, all shares of Elected Initial Preferred
Stock shall be deemed to have been converted into shares of Common Stock immediately prior
thereto.

(c) Automatic Conversion. Each share of Initial Preferred Stock shall automatically
be converted, without the payment of any additional consideration, into the number of shares of
Common Stock provided for in Section A.3(a) immediately upon (i) the consummation of the
Corporation’s first underwritten public offering resulting in at least Twenty Million
($20,000,000) of proceeds to the Corporation net of underwriting discounts and commissions and
offering expenses (a “Qualified Public Offering™); provided that if a Qualified Public Offering is
consummated, all outstanding shares of Initial Preferred Stock shall be deemed to have been
converted into shares of Common Stock as provided in this Section A.3 immediately prior to
such consummation. Upon the consummation of a Qualified Public Offering, all accrued but
unpaid cash dividends, whether or not declared, payable to holders of Initial Preferred Stock
shall be canceled.

(d)  Procedure for Automatic Conversion. As of the date of, and in all cases subject

to, the consummation of a Qualified Public Offering, all’ outstanding shares of Initial Preferred
Stock shall be converted automatically, without further action, into the number of shares of
Common Stock provided for in Section A.3(a), and such number of shares of Common Stock
into which the Initial Preferred Stock is converted shall be deemed to have been issued to the

-5-

PAMR AN0A0A A



holders of Initial Preferred Stock. Such holders shall as soon as practicable thereafter surrender
the certificate or certificates evidencing the Initial Preferred Stock, duly assigned or endorsed for
transfer to the Corporation (or accompanied by duly executed stock powers relating thereto) or
an Affidavit of Loss with respect thereto. Upon surrender of such certificates or delivery of an
Affidavit of Loss with respect thereto, the Corporation shall issue and deliver to such holder so
surrendering such certificates or to such holder’s designee, promptly (and in any event in such
time as is sufficient to enable such holder to participate in such Qualified Public Offering) at an
address designated by such holder, certificates for the number of shares of Common Stock into
which such holder’s Initial Preferred Stock shall have been converted. :

()  Fractional Shares; Partial Conversion. No fractional shares shall be issued upon
conversion of any shares of Initial Preferred Stock. All shares of Common Stock (including
fractions thereof) issuable upon conversion of Initial Preferred Stock by a holder thereof shall be
aggregated for purposes of determining whether the conversion would result in the issuance of
any fractional share. If any fractional interest in a share of Common Stock would, except for the
provisions of the first sentence of this paragraph (e), be delivered upon any such conversion, the
Corporation, in lieu of delivering the fractional share thercof, shall pay to the holder surrendering
the Initial Preferred Stock for conversion an amount in cash equal to the current fair market value
of such fractional interest as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors. In case the
number of shares of Initial Preferred Stock represented by the certificate or certificates
surrendered for conversion cxceeds the number of shares converted, the Corporation shall, upon
such conversion, execute and deliver to the holder thereof, at the expense of the Corporation, a
new certificate or certificates for the number of shares of Initial Preferred Stock represented by
the certificate or certificates surrendered that are not to be converted.

4. Adjustments.

(a) Adjustments for Subdivisions. Combinations or Conselidation of Common Stock.
In the event the outstanding shares of Common Stock shall be subdivided by stock split, stock
dividends or otherwise, into a greater number of shares of Common Stock, the Initial Conversion
Ratio then in effect with respect to Initial Preferred Stock shall, concurrently with the
effectiveness of such subdivision, be proportionaiely increased so that the number of shares of
Common Stock issuable on conversion of any shares of Initial Preferred Stock shall be increased
in proportion to such increase in outstanding shares. In the event the cutstanding shares of
Common Stock shall be combined or consolidated, by reclassification or otherwise, into a lesser
number of shares of Common Stock, the Initial Conversion Ratio then in effect with respect to
Initial Preferred Stock shall, concurrently with the cffectiveness of such combination or
consolidation, be proportionately decreased so that the number of shares of Common Stock
issuable on conversion of any shares of Initial Preferred Stock shall be decreased in proportion to
such decrease in outstanding shares.

(b) Adjustments for Reclassification, Exchange and Substitution. If the Common
Stock issuable upon conversion of the Initial Preferred Stock shall be changed into the same or a
different number of shares of any other class or classes of stock or into any other securities or
property, whether by capital reorganization, reclassification, merger, combination of shares,
recapitalization, consolidation, business combination or other similar transaction (other than a
subdivision or combination of shares provided for above), each share of Initial Preferred Stock
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shall thereafter be convertible into the number of shares of stock or other securities or property to
which a holder of the number of shares of Common Stock of the Corporation deliverable upon
conversion of such share of Initial Preferred Stock shall have been entitled upon such capital
reorganization, reclassification, merger, combination of shares, recapitalization, consolidation,
business combination or other similar transaction if immediately prior to such capital
reorganization, reclassification, merger, combination of shares, recapitalization, consolidation,
business combination or other similar transaction such holder had converted such holder’s Initial
Preferred Stock into Common Stock. The provisions of this Section A.4(b) shall similarly apply
to successive capital reorganizations, reclassifications, mergers, combinations of shares,
recapitalizations, consolidations, business combinations or other transactions. The Corporation
shall not effect any Sale of the Corporation that is not, in accordance with Section A.2(b) hereof,
a Liquidation Event unless prior to or simultaneously with the consummation thereof the
successor Corporation or purchaser, as the case may be, shall assume by written instrument the
obligation to deliver to the holders of Initial Preferred Stock such shares of stock, securities or
assets as, in accordance with the foregoing provisions, each such holder is entitled to receive.

{c) Certificate_as to Adjustments. Upon the occurrence of each adjustment or

readjustment of the Initial Conversion Ratio pursuant to this Section A.4, the Corporation at its
expense shall promptly compute such adjustment or readjustment in accordance with the terms
hereof and furnish to each holder of Initial Preferred Stock a certificate setting forth such
adjustment or readjustment and showing in detail the facts upon which such adjustment or
readjustment is based and the Initial Conversion Ratio then in effect. The Corporation shall,
upon the written request at any time by any holder of Initial Preferred Stock, furnish or cause to
be furnished to such holder a like certificate setting forth (i) such adjustments and readjustments,
(ii) the Initial Conversion Ratio at the time in effect, and (iii) the number of shares of Common
Stock and the amount, if any, of other property that at the time would be received upon the
conversion of such holder’s Initial Preferred Stock.

(d)  Rounding. All calculations under this Section A.4 shall be made to the nearest
share.

5. Reservation of Stock Issuable Upon Conversion. The Corporation shall at all

times reserve and keep available out of its authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock,
solely for the purpose of effecting the conversion of the issued or issuable shares of Initial
Preferred Stock, such number of its shares of Common Stock as the case may be, as shall from
time to time be sufficient to effect the conversion of all outstanding shares of Initial Preferred
Stock, and if at any time the number of authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock shall
not be sufficient to effect the conversion of all then outstanding shares of Initial Preferred Stock,
the Corporation will take all such corporate action as may be necessary to increase its authorized
but unissued shares of Common Stock to such number of shares as shall be sufficient for such

purpose.

6. No Closing of Transfer Books. The Corporation shall not close its books against
the transfer of shares of Initial Preferred Stock in any manner that would interfere with the timely
conversion of any shares of Initial Preferred Stock in accordance with the provisions hereof.
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7. Notice.

(a) Liquidation Events, Extraordinary Transactions, Etc. In the event (i) the
Corporation establishes a record date to determine the holders of any class of securities who are
entitled to receive any dividend or other distribution or who are entitled to vote at a meeting (or
by written consent) in connection with any Liquidation Event or (ii) any Liquidation Event is
approved by the Board of Directors and the Corporation enters into any agreement with respect
thereto, the Corporation shall mail or cause to be mailed by first class mail (postage prepaid) to
each holder of Initial Preferred Stock at least ten (10) days prior to such record date specified
therein or the expected effective date of any such transaction, a notice specifying (A) the date of
such record date for the purpose of such dividend or distribution or meeting or consent and a
description of such dividend or distribution or the action to be taken at such meeting or by such
consent, (B) the date on which any such Liquidation Event is expected to become effective and,
in the case of a Sale of the Corporation, the identity of the parties thereto, and (C) the date on
which the books of the Corporation shall close or a record shall be taken with respect to any such
event.

(b) Waiver of Notice. The Requisite Initial Shareholders may at any time upon
written notice to the Corporation waive, either prospectively or retrospectively, any notice
provisions specified herein, and any such waiver shall be effective as to all holders of Initial
Preferred Stock.

(c) General. In the event that the Corporation provides any notice, report or
statement to all holders of Common Stock, the Corporation shall at the same time provide a copy
of any such notice, report or statement to each holder of outstanding shares of Initial Preferred
Stock.

8. Voting.

(a) Voting Generally. Except as otherwise required by law or provided in Section
A.8(b) hereof, the holder of each share of Initial Preferred Stock shall vote with holders of
Common Stock, voting together as single class, upon all matters submitted to a vote of
shareholders. For such purpose, each holder of Initial Preferred Stock shall be entitled to the
number of votes per share of Initial Preferred Stock as equals the largest number of shares of
Common Stock into which each share of Initial Preferred Stock may be converted pursuant to
Section A.3 hereof on the record date fixed for the determination of shareholders entitled to vote
or on the effective date of any written consent of shareholders, as applicable. Fractional votes
shall not, however, be permitted and any fractional voting rights resulting from the above
formula with respect to any holder of Initial Preferred Stock shall be rounded to the nearest
whole number (with one-half rounded upward to one). There shall be no cumulative voting.

(b)  Class Voting. The holders of Initial Preferred Stock shall vote as a separate single
class on any proposed amendment to these Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation
which will adversely affect the rights, privileges, and preferences of Initial Preferred Stock or
otherwise designate a class of Preferred Stock that will have rights, privileges and preferences
pari passu or senior to those of Initial Preferred Stock.
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B.  SERIES A PREFERRED STOCK

The second series of Preferred Stock shall be designated “Series A Preferred Stock™ and
shall consist of One Million Five Hundred Thousand (1,500,000) shares. The rights, preferences,
privileges, and restrictions granted to and imposed on the Series A Preferred Stock are as set
forth below.

I.  Dividends.

The holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall participate in all dividends and other
distributions (other than stock dividends in the nature of a stock split or the like and repurchases
of securities by the Corporation not made on a pro rata basis from all holders of any class of the
Corporation’s capital stock) that are declared and paid on Common Stock on the same basis as if
each share of Series A Preferred Stock had been converted into Common Stock in accordance
with Section B.3 hereof immediately prior to the record date established for such dividends.

2. Liquidation Preference.

(@)  Upon the occurrence of a Liquidation Event, each holder of Series A Preferred
Stock shall be entitled, after provision for the payment of the Corporation’s debts and other
liabilities and in parity with the holders of Initial Preferred Stock and in preference to, and,
before any amount or property shall be paid or distributed on account of any “Junior Securities”
(as defined above), to be paid in full in cash with respect to each share of Series A Preferred
Stock out of the assets of the Corporation available for distribution to shareholders, an amount
equal to the “Series A Purchase Price” (as defined below). If upon any Liquidation Event the
amount available for distribution among the holders of all outstanding Initial Preferred Stock and
Series A Preferred Stock is insufficient to permit the payment of the Initial Purchase Price to the
holders of Initial Preferred Stock and the Series A Purchase Price to the holders of Series A
Preferred Stock, in full, then the amount available for distribution shall be distributed among the
holders of the Initial Preferred Stock and the holders of Series A Preferred Stock ratably in
proportion to the relative Initial Purchase Price of the Initial Preferred Stock and the Series A
Purchase Price of the Series A Preferred Stock held by such holders, and the holders of Common
Stock, Series B Preferred Stock and of any other Junior Securities shall in no event be entitled to
participate in the distribution of any assets of the Corporation in respect of their ownership
thereof. Upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, whether voluntary
or involuntary, after the holders of Initial Preferred Stock and the holders of Series A Preferred
Stock shall have been paid in full the preferential amounts to which they shall be entitled to
receive on account of their Initial Preferred Stock and Series A Preferred Stock as provided in
Section A.2(a) and this Section B.2(a), respectively, then the holders of Series B Preferred Stock
shall be paid in full the preferential amount to which they shall be entitled to receive on account
of their Series B Preferred Stock as provided in Section C.2(a), and finally any remaining net
assets of the Corporation shall be distributed ratably among the holders of Initial Preferred Stock,
Series A Preferred Stock, Series B Preferred Stock and Common Stock (with each share of Initial
Preferred Stock, each share of Series A Preferred Stock, and each share of Series B Preferred
Stock being deemed for such purpose to equal the number of shares of Common Stock, including
fractions thereof, into which such share of Initial Preferred Stock, such share of Series A
Preferred Stock and such share of Series B Preferred Stock is convertible in accordance with the
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provisions of Section A.3, Section B.3, and Section C.3 respectively, hercof). Upon any (i) “Sale
of the Corporation” or (ii} rcorganization of the Corporation required by any court or
administrative body in order to comply with any provision of law, after the holders of Initial
Preferred Stock and the holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall have been paid in full the
preferential amounts to which they shail be entitled to receive on account of their Initial
Preferred Stock and Sertes A Preferred Stock as provided in Section A.2(a) and this Section
" B.2(a), respectively, any remaining net assets of the Corporation shall be distributed ratably
among the holders of Initial Preferred Stock, Series A Preferred Stock, Series B Preferred Stock
and Common Stock (with each share of Initial Preferred Stock, each share of Series A Preferred
Stock, and each share of Series B Preferred Stock being deemed for such purpose to equal the
number of shares of Common Stock, including fractions thereof, into which such share of Initial
Preferred Stock, such share of Series A Preferred Stock and such share of Series B Preferred
Stock is convertible in accordance with the provisions of Section A.3, Section B.3, and Section
C.3 respectively, hereof).

“Series A Purchase Price” means $4.00 per share of Series A Preferred Stock (as
equitably adjusted to reflect any stock split, stock dividend, combination, reorganization,
recapitalization, reclassification or other similar event invoiving the Series A Preferred Stock
after the date these Articles of Incorporation are filed with the Office of the Secretary of State of
Florida in accordance with the Act).

(b) Consolidation. Merger, etc. Notwithstanding Section B.2(a) hereof, neither a Saie
of the Corporation nor any rcorganization of the Corporation of the type referenced in clause (iii)
of Section A.2(a) hereof shall be decmed to be a Liquidation Event for the purposes of this
Section B.2 if the holders of more than fifty percent (50%) of the issued and outstanding Series
A Preferred Stock (the “Requisite Series A Shareholders™) waive in writing the provisions of this
Section B.2 with respect to such event.

(c) . No Effect on Conversion Rights. The provisions of this Section B.2 shall not in
any way limit the right of the holders of Series A Preferred Stock to elect to convert their shares
of Series A Preferred Stock into shares of Common Stock in accordance with Section B.3 hereof
prior to or in connection with any Liguidation Event.

3. ‘Conversion_inte Common Stock. The holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall

have the following conversion rights:

(a) Voluntary Conversion. At any time, each holder of Series A Preferred Stock shall
be entitled, without the payment of any additional consideration, to cause all or any portion of
the shares of Series A Preferred Stock held by such holder to be converted into a number of
shares of fully paid and nonassessable Common Stock determined as hereafter provided in this
Section B.3(a). The shares of Scries A Preferred Stock shall convert into shares of Common
Stock at a ratio of one 1o one (the “Series A Conversion Ratio”), such that the Series A
Conversion Ratio would result in one share of Common Stock being issued upon the conversion
of one share of Series A Preferred Stock. The number of shares of Common Stock into which
shares of Series A Preferred Stock are convertible and the Series A Conversion Ratio are subject
to adjustment from time to time as hereafier provided.
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(b)  Procedure for Voluntary Conversion: Effective Date. Upon the election to
convert the Series A Preferred Stock made in accordance with Section B.3(a) hereof, the holders
of the Series A Preferred Stock making such election shall provide written notice of such
conversion (the “Series A Voluntary Conversion Notice”) to the Corporation setting forth the
number of shares of Series A Preferred Stock each such holder elects to convert into Common
Stock (the “Elected Series A Preferred Stock™). On the date the Series A Voluntary Conversion
Notice is delivered to the Corporation, such shares of Elected Series A Preferred Stock shall
thereupon be converted, without further action, into the number of shares of Common Stock
provided for in Section B.3(a) hereof, and such number of shares of Common Stock into which
the Elected Series A Preferred Stock is converted shall thereupon be deemed to have been issued
to such holders of the Elected Series A Preferred Stock. Such holders shall as soon as
practicable thereafter surrender to the Corporation at the Corporation’s principal executive office
the certificate or certificates evidencing the Elected Series A Preferred Stock, duly assigned or
endorsed for transfer to the Corporation (or accompanied by duly executed stock powers relating
thereto), or an Affidavit of Loss. Upon surrender of such certificates or delivery of an Affidavit
of Loss with respect thereto, the Corporation shall issue and deliver to the holder so surrendering
such certificates or to such holder’s designee, at an address designated by such holder,
certificates for the number of shares of Common Stock into which such holder’s Elected Series
A Preferred Stock shall have been converted. The issuance of certificates for shares of Common
Stock upon conversion of Elected Series A Preferred Stock will be made without charge to the
holders of such shares for any issuance tax in respect thereof or other costs incurred by the
Corporation in connection with such conversion and the related issuance of such stock.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Section B.3(c), in the event that the
holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock elect to convert such shares pursuant to
Section B.3(a) hereof in connection with any Liquidation Event or any other specified event, (i)
such conversion may at the election of such holders be conditioned upon the consummation of
such Liquidation Event or the occurrence of such other specified event, in which case, such
conversion shall not be deemed to be effective until the consummation of such Liquidation Event
or the occurrence of such other specified event and (ii) if such Liquidation Event or other
specified event is consummated or occurs, all shares of Elected Series A Preferred Stock shall be
deemed to have been converted into shares of Common Stock immediately prior thereto.

(c) Automatic _Conversion. Each share of Series A Preferred Stock shall
automatically be converted, without the payment of any additional consideration, into the
number of shares of Common Stock provided for in Section B.3(a) immediately upon a Qualified
Public Offering; provided that if a Qualified Public Offering is consummated, all outstanding
shares of Series A Preferred Stock shall be deemed to have been converted into shares of
Common Stock as provided in this Section B.3 immediately prior to such consummation. Upon
the consummation of a Qualified Public Offering, all accrued but unpaid cash dividends, whether
or not declared, payable to holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall be canceled.

(d) Procedure for Automatic Conversion. As of the date of, and in all cases subject
to, the consummation of a Qualified Public Offering, all outstanding shares of Series A Preferred
Stock shall be converted automatically, without further action, into the number of shares of
Common Stock provided for in Section B.3(a), and such number of shares of Common Stock
into which the Series A Preferred Stock is converted shall be deemed to have been issued to the
holders of Series A Preferred Stock. Such holders shall as soon as practicable thercafter
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surrender the certificate or certificates evidencing the Series A Preferred Stock, duly assigned or
endorsed for transfer to the Corporation (or accompanied by duly executed stock powers relating
thereto) or an Affidavit of Loss with respect thereto. Upon surrender of such certificates or
delivery of an Affidavit of Loss with respect thereto, the Corporation shall issue and deliver to
such holder so surrendering such certificates or to such holder’s designee, promptly (and in any
event in such time as is sufficient to enable such holder to participate in such Qualified Public
Offering) at an address designated by such holder, certificates for the number of shares of
Common Stock into which such holder’s Series A Preferred Stock shall have been converted.

(¢)  Fractional Shares; Partial Conversion. No fractional shares shall be issued upon

conversion of any shares of Series A Preferred Stock. All shares of Common Stock (including
fractions thereof) issuable upon conversion of Series A Preferred Stock by a holder thereof shall
be aggregated for purposes of determining whether the conversion would result in the issuance of
any fractional share. If any fractional interest in a share of Common Stock would, except for the
provisions of the first sentence of this paragraph (e), be delivered upon any such conversion, the
Corporation, in lieu of delivering the fractional share thereof, shall pay to the holder surrendering
the Series A Preferred Stock for conversion an amount in cash equal to the current fair market
value of such fractional interest as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors. In case
the number of shares of Series A Preferred Stock represented by the certificate or certificates
surrendered for conversion exceeds the number of shares converted, the Corporation shall, upon
such conversion, execute and deliver to the holder thereof, at the expense of the Corporation, a
new certificate or certificates for the number of shares of Series A Preferred Stock represented
by the certificate or certificates surrendered that are not to be converted.

4. Adjustments.
(a) Adjustments for Subdivisions, Combinations or Consolidation of Common Stock.

In the event the outstanding shares of Common Stock shall be subdivided by stock split, stock
dividends or otherwise, into a greater number of shares of Common Stock, the Series A
Conversion Ratio then in effect with respect to Series A Preferred Stock shall, concurrently with
the effectiveness of such subdivision, be proportionately increased so that the number of shares
of Common Stock issuable on conversion of any shares of Series A Preferred Stock shall be
increased in proportion to such increase in outstanding shares. In the event the outstanding
shares of Common Stock shall be combined or consolidated, by reclassification or otherwise,
into a lesser number of shares of Common Stock, the Series A Conversion Ratio then in effect
with respect to Series A Preferred Stock shall, concurrently with the effectiveness of such
combination or consclidation, be proportionately decreased so that the number of shares of
Common Stock issuable on conversion of any shares of Series A Preferred Stock shali be
decreased in proportion to such decrease in outstanding shares.

(b)  Adiustments for Reclassification, Exchange and Substitution. If the Common

Stock issuable upon conversion of the Series A Preferred Stock shall be changed into the same or
a different number of shares of any other class or classes of stock or into any other securities or
property, whether by capital reorganization, reclassification, merger, combination of shares,
recapitalization, consolidation, business combination or other similar transaction (other than a
subdivision or combination of shares provided for above), each share of Series A Preferred Stock
shall thereafter be convertible into the number of shares of stock or other securities or property to
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which a holder of the number of shares of Common Stock of the Corporation deliverable upon
conversion of such share of Series A Preferred Stock shall have been entitled upon such capital
reorganization, reclassification, merger, combination of shares, recapitalization, consolidation,
business combination or other similar transaction if immediately prior to such capital
reorganization, reclassification, merger, combination of shares, recapitalization, consolidation,
business combination or other similar transaction such holder had converted such holder’s
Series A Preferred Stock into Common Stock. The provisions of this Section B.4(b) shall
similarly apply to successive capital reorganizations, reclassifications, mergers, combinations of
shares, recapitalizations, consolidations, . business combinations or other transactions. The
Corporation shall not effect any Sale of the Corporation that is not, in accordance with
Section B.2(b) hereof, a Liquidation Event unless prior to or simultaneously with the
consummation thereof the successor Corporation or purchaser, as the case may be, shall assume
by written instrument the obligation to deliver to the holders of Series A Preferred Stock such
shares of stock, securities or assets as, in accordance with the foregoing provisions, each such
holder is entitled to receive.

(¢)  Certificate as to Adjustments. Upon the occurrence of each adjustment or
readjustment of the Series A Conversion Ratio pursuant to this Section B.4, the Corporation at its
expense shall promptly compute such adjustment or readjustment in accordance with the terms
hereof and furnish to each holder of Series A Preferred Stock a certificate setting forth such
adjustment or readjustment and showing in detail the facts upon which such adjustment or
readjustment is based and the Series A Conversion Ratio then in effect. The Corporation shall,
upon the written request at any time by any holder of Series A Preferred Stock, furnish or cause
to be furnished to such holder a like certificate setting forth (i) such adjustments and
readjustments, (ii) the Series A Conversion Ratio at the time in effect, and (iii) the number of
shares of Common Stock and the amount, if any, of other property that at the time would be
received upon the conversion of such holder’s Series A Preferred Stock.

(d) Rounding. All calculations under this Section B.4 shall be made to the nearest
share.

5. Reservation of Stock [ssuable Upon Conversion. The Corporation shall at all

times reserve and keep available out of its authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock,
solely for the purpose of effecting the conversion of the issued or issuable shares of Series A
Preferred Stock, such number of its shares of Common Stock as the case may be, as shall from
time to time be sufficient to effect the conversion of all outstanding shares of Series A Preferred
Stock, and if at any time the number of authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock shall
not be sufficient to effect the conversion of all then outstanding shares of Series A Preferred
Stock, the Corporation will take all such corporate action as may be necessary to increase its
authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock to such number of shares as shall be sufficient
for such purpose. '

6. No Closing of Transfer Books. The Corporation shall not close its books against
the transfer of shares of Series A Preferred Stock in any manner that would interfere with the

timely conversion of any shares of Series A Preferred Stock in accordance with the provisions
hereof.
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7. Notice.

(a) Liquidation Events, Extraordinary Transactions, Etc, In the event (i) the
Corporation establishes a record date to determine the holders of any class of securities who are
cntitled to receive any dividend or other distribution or who are entitled (o vote at a meeting (or
by written _consent) in connection with any Liquidation Event or (ii} any Liquidation Event iy
approved by the Board of Directors and the Corporation enters into any agreement with respect
thereto, the Corporation shall mail or cause to be mailed by first class mail (postage prepaid) to
each holder of Series A Preferred Stock at least ten {10) days prior to such record date specified
therein or the expected effective date of any such transaction, a notice specifying (A) the date of
such record date for the purpose of such dividend or distribution or meeting or consent and a
description of such dividend or distribution or the action to be taken al such meeting or by such
consent, (B) the date on which any such Liquidation Event is expected to become effective and,
in the case of a Sale of the Corporation, the identity of the parties thereto, and (C) the date on
which the books of the Corporation shall close or a record shall be taken with respect to any such
cvent.

(b) Waiver of Notice. The Requisite Series A Shareholders may at any time upon written
notice to the Corporation waive, either prospectively or retrospectively, any notice provisions
specified herein, and any such waiver shall be effective as to all holders of Series A Preferred
Stock.

(¢)  General. In the event that the Corporation provides any notice, report or
statement to all holders of Common Stock, the Corporation shall at the same time provide a copy
of any such notice, report or statement to each holder of outstanding shares of Series A Preferred
Stock.

8. Voting.

(a) Voting Generally. Except as otherwise required by law or provided in Section
B.8(b) hereof, the holder of each share of Series A Preferred Stock shall vote with holders of
Common Stock, voting together as single class, upon all matters submitted to a vote of
shareholders. For such purpose, each holder of Series A Preferred Stock shall be entitled to the
number of votes per share of Series A Preferrcd Stock as equals the largest number of shares of
Common Stock into which each share of Series A Preferred Stock may be converted pursuant to
Section B.3 hereof on the record date fixed for the determination of shareholders entitled to vote
or on the effective date of any written consent of sharcholders, as applicablc. Fractional votes
shall not, however, be permittcd and any fractional voting rights resulting from the above
formula with respect to any holder of Series A Preferred Stock shall be rounded to the nearest
whole number (with one-half rounded upward to one). There shall be no cumuiative voting..

(b) Class Voting. The holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall vote as a separate
single class on any proposed amendment to these Amended and Restated Articles of
Incorporation which will adversely affect the rights, privileges, and preferences of Series A
Preferred Stock or otherwise designate a class of Preferred Stock that will have rights, privileges
and preferences pari passu or senior to those of Series A Preferred Stock.
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9. Participation Rights. If the Company proposes to issue any Common Stock or any
securities of the Company which entitle the holder thereof to acquire Common Stock
(collectively, “New Issue Securities”), the Company shall first offer the New Issue Securities to
the holders of Series A Preferred Stock in accordance with the following provisions:

(a) The Company shall give a written notice to the holders of Series A Preferred
Stock (the “Participation Notice™) stating (i) its intention to issue the New Issue Securities, (ii)
the number and description of the New Issue Securities proposed to be issued and (iii) the
proposed purchase price (calculated as of the proposed issuance date) and the other terms and
conditions upon which the Company is proposing to offer the New Issue Securities.

(b)  Transmittal of the Participation Notice to the holders of Series A Preferred Stock
by the Company shall constitute an offer by the Company to sell each holder of Series A
Preferred Stock the number of New Issue Securities in order for the holder to maintain an
equivalent percentage ownership in the Company (assuming the conversion of all outstanding
Preferred Stock into Common Stock and the exercise of all outstanding options of the Company,
as of the date of the Participation Notice) for the price and upon the terms and conditions set
forth in the Participation Notice. For a period of five (5) business days after receipt of the of the
Participation Notice to the holders of Series A Preferred Stock, each holder of Series A Preferred
Stock shall have the option, exercisable by written notice to the Company, to accept (the "Notice
of Acceptance") the Company’s offer as to all or any part of such holder’s proportionate number
of the New Issue Securities. If two or more types of New Issue Securities are to be issued or
New Issue Securities are to be issued together with other types of securities, including, without
limitation, debt securities, in a single transaction or related transactions, the rights to purchase
New Issue Securities granted to the holders of Series A Preferred Stock under this Section must
be exercised to purchase all types of New Issue Securities and such other securities in the same
proportion as such New Issue Securities and other securities are to be issued by the Company.

(¢) The Company shall have ninety (90) days after the date of the Participation
Notice to offer, issue, sell or exchange all or any part of the New Issue Securities as to which a
Notice of Acceptance has not been given by the holders of Series A Preferred Stock, but only
upon terms and conditions that are not more favorable to the acquiring person or persons or less
favorable to the Company than those set forth in the Participation Notice.

(d)  The participation rights contained in this Section shall not apply to the issuance
and sale by the Company, from time to time hereafter, of (i) shares of the Common Stock or any
securities of the Company which entitle the holder thereof to acquire Common Stock to
employees, officers, or directors of, or consultants to, the Company, as compensation for their
services to the Company pursuant to arrangements approved by the Board of Directors, (ii)
shares of Common Stock issued and sold in a firm commitment underwritten public offering
(which shall not include an equity line of credit or similar financing arrangement) resulting in net
proceeds to the Company of in excess of $15,000,000 or (iii) shares of Common Stock issued as
consideration for the acquisition of another company or business in which the shareholders of the
Company do not have a majority ownership interest, which acquisition has been approved by the
Board of Directors or (iv) shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of outstanding
securities of the Company which entitle the holder thereof to acquire Common Stock (but not
amendments thereto).
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10. Registration Rights.

(a) Form S-3 Demand. If at any time when it is eligible to use a Form S-3
registration statement, the Company receives a request from holders of at least 50% of the Series
A Preferred Stock then outstanding (“Initiating Series A Holders™) that the Company file a Form
S-3 registration statement with respect to the shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion
of such holder’s Series A Preferred Stock having an anticipated aggregate offering price, of at
least $5 million, then the Company shall (i) within ten (10) days after the date such request is
given, give notice thereof (the “Series A Demand Notice”) to all holders of Series A Preferred
Stock other than the Initiating Series A Holders; and (ii) as soon as practicable, and in any event
within one hundred twenty days (120) after the date such request is given by the Initiating Series
A Holders, file a Form S-3 registration statement under the Securities Act covering all shares of
Common Stock issuable upon conversion of Series A Preferred Stock requested to be included in
such registration by any other holders, as specified by notice given by each such holder to the
Company within twenty (20) days of the date the Series A Demand Notice is given, and in each
case, subject to the limitations of Section B.10(b).

(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing obligations, if the Company furnishes to holders
requesting a registration pursuant to Section B.10(a) a certificate signed by the Company’s chief
executive officer stating that in the good faith judgment of the Board of Directors it would be
materially detrimental to the Company and its stockholders for such registration statement to
either become effective or remain effective for as long as such registration statement otherwise
would be required to remain effective, because such action would (i) materially interfere with a
significant acquisition, corporate reorganization, or other similar transaction involving the
Company; (ii) require premature disclosure of material information that the Company has a bona
fide business purpose for preserving as confidential; or (iii) render the Company unable to
comply with requirements under the Securities Act or Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, then the Company shall have the right to defer taking action with respect to such
filing, and any time periods with respect to filing or effectiveness thereof shall be tolled
correspondingly, for a period of not more than one hundred twenty (120) days after the request
of the Initiating Series A Holders is given; provided, however, that the Company may not invoke
this right more than once in any twelve (12) month period.

(c) Company Registration. If the Company proposes to register any of its Common
Stock under the Securities Act, in connection with the public offering of such securities solely
for cash, other than (i) a registration relating to the sale of securitics to employees of the
Company pursuant to a stock option, stock purchase, or similar plan; (ii) a registration relating to
transaction pursuant to Rule 145 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under
the Securities Act; or (iii) a registration in which the only Common Stock being registered is
Common Stock issuable upon conversion of debt securities that are also being registered, the
Company shall, at such time, promptly give each holder of Series A Preferred Stock notice of
such registration. Upon the request of each such holder given within twenty (20) days after such
notice is given by the Company, the Company shall cause to be registered all of the shares of
Common Stock issuable upon conversion of such holder’s Series A Preferred Stock that each
such holder has requested to be included in such registration.
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(d) Obligations of the Company. Whenever required under this Section B.10 to effect
the registration of any shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of Series A Preferred

Stock, the Company shall, as expeditiously as reasonably possible:

(i) prepare and file with the SEC a registration statement with respect to such
securities and use its commercially reasonable efforts to cause such registration statement to
become effective and, upon the request of the holders of a majority of the Series A Preferred
Stock requesting registration, keep such registration statement effective for a period of up to one
hundred twenty (120) days or, if earlier, until the distribution contemplated in the registration
statement has been completed; and

(i)  prepare and file with the SEC such amendments and supplements to such
registration statement, and the prospectus used in connection with such registration statement, as
may be necessary to comply with the Securities Act in order to enable the disposition of all
securities covered by such registration statement.

(e) Furnish Information. [t shall be a condition precedent to the obligations of the
Company to take any action pursuant to this Section B.10 with respect to the Common Stock
issuable upon conversion of any selling holder that such holder shall furnish to the Company
such information regarding itself, the securities held by it, and the intended method of disposition
of such securities as is reasonably required to effect the registration.

§3) Indemnification. If any securities are included in a registration statement under
this Section B.10:

(1) To the extent permitted by law, the Company will indemnify and hold
harmless each selling holder, and the partners, members, officers, directors, and stockholders of
each such holder; legal counsel and accountants for each such holder; any underwriter (as
defined in the Securities Act) for each such holder; and each person, if any, who controls such
holder or underwriter within the meaning of the Securities Act, against any damages, and the
Company will pay to each such holder, underwriter, controlling person, or other aforementioned
person any legal or other expenses reasonably incurred thereby in connection with investigating
or defending any claim or proceeding from which damages may result, as such expenses are
incurred; provided, however, that the indemnity agreement contained in this Section shall not
apply to amounts paid in settlement of any such claim or proceeding if such settlement is
effected without the consent of the Company, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld,
nor shall the Company be liable for any damages to the extent that they arise out of or are based
upon actions or omissions made in reliance upon and in conformity with written information
furnished by or on behalf of any such holder, underwriter, controlling person, or other
aforementioned person expressly for use in connection with such registration.

(ii)  To the extent permitted by law, each selling holder, severally and not
jointly, will indemnify and hold harmless the Company, and each of its directors, each of its
officers who has signed the registration statement, each person, if any, who controls the
Company within the meaning of the Securities Act, legal counsel and accountants for the
Company, any underwriter (as defined in the Securities Act), any other holder selling securities
in such registration statement, and any controlling person of any such underwriter or other
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holder, against any damages, in each case only to the extent that such damages arise out of or are
based upon actions or omissions made in reliance upon and in conformity with written
information furnished by or on behalf of such selling holder expressly for use in connection with
such registration; and each such selling holder will pay to the Company and each other
aforementioned person any legal or other expenses reasonably incurred thereby in connection
with investigating or defending any claim or proceeding from which damages may result, as such
expenses are incurred; provided, however, that the indemnity agreement contained in this Section
shall not apply to amounts paid in settlement of any such claim or proceeding if such settlement
is effected without the consent of the holder, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld;
and provided further that in no event shall any indemnity under this Section exceed the proceeds
from the offering received by such holder, except in the case of fraud or willful misconduct by
such holder.

C. SERIES B PREFERRED STOCK

The third series of Preferred Stock shall be designated “Series B Preferred Stock™ and
shall consist of Three Millien (3,000,000) shares. The rights, preferences, privileges, and
restrictions granted to and imposed on the Series B Preferred Stock are as set forth below.

1. Dividends.

The holders of Series B Preferred Stock shall participate in all dividends and other
distributions (other than siock dividends in the nature of a stock split or the like and repurchases
of securities by the Corporation not made on a pro rata basis from all holders of any class of the
Corporation’s capital stock) that are declared and paid on Common Stock on the same basis as if
each share-of Series B Preferred Stock had been converted into Common Stock in accordance
with Section C.3 hereof immediately prior to the record date established for such dividends.

2. Liquidation Preference.

(@) Upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, whether
voluntary or involuntary, each holder of Series B Preferred Stock shall be entitled, after
provision for the payment of the Corporation’s debts and other liabilities and after the holders of
Initial Preferred Stock and Series A Preferred Stock shall have been paid in full the preferential
amounts to which they shall be entitled to receive on account of their Initial Preferred Stock and
Series A Preferred Stock as provided in Section A.2(a) and Section B.2(a), and in preference to,
and, before any amount or property shall be paid or distributed on account of any “Junior
Securities,” to be paid in full in cash with respect to each share of Series B Preferred Stock out of
the assets of the Corporation available for distribution to shareholders, an amount equal to the
“Series B Purchase Price.” I upen any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation,
whether voluntary or involuntary the amount available for distribution among the holders of all
outstanding Series B Preferred Stock is insufficient to permit the payment of the Series B
Purchase Price to the holders of Series B Preferred Stock, in full, then the amount available for
distribution shall be distributed among the holders of the Series B Preferred Stock ratably in
proportion to the relative Series B Purchase Price of the Series B Preferred Stock held by such
holders, and the holders of Commen Stock and of any other Junior Securities shall in no event be
entitled to participate in the distribution of any assets of the Corporation in respect of their
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ownership thereof. Upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, whether
voluntary or involuntary, after the holders of Series B Preferred Stock shall have been paid in
full the preferential amounts to which they shall be entitled to receive on account of their Series
B Preferred Stock as provided in this Section C.2(a), any remaining net assets of the Corporation
shall be distributed ratably among the holders of Initial Preferred Stock, Series A Preferred
Stock, Series B Preferred Stock and Common Stock (with each share of Initial Preferred Stock,
each share of Series A Preferred Stock, and each share of Series B Preferred Stock being deemed
for such purpose to equal the number of shares of Common Stock, including fractions thereof,
into which such share of Initial Preferred Stock, such share of Series A Preferred Stock and such
share of Series B Preferred Stock is convertible in accordance with the provisions of Section A.3,
Section B.3, and Section C.3 respectively, hereof). Upon any (i) “Sale of the Corporation” or (ii)
reorganization of the Corporation required by any court or administrative body in order to
comply with any provision of law, after the holders of Initial Preferred Stock and the holders of
Series A Preferred Stock shall have been paid in full the preferential amounts to which they shall
be entitled to receive on account of their Initial Preferred Stock and Series A Preferred Stock as
provided in Section A.2(a) and Section B.2(a), respectively, any remaining net assets of the
Corporation shall be distributed ratably among the holders of Initial Preferred Stock, Series A
Preferred Stock, Series B Preferred Stock and Common Stock (with each share of Initial
Preferred Stock, each share of Series A Preferred Stock, and cach share of Series B Preferred
Stock being deemed for such purpose to equal the number of shares of Common Stock, including
fractions thereof, into which such share of Initial Preferred Stock, such share of Series A
Preferred Stock and such share of Series B Preferred Stock is convertible in accordance with the
provisions of Section A.3, Section B.3, and Section C.3 respectively, hereof).

“Series B Purchase -Price” means the price per share paid by a holder of Series B
Preferred Stock for such Series B Preferred Stock (as equitably adjusted to reflect any stock split,
stock dividend, combination, reorganization, recapitalization, reclassification or other similar
event involving the Series B Preferred Stock after the date these Articles of Incorporation are
filed with the Office of the Secretary of State of Florida in accordance with the Act).

(b) Consolidation, Merger, etc. Notwithstanding Section C.2(a) hereof, neither a Sale
of the Corporation nor any reorganization of the Corporation of the type referenced in clause (iii)
of Section A.2(a) hereof shall be deemed to be a Liquidation Event for the purposes of this
Section C.2 if the holders of more than fifty percent (50%) of the issued and outstanding Series B
Preferred Stock (the “Requisite Series B Shareholders™) waive in writing the provisions of this
Section C.2 with respect to such event.

(c) No Effect on Conversion Rights. The provisions of this Section C.2 shall not in

any way limit the right of the holders of Series B Preferred Stock to elect to convert their shares
of Series B Preferred Stock into shares of Common Stock in accordance with Section C.3 hereof
prior to or in connection with any Liquidation Event.

-3, Conversion into Common Stock. The holders of Series B Preferred Stock shall
have the following conversion rights:

(a) Voluntary Conversion. At any time, each holder of Series B Preferred Stock shall
be entitled, without the payment of any additional consideration, to cause all or any portion of
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the shares of Series B Preferred Stock held by such holder to be converted into a number of
shares of fully paid and nonassessable Common Stock determined as hereafter provided in this
Section C.3(a). The shares of Series B Preferred Stock shall convert into shares of Common
Stock at a ratio of one to one (the “Series B Conversion Ratio”), such that the Series B
Conversion Ratio would result in one share of Common Stock being issued upon the conversion
of one share of Series B Preferred Stock. The number of shares of Common Stock into which
shares of Series B Preferred Stock are convertible and the Series B Conversion Ratio are subject
to adjustment from time to time as hereafter provided.

(b)  Procedure for Volun Conversion: Effective Date. Upon the election to
convert the Series B Preferred Stock made in accordance with Section C.3(a) hereof, the holders
of the Series B Preferred Stock making such election shall provide written notice of such
conversion (the “Series B Voluntary Conversion Notice”) to the Corporation setting forth the
number of shares of Series B Preferred Stock each such holder elects to convert into Common
Stock (the “Elected Series B Preferred Stock™). On the date the Series B Voluntary Conversion
Notice is delivered to the Corporation, such shares of Elected Series B Preferred Stock shall
thereupon be converted, without further action, into the number of shares of Common Stock
provided for in Section C.3(a) hereof, and such number of shares of Common Stock into which
the Elected Series B Preferred Stock is converted shall thereupon be deemed to have been issued
to such holders of the Elected Series B Preferred Stock. Such holders shall as soon as practicable
thereafter surrender to the Corporation at the Corporation’s principal executive office the
certificate or certificates evidencing the Elected Series B Preferred Stock, duly assigned or
endorsed for transfer to the Corporation (or accompanied by duly executed stock powers relating
thereto), or an Affidavit of Loss. Upon surrender of such certificates or delivery of an Affidavit
of Loss with respect thereto, the Corporation shall issue and deliver to the holder so surrendering
such certificates or to such holder’s designee, at an address designated by such holder,
certificates for the number of shares of Common Stock into which such holder’s Elected Series B
Preferred Stock shall have been converted. The issuance of certificates for shares of Common
Stock upon conversion of Elected Series B Preferred Stock will be made without charge to the
holders of such shares for any issuance tax in respect thereof or other costs incurred by the
Corporation in connection with such conversion and the related issuance of such stock.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Section C.3(c), in the event that the
holders of shares of Series B Preferred Stock elect to convert such shares pursuant to
Section C.3(a) hereof in connection with any Liquidation Event or any other specified event, (i)
such conversion may at the election of such holders be conditioned upon the consummation of
such Liquidation Event or the occurrence of such other specified event, in which case, such
conversion shall not be deemed to be effective until the consummation of such Liquidation Event
or the occurrence of such other specified event and (ii) if such Liquidation Event or other
specified event is consummated or occurs, all shares of Elected Series B Preferred Stock shall be
deemed to have been converted into shares of Common Stock immediately prior thereto.

(c) Automatic _Conversion. Each share of Series B Preferred Stock shall
automatically be converted, without the payment of any additional consideration, into the
number of shares of Common Stock provided for in Section C.3(a) immediately upon a Qualified
Public Offering; provided that if a Qualified Public Offering is consummated, all outstanding
shares of Series B Preferred Stock shall be deemed to have been converted into shares of
Common Stock as provided in this Section C.3 immediately prior to such consummation. Upon
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the consummation of a Qualified Public Offering, all accrued but unpaid cash dividends, whether
or not declared, payable to holders of Series B Preferred Stock shall be canceled.

(d)  Procedure for Automatic Conversion. As of the date of, and in all cases subject
to, the consummation of a Qualified Public Offering, all outstanding shares of Series B Preferred

Stock shall be converted automatically, without further action, into the number of shares of
Common Stock provided for in Section C.3(a), and such number of shares of Common Stock
into which the Series B Preferred Stock is converted shall be deemed to have been issued to the
holders of Series B Preferred Stock. Such holders shall as soon as practicable thereafter
surrender the certificate or certificates evidencing the Series B Preferred Stock, duly assigned or
endorsed for transfer to the Corporation (or accompanied by duly executed stock powers relating
thereto) or an Affidavit of Loss with respect thereto. Upon surrender of such certificates or
delivery of an Affidavit of Loss with respect thereto, the Corporation shall issue and deliver to
such holder so surrendering such certificates or to such holder’s designee, promptly (and in any
event in such time as is sufficient to enable such holder to participate in such Qualified Public
Offering) at an address designated by such holder, certificates for the number of shares of
Common Stock into which such holder’s Series B Preferred Stock shall have been converted.

(e) Eractional Shares; Partial Conversion. No fractional shares shall be issued upon
conversion of any shares of Series B Preferred Stock. All shares of Common Stock (including
fractions thereof) issuable upon conversion of Series B Preferred Stock by a holder thereof shall
be aggregated for purposes of determining whether the conversion would result in the issuance of
any fractional share. If any fractional interest in a share of Common Stock would, except for the
provisions of the first sentence of this paragraph (e), be delivered upon any such conversion, the
Corporation, in lieu of delivering the fractional share thereof, shall pay to the holder surrendering
the Series B Preferred Stock for conversion an amount in cash equal to the current fair market
value of such fractional interest as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors. In case
the number of shares of Series B Preferred Stock represented by the certificate or certificates
surrendered for conversion exceeds the number of shares converted, the Corporation shall, upon
such conversion, execute and deliver to the holder thereof, at the expense of the Corporation, a
new certificate or certificates for the number of shares of Series B Preferred Stock represented by
the certificate or certificates surrendered that are not to be converted.

4. Adjustments. -
(a)  Adjustments for Subdivisions, Combinations or Consolidation of Common Stock.

In the event the outstanding shares of Common Stock shall be subdivided by stock split, stock
dividends or otherwise, into a greater number of shares of Common Stock, the Series B
Conversion Ratio then in effect with respect to Series B Preferred Stock shall, concurrently with
the effectiveness of such subdivision, be proportionately increased so that the number of shares
of Common Stock issuable on conversion of any shares of Series B Preferred Stock shall be
increased in proportion to such increase in outstanding shares. In the event the outstanding
shares of Common Stock shall be combined or consolidated, by reclassification or otherwise,
into a lesser number of shares of Common Stock, the Series B Conversion Ratio then in effect
with respect to Series B Preferred Stock shall, concurrently with the effectiveness of such
combination or consolidation, be proportionately decreased so that the number of shares of
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Common Stock issuable on conversion of any shares of Serics B Preferred Stock shall be
decreased in proportion to such decrease in outstanding shares.

(b)  Adjustmenis for Reclassification, Exchange and Substitution. If the Common
Stock issuable upon conversion of the Series B Preferred Stock shall be changed into the same or
a different number of shares of any other class or classes of stock or into any other securities or
property, whether by capital reorganization, reclassification, merger, combination of shares,
recapitalization, consolidation, business combination or other similar transaction (other than a
subdivision or combination of shares provided for above), each share of Series B Preferred Stock
shall thereafier be convertible into the number of shares of stock or other securities or property to
which a holder of the number of shares of Common Stock of the Corporation deliverable upon
conversion of such share of Series B Preferred Stock shall have been entitled upon such capital
reorganization, reclassification, merger, combination of shares, recapitalization, consolidation,
business combination or other similar transaction if immediately prior to such capital
reorganization, reclassilication, merger, combination of shares, recapitalization, consolidation,
business combination or other similar transaction such holder had converted such holder’s Serics
B Preferred Stock into Common Stock. The provisions of this Section C.4(b) shall similarly
apply to successive capital reorganizations, reclassifications, mergers, combinations of shares,
recapitalizations, consolidations, business combinations or other transactions. The Corporation
shall not effect any Sale of the Corporation that is not, in accordance with Section C.2(b) hereof,
a Liquidation Event unless prior to or simultaneously with the consummation thereof the
successor Corporation or purchaser, as the case may be, shall assume by written instrument the
obligation to deliver to the holders of Series B Preferred Stock such shares of stock, securities or
assets as, in accordance with the foregoing provisions, each such holder is entitled to receive.

{c) Certificate as to Adjustments. Upon the occurrence of each adjustment or
readjustment of the Series B Conversion Ratio pursuant to this Section C.4, the Corporation at its
expense shall promptly compute such adjustment or readjustment in accordance with the terms
hereof and furnish to each holder of Series B Preferred Stock a certificate setting forth such
adjustment or readjustment and showing in detail the facts upon which such adjustment or
readjustment is based and the Secrics B Conversion Ratio then in effect. The Corporation shali,
upon the written request at any time by any holder of Series B Preferred Stock, furnish or cause
to be fumished to such holder a like certificate setting forth (i) such adjustments and
readjustments, (ii) the Series B Conversion Ratio at the time in effect, and (iii) the number of
shares of Common Stock and the amount, if any, of other property that at the time would be
received upon the conversion of such holder’s Series B Preferred Stock.

(d) Rounding. All calculations under this Section C.4 shall be made to the nearest
share.

3. Reservation of Stock Issuable Upon Conversion. The Corporation shall at all
times reserve and keep available out of its authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock,
solely for the purpose of effecting the conversion of the issued or issuable shares of Series B
Preferred Stock, such number of its shares of Common Stock as the case may be, as shall from
time 1o time be sufficient to effect the conversion of all outstanding shares of Series B Preferred
Stock, and if at any time the number of authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock shall
not be sufficient to effect the conversion of all then outstanding shares of Series B Preferred
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Stock, the Corporation will take all such corporate action as may be necessary to increase its
authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock to such number of shares as shall be sufficient
for such purpose.

6. No Closing of Transfer Books. The Corporation shall not close its books against
the transfer of shares of Series B Preferred Stock in any manner that would interfere with the

timely conversion of any shares of Series B Preferred Stock in accordance with the provisions
hereof.

7. Notice.

(d)  Liquidation Events, Extraordinary Transactions, Etc. In the event (i) the
Corporation establishes a record date to determine the holders of any class of securities who are
entitled to receive any dividend or other distribution or who are entitled to vote at a meeting (or
by written consent) in connection with any Liquidation Event or (ii) any Liquidation Event is
approved by the Board of Directors and the Corporation enters into any agreement with respect
thereto, the Corporation shall mail or cause to be mailed by first class mail (postage prepaid) to
each holder of Series B Preferred Stock at least ten (10) days prior to such record date specified
therein or the expected effective date of any such transaction, a notice specifying (A) the date of
such record date for the purpose of such dividend or distribution or meeting or consent and a
description of such dividend or distribution or the action to be taken at such meeting or by such
consent, (B) the date on which any such Liquidation Event is expected to become effective and,
in the case of a Sale of the Corporation, the identity of the parties thereto, and (C) the date on
which the books of the Corporation shall close or a record shall be taken with respect to any such
event.

(e) Waiver of Notice. The Requisite Series B Shareholders may at any time upon written
notice to the Corporation waive, either prospectively or retrospectively, any notice provisions
specified herein, and any such waiver shall be effective as to all holders of Series B Preferred
Stock.

()  General. In the event that the Corporation provides any notice, report or
statement to all holders of Common Stock, the Corporation shall at the same time provide a copy
of any such notice, report or statement to each holder of outstanding shares of Series B Preferred
Stock.

8. Voting.

(¢)  Voting Generally. Except as otherwise required by law or provided in Section
C.8(b) hereof, the holder of each share of Series B Preferred Stock shall vote with holders of
Common Stock, voting together as single class, upon all matters submitted to a vote of
shareholders. For such purpose, each holder of Series B Preferred Stock shall be entitled to the
number of votes per share of Series B Preferred Stock as equals the largest number of shares of
Common Stock into which each share of Series B Preferred Stock may be converted pursuant to
Section C.3 hereof on the record date fixed for the determination of shareholders entitled to vote
or on the effective date of any written consent of shareholders, as applicable. Fractional votes
shall not, however, be permitted and any fractional voting rights resulting from the above

-23.

PAAR ANOAOA A



-

formula with respect to any holder of Series B Preferred Stock shall be rounded to the nearest
whole number (with one-half rounded upward to one). There shall be no cumulative voting.

(d)  Class Voting. The holders of Series B Preferred Stock shall vote as a separate
single class on any proposed amendment to these Amended and Restated Articles of
Incorporation which will adversely atfect the rights, privileges, and preferences of Series B
Preferred Stock or otherwise designale a class of Preferred Stock that will have rights, privileges
and preferences pari passu or senior to those of Series B Preferred Stock.

9. Participation Rights. If the Company proposes to issue any New lssue Sccurities
the Company shall first offer the New Issue Securities 1o the holders of Series B Preferred Stock
in accordance with the following provisions:

(a) The Company shall give a written notice to the holders of Series B Preferred Stock
(the “Participation Notice™) stating (i) its intention to issue the New Issue Securifies, (ii) the
number and description of the New Issue Securities proposed to be issued and (iii) the proposed
" purchase price (calculated as of the proposed issuance date) and the other terms and conditions
upon which the Company is proposing to offer the New Issue Securities.

(b) Transmittal of the Participation Notice to the holders of Series B Preferred Stock by
the Company shall constitute an offer by the Company to sell each holder of Series B Preferred
Stock the number of New Issue Securities in order for the holder to maintain an equivalent
percentage ownership in the Company {assuming the conversion of all outstanding Preferred
Stock into Common Stock and the exercise of all outstanding options of the Company, as of the
date of the Participation Notice) for the price and upon the terms and conditions set forth in the
Participation Notice. For a period of five (5) business days after receipt of the of the
Participation Notice to the holders of Series B Preferred Stock, each holder of Series B Preferred
Stock shall have the option, exercisable by written notice to the Company, to accept {the "Notice
of Acceptance") the Company’s offer as to all or any part of such holder’s proportionate number
of the New Issue Sccurities. [f two or more types of New Issue Securities are to be issued or
New Issue Securities are to be issued together with other types of securities, including, without
limitation, debt securities, in a single transaction or related transactions, the rights to purchase
New Issue Securities granted to the holders of Series B Preferred Stock under this Section must
be excrcised to purchase all types of New Issue Securities and such other securities in the same
proportion as such New Issue Securities and other securities are to be issued by the Company.

(c} The Company shall have ninety (90) days after the date of the Participation Notice to
offer, issue, sell or exchange all or any part of the New Issue Securities as to which a Notice of
Acceptance has not been given by the holders of Series B Preferred Stock, but only upon terms
and conditions that are not more favorable to the acquiring person or persons or less favorable to
the Company than those set forth in the Participation Notice.

(d) The participation rights contained in this Section shall not apply to the issnance and
sale by the Company, from time to time hereafter, of (i} shares of the Common Stock or any
securities of the Company which entitle the holder thereof to acquire Common Stock to
employees, officers, or directors of, or consultants to, the Company, as compensation for their
services to the Company pursuant to arrangements approved by the Board of Directors, (ii)
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shares of Common Stock issued and sold in a firm commitment underwritten public offering
(which shall not include an equity line of credit or similar financing arrangement) resulting in net
proceeds to the Company of in excess of $15,000,000, (iii) shares of Common Stock issued as
consideration for the acquisition of another company or business in which the shareholders of the
Company do not have a majority ownership interest, which acquisition has been approved by the
Board of Directors, (iv) shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of outstanding
securities of the Company which entitle the holder thereof to acquire Common Stock (but not
amendments thereto), or (v) the issuance and sale by the Company of such number of shares that
would grant the holder thereof after such issue, a 50% or greater voting interest in the Company
on an as-converted basis. '

10.  Registration Rights.

(a) Form_S-3 Demand. If at any time when it is eligible to use a Form S-3
registration statement, the Company receives a request from holders of at least 50% of the Series
B Preferred Stock then outstanding (“Initiating Series B Holders”) that the Company file a Form
S-3 registration statement with respect to the shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion
of such holder’s Series B Preferred Stock having an anticipated aggregate offering price, of at
least $5 million, then the Company shall (i) within ten (10) days after the date such request is
given, give notice thereof (the “Series B Demand Notice™) to all holders of Series B Preferred
Stock other than the Initiating Series B Holders; and (ii) as soon as practicable, and in any event
within one hundred twenty days (120) after the date such request is given by the Initiating Series
B Holders, file 2 Form S-3 registration statement under the Securities Act covering all shares of
Common Stock issuable upon conversion of Series B Preferred Stock requested to be included in
such registration by any other holders, as specified by notice given by each such holder to the
Company within twenty (20) days of the date the Series B Demand Notice is given, and in each
case, subject to the limitations of Section C.9(b).

(b)  Notwithstanding the foregoing obligations, if the Company furnishes to holders
requesting a registration pursuant to Section C.9(a) a certificate signed by the Company’s chief
* executive officer stating that in the good faith judgment of the Board of Directors it would be
materially detrimental to the Company and its stockholders for such registration statement to
either become effective or remain effective for as long as such registration statement otherwise
would be required to remain effective, because such action would (i) materially interfere with a
significant acquisition, corporate reorganization, or other similar transaction involving the
Company; (ii) require premature disclosure of material information that the Company has a bona
fide business purpose for preserving as confidential; or (iii) render the Company unable to
comply with requirements under the Securities Act or Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, then the Company shall have the right to defer taking action with respect to such
filing, and any time periods with respect to filing or effectiveness thereof shall be tolled
correspondingly, for a period of not more than one hundred twenty (120) days after the request
of the Initiating Series B Holders is given; provided, however, that the Company may not invoke
this right more than once in any twelve (12) month period.

{(¢) Company Registration. If the Company proposes to register any of its Common
- Stock under the Securities Act, in connection with the public offering of such securities solely

for cash, other than (i) a registration relating to the sale of securities to employees of the
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Company pursuant to a stock option, stock purchase, or similar plan; (ii) a registration relating to
transaction pursuant to Rule 145 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under
the Securities Act; or (iii) a registration in which the only Common Stock being registered is
Common Stock issuable upon conversion of debt securities that arc also being registered, the
Company shall, at such time, promptly give each holder of Series B Preferred Stock notice of
such registration. Upon the request of each such holder given within twenly (20) days after such
notice is given by the Company, the Company shall cause to be registered all of the shares of
Common Stock issuable upon conversion of such holder’s Series B Preferred Stock that each
such holder has requested to be included in such regisiration.

(d) Obligations of the Company. Whenever required under this Section C.9 to effect
the registration of any shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of Series B Preferred
Stock, the Company shall, as expeditiously as reasonably possible: ’

(i) prepare and file with the SEC a registration statement with respect to such
securities and use its commercially reasonable efforts to causc such registration statement to
become effective and, upon the request of the holders of a majority of the Series B Preferred
Stock requesting registration, keep such registration statement effective for a period of up to one
hundred twenty (120) days or, if earlier, until the distribution contemplated in the registration
statement has been completed; and

(i)  prepare and file with the SEC such amendments and supplements to such
registration statement, and the prospectus used in connection with such registration statement, as
may be necessary to comply with the Securities Act in order to enable the disposition of all
securities covered by such registration statement.

(e) Furnish Information. It shall be a condition precedent to the obligations of the
Company to take any action pursuant to this Section C.9 with respect to the Common Stock
issuable upon conversion of any selling holder that such holder shall furnish to the Company
such information regarding itself, the securities held by it, and the intended method of disposition
of such securities as is rcasonably required to effect the registration.

® Indemnification. If any securities are included in a registration statement under
this Section C.9:

(i) To the extent permitted by law, the Company will indemnify and hold
harmless each selling holder, and the pariners, members, officers, directors, and stockholders of
each such holder; legal counsel and accountants for cach such holder; any underwriter (as
defined in the Securities Act) for each such holder; and each person, if any, who controls such
holder or underwriter within the meaning of the Securities Act, against any damages, and the
Company will pay to each such holder, underwriter, controlling person, or other aforementioned
person any legal or other expenses reasonably incurred thereby in connection with investigating
or defending any claim or proceeding from which damages may result, as such expenses are
incurred; provided, however, that the indemnity agreement contained in this Section shall not
apply to amounts paid in settiement of any such claim or proceeding if such settlement is
effected without the consent of the Company, which consent shail not be unreasonably withheld,
nor shall the Company be liable for any damages to the extent that they arise out of or are based

-26 -

PAAR ANGROR A



upon actions or omissions made in reliance upon and in conformity with written information
furnished by or on behalf of any such holder, underwriter, controlling person, or other
aforementioned person expressly for use in connection with such registration.

To the extent permitted by law, each selling holder, severally and not jointly, will indemnify and
hold harmless the Company, and each of its directors, each of its officers who has signed the
registration statement, each person, if any, who controls the Company within the meaning of the
Securities Act, legal counsel and accountants for the Company, any underwriter (as defined in
the Securities Act), any other holder selling securities in such registration statement, and any
controlling person of any such underwriter or other holder, against any damages, in each case
only to the extent that such damages arise out of or are based upon actions or omissions made in
reliance upon and in conformity with written information furnished by or on behalf of such
selling holder expressly for use in connection with such registration; and each such selling holder
will pay to_the Company and each other aforementioned person any legal or other expenses
reasonably incurred thereby in connection with investigating or defending any claim or
proceeding from which damages may result, as such expenses are incurred; provided, however,
that the indemnity agreement contained in this Section shall not apply to amounts paid in
settlement of any such claim or proceeding if such settlement is effected without the consent of
the holder, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld; and provided further that in no
event shall any indemnity under this Section exceed the proceeds from the offering received by
such holder, except in the case of fraud or willful misconduct by such holder.

D. OTHER SERIES OF PREFERRED STOCK

1. General. Shares of Preferred Stock, in addition to Initial Preferred Stock, the
Series A Preferred Stock and the Series B Preferred Stock, may be issued in one or more series at
such time or times and for such consideration or considerations as the Board of Directors may
determine. Each such series of Preferred Stock shall be so designated as to distinguish the shares
thereof from the shares of all other series and classes.

2. Designation, Voting Powers, Preferences, etc. Authorized and unissued shares of
Preferred Stock may be issued with such designations, voting powers (or no voting powers),
preferences and relative, participating, optional or other special rights, and qualifications,
limitations and restrictions on such rights, as the Board of Directors may authorize by resolutions
duly adopted prior to the issuance of any shares of any series of Preferred Stock, including, but
not limited to: (i) the distinctive designation of each series and the number of shares that will
constitute such series; (ii) the voting rights, if any, of shares of such series and whether the
shares of any such series having voting rights shall have multiple or fractional votes per share;
(iii) the dividend rate on the shares of such series, any restriction, limitation, or condition upon
the payment of such dividends, whether dividends shall be cumulative, and the dates on which
dividends are payable; (iv) the prices at which, and the terms and conditions on which, the shares
of such series may be redeemed, if such shares are redeemable; (v) the purchase or sinking fund
provisions, if any, for the purchase or redemption of shares of such series; (vi) any preferential
amount payable upon shares of such series in the event of the liquidation, dissolution, or
winding-up of the Corporation, or the distribution of its assets; (vii) the prices or rates of
conversion at which, and the terms and conditions on which, the shares are convertible; and (viii)
such other preferences, powers, qualifications, rights and privileges, all as the Board of Directors
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may deem advisable and as are not inconsistent with law and the provisions of this Articles of
Incorporation.

E. COMMON STOCK

1. General. The rights of the holders of the Common Stock with respect to
dividends and upon the liquidation, dissolution and winding up of the Corporation's affairs, are
subject to and qualified by the rights of the holders of Preferred Stock as specified herein and
any other class of the Corporation's capital stock or other equity securities that may hereafter be
issued and outstanding having rights upon the occurrence of a liquidation, dissolution or winding
up of the Corporation senior to or pari passu with the rights of holders of Common Stock. Each
share of Common Stock shall be treated identically as all other shares of Common Stock with
respect to dividends, distributions, rights in liquidation and in all respects other than voting.

2. Voting. Each holder of shares of Common Stock is entitled to one vote for each
share thereof held by such holder at all meetings of stockholders (and written actions in lieu of
meetings). There shall be no cumulative voting.

3. Dividends. Dividends may be declared and paid on the Common Stock from
funds lawfully available therefor as and when determined by the Board of Directors and subject
to any preferential dividend rights of any then outstanding shares of Preferred Stock, and any
other classes or series of the Corporation's capital stock that may hereafter be authorized and
issued having preferred dividend rights senior to or pari passu with the rights of holders of
Common Stock.

4. Liquidation. In the event of any liquidation, sale, merger, dissolution or winding
up of the Corporation, whether voluntary or involuntary, holders of Common Stock will be
entitled to receive all assets of the Corporation available for distribution to its stockholders,
subject to the rights and preferences of any then outstanding shares of Preferred Stock and any
other classes or series of the Corporation's capital stock that are issued and outstanding having
rights upon the occurrence of such an event senior to or pari passu with the rights of holders of
Common Stock.

ARTICLE 1IV. ADDRESS

~ The principal address of the Corporation is 555 Heritage Drive, Suite 115, Jupiter,

Florida 33458, and the mailing address is the same. The Board of Directors may, from time to
time, change the street and post office address of the Corporation as well as the location of its
principal office.

The street address of the registered office of the corporation is 1935 Commerce Lane,
Suite 1, Jupiter, Florida 33458 and the name of the registered agent of the corporation at that
address is Gaetano Scuderi, MD.

ARTICLE V. TERM OF EXISTENCE

This Corporation is to exist perpetually.

-28 -

PAR ANOKAK A



ARTICLE VI. INDEMNIFICATION

A. The Corporation shall to the fullest extent permitted by law indemnify any person
who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed
action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason of
the fact that he or she is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation, or is or
was serving at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another
corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise.

B. The Corporation may pay in advance any expenses (including attorneys' fees) that
may become subject to indemnification under paragraph A above if the person receiving the
advance payment of expenses undertakes in writing to repay such payment if it is ultimately
determined that such person is not entitled to indemnification by the Corporation under
paragraph A above.

C. The indemnification provided by paragraph A above shall not be exclusive of any
other rights to which a person may be entitled by law, bylaw, agreement, vote or consent of
stockholders or directors, or otherwise.

D. The indemnification and advance payment provided by paragraphs A and B above
shall continue as to a person who has ceased to hold a position named in paragraph A above and
shall inure to such person's heirs, executors, and administrators.

E. The Corporation may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person
who is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation, or who serves or served
at the Corporation's request as a director, officer, employee, agent, partner, or trustee of another
corporation or of a partnership, joint venture, trust, or other enterprise, against any liability
asserted against such person and incurred by such person in any such capacity, or arising out of
such person's status as such, whether or not the Corporation would have power to indemnify
such person against such liability under paragraph A above.

F. If any provision in this Article shall be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the
validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected
or impaired thereby, and, to the extent possible, effect shall be given to the intent manifested by
the provision held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable.
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ARTICLE VII. CERTAIN LIMITATIONS ON LIABILITY OF DIRECTORS

Except to the extent that the Act prohibits the elimination or limitation of liability of
directors for breach of the duties of a director, no director of the Corporation shall have any
personal liability for monetary damages for any statement, vote, decision, or failure to act,
regarding corporate management or policy. No amendment to or repeal of this provision shall
apply to or have any effect on the liability or alleged liability of any director of the Corporation
for or with respect to any acts or omissions of such director occurring prior to such amendment.

ARTICLE VIII. SHAREHOLDER QUORUM AND VOTING

The shareholders may adopt or amend a bylaw that fixes a greater quorum or voting
requirement for shareholders than is required by the Act, provided, however, that the adoption or
amendment of a bylaw that adds, changes, or deletes a greater quorum or voting requirement for
sharcholders must meet the same quorum requirement and be adopted by the same vote and
voting groups required to take action under the quorum and voting requirement then in effect or
proposed to be adopted, whichever is greater.

ARTICLE [X. AMENDMENTS

The Corporation reserves the right to amend, alter or repeal any provisions contained in
this Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation from time to time and at any time as the
Board of Directors may deem advisable and authorize by duly adopted resolutions and as are not
inconsistent with this Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation or the laws of the State of
Florida, and all rights herein conferred upon shareholders are granted subject to such reservation.

ARTICLE X. MISCELLANEOUS

In furtherance and not in limitation of the powers conferred by the laws of the State of
Florida:

A. The Board of Directors is expressly authorized to adopt, amend or repeal the
Bylaws of the Corporation.

B. Elections of directors need not be by written ballot unless the Bylaws of the
Corporation shall so provide. -

C. The books of the Corporation may be kept at such place within or without the
State of Florida as the Bylaws of the Corporation may provide or as may be designated from
time to time by the Board of Directors.

D. Meetings of the shareholders may be held within or without the State of Florida,
as the Bylaws may provide.

I, Raymond Johnson, the President of the Corporation, for the purpose of amending and
restating the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation pursuant to the Act, do make this certificate,
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hereby declaring and certifying that this is my act and deed on behalf of the Corporation, and the
facts herein stated are true, and accordingly hereunto set my hand this 4” day of February 2011.
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ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT
TO THE ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
CYTONICS CORPORATION

Pursuant to Sections 607.1006, 607.0602 and 607.0603 of the Florida Business
Corporation Act, Cytonics Corporation, a Florida corporation (the “Corporation™), hereby amends
pursuant to these Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation (these
“Articles of Amendment™), its Third Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, as amended
(the “Articles™), as follows:

A. Additional Provisions. The following language is hereby added after the end of Section
C (“SERIES B PREFERRED STOCK™) and before the start of current Section D “OTHER

SERIES OF PREFERRED STOCK™ in Article Il of the Articles:

510489.v8

“C-1. SERIES C PREFERED STOCK

The third series of Preferred Stock shall be designated “Series C Preferred Stock™ and
shall consist of Ten Million (10,000,000) shares, of which Five Hundred Thousand
(500,000) shares shall be designated as “Series C-1 Preferred Stock.” Unless otherwise
specified, the Series C Preferred Stock and the Series C-1 Preferred Stock may be
referred to herein together as the Series C Preferred Stock and shall have the same
rights, preferences, privileges, and restrictions. The rights, preferences, privileges, and
restrictions granted to and imposed on the Series C Preferred Stock are as set forth

below.

1.

Dividends. The holders of Series C Preferred Stock shall participate in all dividends
and other distributions (other than stock dividends in the nature of a stock split or
the like and repurchases of securities by the Corporation not made on a pro rata
basis from all holders of any class of the Corporation’s capital stock) that are
declared and paid on Common Stock on the same basis as if each share of Series C
Preferred Stock had been converted into Common Stock in accordance with Section
3 hereof immediately prior to the record date established for such dividends.

2. Liquidation Preference.

(a) Upon the occurrence of a Liquidation Event, each holder of Series C

Preferred Stock shall be entitled, after provision for the payment of the
Corporation’s debts and other liabilities and in parity with the holders of
Initial Preferred Stock and Series A Preferred Stock and in preference to,
and, before any amount or property shall be paid or distributed on account
of any “Junior Securities™ (as defined above), to be paid in full in cash with
respect to each share of Series C Preferred Stock out of the assets of the
Corporation available for distribution to shareholders, an amount equal to
the “Series C Purchase Price” (as defined below). If upon any Liquidation
Event the amount available for distribution among the holders of all
outstanding Initial Preferred Stock, Series A Preferred Stock, and Series C
Preferred Stock is insufficient to permit the payment of the Initial Purchase
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Price to the holders of Initial Preferred Stock, the Series A Purchase Price
to the holders of Series A Preferred Stock, the Series C Purchase Price to
the holders of Series C Preferred Stock, in full, then the amount available
for distribution shall be distributed among the holders of the Initial Preferred
Stock, the holders of Series A Preferred Stock, and the holders of the Series
C Preferred Stock, ratably in proportion to the relative purchase price held
by such holders, and the holders of Common Stock, the Series B Preferred
Stock, and any other Junior Securities shall in no event be entitled to
participate in the distribution of any assets of the Corporation in respect of
their ownership thereof. Upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of
the Corporation, whether voluntary or involuntary, after the holders of
Initial Preferred Stock and the holders of Series A Preferred Stock and the
holders of the Series C Preferred Stock shall have been paid in full the
preferential amounts to which they shall be entitled to receive on account of
their Preferred Stock, respectively, then the holders of Series B Preferred
Stock shall be paid in full the preferential amount to which they shall be
entitled to receive on account of their Series B Preferred Stock, and finally
any remaining net assets of the Corporation shall be distributed ratably
among the holders of Initial Preferred Stock, Series A Preferred Stock,
Series B Preferred Stock, Series C Preferred Stock and Common Stock
(with each share of Initial Preferred Stock, each share of Series A Preferred
Stock, each share of Series B Preferred Stock and each share of Series C
Preferred Stock, being deemed for such purpose to equal the number of
shares of Common Stock, including fractions thereof, into which such share
of Initial Preferred Stock, such share of Series A Preferred Stock and such
share of Series B Preferred Stock and such Shares of Series C Preferred
Stock is convertible in accordance with the provisions of thereof). Upon any
(i) “Sale of the Corporation” or (ii) reorganization of the Corporation
required by any court or administrative body in order to comply with any
provision of law, after the holders of Initial Preferred Stock and the holders
of Series A Preferred Stock and the Series C Preferred Stock shall have been
paid in full the preferential amounts to which they shall be entitled to receive
on account of their Preferred Stock, respectively, any remaining net assets
of the Corporation shall be distributed ratably among the holders of Initial
Preferred Stock, Series A Preferred Stock, Series B Preferred Stock, the
Series C Preferred Stock and Common Stock (with each share of Initial
Preferred Stock, each share of Series A Preferred Stock, and each share of
Series B Preferred Stock and Series C Preferred Stock being deemed for
such purpose to equal the number of shares of Common Stock, including
fractions thereof, into which such share of Preferred Stock is convertible in
accordance with terms thereof).

“Series C Purchase Price™ means (A) for each share of Series C Preferred
Stock which is not a share of Series C-1 Preferred Stock, $2.00 per share
(as equitably adjusted to reflect any stock split, stock dividend,
combination, reorganization, recapitalization, reclassification or other
similar event involving the Series C Preferred Stock after the date these
Articles of Amendment are filed with the Office of the Secretary of State of

(3]
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Florida in accordance with the Act) and (B) for each share of Series C-1
Stock, the lesser of (1) $1.60 and (B) the quotient resulting from dividing
(1) $32,400,000 by (2) the number of shares of Common Stock issued and
outstanding on a fully diluted basis per share value of a share of Common
Stock, on a fully diluted basis (i.e., assuming full conversion and exercise
of preferred stock, notes, and options into shares of Common Stock)
immediately prior to the closing of the Qualified Equity Financing.
“Qualified Equity Financing” means the first sale (or series of related sales)
by the Company of its Preferred Stock following the Date of Issuance from
which the Company receives gross proceeds of not less than $1,000,000
(excluding the aggregate amount of securities converted into Preferred
Stock in connection with such sale (or series of related sales)), or the first
sale by the Company of Common Stock in an initial public offering pursuant
to an effective registration statement filed under the Securities Act of 1933,
whichever is sooner. Each of the dollar amounts in this sentence shall be
equitably adjusted to reflect any stock split, stock dividend, combination,
reorganization, recapitalization, reclassification or other similar event
involving the Series C Preferred Stock after the date these Articles of
Amendment are filed with the Office of the Secretary of State of Florida in
accordance with the Act or the date of such determination of the applicable
Series C Purchase Price, as applicable.

(b) Consolidation, Merger, etc. Notwithstanding Section 2(a) hereof, neither a

Sale of the Corporation nor any reorganization of the Corporation of the
type referenced in clause (iii) of Section 2(a) hereof shall be deemed to be
a Liquidation Event for the purposes of this Section if the holders of more
than fifty percent (50%) of the issued and outstanding Series C Preferred
Stock waive in writing the provisions of this Section with respect to such
event.

(¢) No Effect on Conversion Rights. The provisions of this Section 2 shall not

in any way limit the right of the holders of Series C Preferred Stock to elect
to convert their shares of Series C Preferred Stock into shares of Common
Stock in accordance with Section 3 hereof prior to or in connection with any
Liquidation Event.

3. Conversion into Common Stock. The holders of Series C Preferred Stock shall have

the following conversion rights:

(a) Voluntary Conversion. At any time, each holder of Series C Preferred Stock

shall be entitled, without the payment of any additional consideration, to
cause all or any portion of the shares of Series C Preferred Stock held by
such holder to be converted into a number of shares of fully paid and
nonassessable Common Stock determined as hereafter provided in this
Section 3(a). The shares of Series C Preferred Stock shall convert into
shares of Common Stock at a ratio of one to one (the “*Series C Conversion
Ratio”), such that the Series C Conversion Ratio would result in one share
of Common Stock being issued upon the conversion of one share of Series



C Preferred Stock. The number of shares of Common Stock into which
shares of Series C Preferred Stock are convertible and the Series C
Conversion Ratio are subject to adjustment from time to time as hereafter
provided.

(b) Procedure for Voluntary Conversion: Effective Date. Upon the election to
convert the Series C Preferred Stock made in accordance with Section 3(a)
hereof, the holders of the Series C Preferred Stock making such election
shall provide written notice of such conversion (the “Series C Voluntary
Conversion Notice”) to the Corporation setting forth the number of shares
of Series C Preferred Stock each such holder elects to convert into Common
Stock (the “Elected Series C Preferred Stock™). On the date the Series C
Voluntary Conversion Notice is delivered to the Corporation, such shares
of Elected Series C Preferred Stock shall thereupon be converted, without
further action, into the number of shares of Common Stock provided for in
Section 3(a) hereof, and such number of shares of Common Stock into
which the Elected Series C Preferred Stock is converted shall thereupon be
deemed to have been issued to such holders of the Elected Series C
Preferred Stock. Such holders shall as soon as practicable thereafter
surrender to the Corporation at the Corporation’s principal executive office
the certificate or certificates evidencing the Elected Series C Preferred
Stock, duly assigned or endorsed for transfer to the Corporation (or
accompanied by duly executed stock powers relating thereto), or an
Affidavit of Loss. Upon surrender of such certificates or delivery of an
Affidavit of Loss with respect thereto, the Corporation shall issue and
deliver to the holder so surrendering such certificates or to such holder’s
designee, at an address designated by such holder, certificates for the
number of shares of Common Stock into which such holder’s Elected Series
C Preferred Stock shall have been converted. The issuance of certificates
for shares of Common Stock upon conversion of Elected Series C Preferred
Stock will be made without charge to the holders of such shares for any
issuance tax in respect thereof or other costs incurred by the Corporation in
connection with such conversion and the related issuance of such stock.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Section 3(b), in
the event that the holders of shares of Series C Preferred Stock elect to
convert such shares pursuant to Section 3(a) hereof in connection with any
Liquidation Event or any other specified event, (i) such conversion may at
the election of such holders be conditioned upon the consummation of such
Liquidation Event or the occurrence of such other specified event, in which
case, such conversion shall not be deemed to be effective until the
consummation of such Liquidation Event or the occurrence of such other
specified event and (ii) if such Liquidation Event or other specified event is
consummated or occurs, all shares of Elected Series C Preferred Stock shall
be deemed to have been converted into shares of Common Stock
immediately prior thereto.

(¢) Automatic Conversion. Each share of Series C Preferred Stock shall
automatically be converted, without the payment of any additional
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consideration, into the number of shares of Common Stock provided for in
Section 3(a) immediately upon a Qualified Public Offering; provided that if
a Qualified Public Offering is consummated, all outstanding shares of
Series C Preferred Stock shall be deemed to have been converted into shares
of Common Stock as provided in this Section 3 immediately prior to such
consummation. Upon the consummation of a Qualified Public Offering, all
accrued but unpaid cash dividends, whether or not declared, payable to
holders of Series C Preferred Stock shall be canceled.

(d) Procedure for Automatic Conversion. As of the date of, and in all cases

subject to, the consummation of a Qualified Public Offering, all outstanding
shares of Series C Preferred Stock shall be converted automatically, without
further action, into the number of shares of Common Stock provided for in
Section 3(a), and such number of shares of Common Stock into which the
Series C Preferred Stock is converted shall be deemed to have been issued
to the holders of Series C Preferred Stock. Such holders shall as soon as
practicable thereafter surrender the certificate or certificates evidencing the
Series C Preferred Stock, duly assigned or endorsed for transfer to the
Corporation (or accompanied by duly executed stock powers relating
thereto) or an Affidavit of Loss with respect thereto. Upon surrender of such
certificates or delivery of an Affidavit of Loss with respect thereto, the
Corporation shall issue and deliver to such holder so surrendering such
certificates or to such holder’s designee, promptly (and in any event in such
time as is sufficient to enable such holder to participate in such Qualified
Public Offering) at an address designated by such holder, certificates for the
number of shares of Common Stock into which such holder’s Series C
Preferred Stock shall have been converted.

(e) Fractional Shares: Partial Conversion. No fractional shares shall be issued

upon conversion of any shares of Series C Preferred Stock. All shares of
Common Stock (including fractions thereof) issuable upon conversion of
Series C Preferred Stock by a holder thereof shall be aggregated for
purposes of determining whether the conversion would result in the
issuance of any fractional share. If any fractional interest in a share of
Common Stock would, except for the provisions of the first sentence of this
paragraph (e), be delivered upon any such conversion, the Corporation, in
lieu of delivering the fractional share thereof, shall pay to the holder
surrendering the Series C Preferred Stock for conversion an amount in cash
equal to the current fair market value of such fractional interest as
determined in good faith by the Board of Directors. In case the number of
shares of Series C Preferred Stock represented by the certificate or
certificates surrendered for conversion exceeds the number of shares
converted, the Corporation shall, upon such conversion, execute and deliver
to the holder thereof, at the expense of the Corporation, a new certificate or
certificates for the number of shares of Series C Preferred Stock represented
by the certificate or certificates surrendered that are not to be converted.
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4. Adjustments.

(a) Adjustments for Subdivisions, Combinations or Consolidation of Common

Stock. In the event the outstanding shares of Common Stock shall be
subdivided by stock split, stock dividends or otherwise, into a greater
number of shares of Common Stock, the Series C Conversion Ratio then in
effect with respect to Series C Preferred Stock shall, concurrently with the
effectiveness of such subdivision, be proportionately increased so that the
number of shares of Common Stock issuable on conversion of any shares
of Series C Preferred Stock shall be increased in proportion to such increase
in outstanding shares. In the event the outstanding shares of Common Stock
shall be combined or consolidated, by reclassification or otherwise, into a
lesser number of shares of Common Stock, the Series C Conversion Ratio
then in effect with respect to Series C Preferred Stock shall, concurrently
with the effectiveness of such combination or consolidation, be
proportionately decreased so that the number of shares of Common Stock
issuable on conversion of any shares of Series C Preferred Stock shall be
decreased in proportion to such decrease in outstanding shares.

(b) Adjustments for Reclassification, Exchange and Substitution. If the

Common Stock issuable upon conversion of the Series C Preferred Stock
shall be changed into the same or a different number of shares of any other
class or classes of stock or into any other securities or property, whether by
capital reorganization, reclassification, merger, combination of shares,
recapitalization, consolidation, business combination or other similar
transaction (other than a subdivision or combination of shares provided for
above), each share of Series C Preferred Stock shall thereafter be
convertible into the number of shares of stock or other securities or property
to which a holder of the number of shares of Common Stock of the
Corporation deliverable upon conversion of such share of Series C Preferred
Stock shall have been entitled upon such capital reorganization,
reclassification, merger, combination of shares, recapitalization,
consolidation, business combination or other similar transaction if
immediately prior to such capital reorganization, reclassification, merger,
combination of shares, recapitalization, consolidation, business
combination or other similar transaction such holder had converted such
holder’s Series A Preferred Stock into Common Stock. The provisions of
this Section 4(b) shall similarly apply to successive capital reorganizations,
reclassifications, mergers, combinations of shares, recapitalizations,
consolidations, business combinations or other transactions. The
Corporation shall not effect any Sale of the Corporation that is not, in
accordance with Section 2(b) hereof, a Liquidation Event unless prior to or
simultaneously with the consummation thereof the successor Corporation
or purchaser, as the case may be, shall assume by written instrument the
obligation to deliver to the holders of Series C Preferred Stock such shares
of stock, securities or assets as, in accordance with the foregoing provisions,
each such holder is entitled to receive.
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(c) Certificate as to Adjustments. Upon the occurrence of each adjustment or
readjustment of the Series C Conversion Ratio pursuant to this Section 4,
the Corporation at its expense shall promptly compute such adjustment or
readjustment in accordance with the terms hercof and furnish to each holder
of Series C Preferred Stock a certificate setting forth such adjustment or
readjustment and showing in detail the facts upon which such adjustment or
readjustment is based and the Series C Conversion Ratio then in effect. The
Corporation shall, upon the written request at any time by any holder of
Series C Preferred Stock, furnish or cause to be furnished to such holder a
like certificate setting forth (i) such adjustments and readjustments, (ii) the
Series C Conversion Ratio at the time in effect, and (iii) the number of
shares of Common Stock and the amount, if any, of other property that at
the time would be received upon the conversion of such holder’s Series C
Preferred Stock.

(d) Rounding. All calculations under this Section 4 shall be made to the nearest
share.

5. Reservation of Stock Issuable Upon Conversion. The Corporation shall at all times

reserve and keep available out of its authorized but unissued shares of Common
Stock, solely for the purpose of effecting the conversion of the issued or issuable
shares of Series C Preferred Stock, such number of its shares of Common Stock as
the case may be, as shall from time to time be sufficient to effect the conversion of
all outstanding shares of Series C Preferred Stock, and if at any time the number of
authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock shall not be sufficient to effect
the conversion of all then outstanding shares of Series C Preferred Stock, the
Corporation will take all such corporate action as may be necessary to increase its
authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock to such number of shares as shall
be sufficient for such purpose.

No Closing of Transfer Books. The Corporation shall not close its books against
the transfer of shares of Series C Preferred Stock in any manner that would interfere
with the timely conversion of any shares of Series C Preferred Stock in accordance
with the provisions hereof.

7. Notices.

(a) Liquidation Events, Extraordinary Transactions., Etc. In the event (i) the
Corporation establishes a record date to determine the holders of any class
of securities who are entitled to receive any dividend or other distribution
or who are entitled to vote at a meeting (or by written .consent) in
connection with any Liquidation Event or (ii) any Liquidation Event is
approved by the Board of Directors and the Corporation enters into any
agreement with respect thereto, the Corporation shall mail or cause to be
mailed by first class mail (postage prepaid) to each holder of Series C
Preferred Stock at least ten (10) days prior to such record date specified
therein or the expected effective date of any such transaction, a notice
specifying (A) the date of such record date for the purpose of such dividend
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or distribution or meeting or consent and a description of such dividend or
distribution or the action to be taken at such meeting or by such consent,
(B) the date on which any such Liquidation Event is expected to become
effective and, in the case of a Sale of the Corporation, the identity of the
parties thereto, and (C) the date on which the books of the Corporation shall
close or a record shall be taken with respect to any such event.

(b) Waiver of Notice. The Series C Shareholders may at any time upon written
notice to the Corporation waive, either prospectively or retrospectively, any
notice provisions specified herein, and any such waiver shall be effective as
to all holders of Series C Preferred Stock.

(c) General. In the event that the Corporation provides any notice, report or
statement to all holders of Common Stock, the Corporation shall at the same
time provide a copy of any such notice, report or statement to each holder
of outstanding shares of Series C Preferred Stock.

8. Voting.

(a) Voting Generally. Except as otherwise required by law or provided in
Section 8(b) or Section 8(c) hereof, the holder of each share of Series C
Preferred Stock shall vote with holders of Common Stock, voting together
as single class, upon all matters submitted to a vote of shareholders. For
such purpose, each holder of Series C Preferred Stock shall be entitled to
the number of votes per share of Series C Preferred Stock as equals the
largest number of shares of Common Stock into which each share of Series
C Preferred Stock may be converted pursuant to Section 3 hereof on the
record date fixed for the determination of shareholders entitled to vote or on
the effective date of any written consent of shareholders, as applicable.
Fractional votes shall not, however, be permitted and any fractional voting
rights resulting from the above formula with respect to any holder of Series
C Preferred Stock shall be rounded to the nearest whole number (with one-
half rounded upward to one). There shall be no cumulative voting.

(b) Class Voting. The holders of Series C Preferred Stock shall vote as a
separate single class, with each share of Series C Preferred Stock having
one vote, on any proposed amendment to these Amended and Restated
Articles of Incorporation which will adversely affect the rights, privileges,
and preferences of Series C Preferred Stock or otherwise designate a class
of Preferred Stock that will have rights, privileges and preferences pari
passu or senior to those of Series C Preferred Stock.

(c) Additional Protective Provisions. The Corporation shall not, either directly
or indirectly by amendment, merger, consolidation or otherwise, do any of
the following without (in addition to any other vote required by law or the
Articles) the written consent or affirmative vote of at least a majority of the
outstanding shares of Series C Preferred Stock, given in writing or by vote
at a meeting, consenting, or voting (as the case may be) separately as a
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single class, and with each share of Series C Preferred Stock having one
vote on such matter:

(i) increase or decrease the authorized number of shares of any class or
series of capital stock;

(11) redeem or repurchase any shares of Common Stock or Preferred
Stock (other than pursuant to employee or consultant agreements
giving the Corporation the right to repurchase shares upon the
termination of services pursuant to the terms of the applicable
agreement);

(i11) declare or pay any dividend or otherwise make a distribution to
holders of Preferred Stock or Common Stock: or

(iv) liquidate, dissolve, or wind-up the business and affairs of the
Corporation, effect any Liquidation Event, or consent, agree or
commit to do any of the foregoing without conditioning such
consent, agreement or commitment upon obtaining the approval
required by this Section 8(c).

9. Participation Rights. If the Company proposes to issue any Common Stock or any
securities of the Company which entitle the holder thereof to acquire Common
Stock (collectively, “New Issue Securities”), the Company shall first offer the New
Issue Securities to the holders of Series C Preferred Stock in accordance with the
following provisions:

(a) The Company shall give a written notice to the holders of Series C Preferred
Stock (the “Participation Notice™) stating (i) its intention to issue the New
Issue Securities, (i1) the number and description of the New Issue Securities
proposed to be issued and (ii1) the proposed purchase price (calculated as of
the proposed issuance date) and the other terms and conditions upon which
the Company is proposing to offer the New Issue Securities.

(b) Transmittal of the Participation Notice to the holders of Series C Preferred
Stock by the Company shall constitute an offer by the Company to sell each
holder of Series C Preferred Stock the number of New Issue Securities in
order for the holder to maintain an equivalent percentage ownership in the
Company (assuming the conversion of all outstanding Preferred Stock into
Common Stock and the exercise of all outstanding options of the Company,
as of the date of the Participation Notice) for the price and upon the terms
and conditions set forth in the Participation Notice. For a period of five (5)
business days after receipt of the of the Participation Notice to the holders
of Series C Preferred Stock, each holder of Series C Preferred Stock shall
have the option, exercisable by written notice to the Company, to accept
(the *Notice of Acceptance™) the Company’s offer as to all or any part of
such holder’s proportionate number of the New Issue Securities. If two or
more types of New Issue Securities are to be issued or New Issue Securities
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are to be issued together with other types of securities, including, without
limitation, debt securities, in a single transaction or related transactions, the
rights to purchase New Issue Securities granted to the holders of Series C
Preferred Stock under this Section must be exercised to purchase all types
of New Issue Securities and such other securities in the same proportion as
such New Issue Securities and other securities are to be issued by the
Company.

(c) The Company shall have ninety (90) days after the date of the Participation

Notice to offer, issue, sell or exchange all or any part of the New Issue
Securities as to which a Notice of Acceptance has not been given by the
holders of Series C Preferred Stock, but only upon terms and conditions that
are not more favorable to the acquiring person or persons or less favorable
to the Company than those set forth in the Participation Notice.

(d) The participation rights contained in this Section shall not apply to the

issuance and sale by the Company, from time to time hereafter, of(i) shares
of the Common Stock or any securities of the Company which entitle the
holder thereof to acquire Common Stock to employees, officers, or directors
of, or consultants to, the Company, as compensation for their services to the
Company pursuant to arrangements approved by the Board of Directors, (ii)
shares of Common Stock issued and sold in a firm commitment
underwritten public offering (which shall not include an equity line of credit
or similar financing arrangement) resulting in net proceeds to the Company
of in excess of$15,000,000 or (iii) shares of Common Stock issued as
consideration for the acquisition of another company or business in which
the shareholders of the Company do not have a majority ownership interest,
which acquisition has been approved by the Board of Directors or (iv)
shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of outstanding
securities of the Company which entitle the holder thereof to acquire
Common Stock (but not amendments thereto).

10. Registration Rights.

(a) Form S-3 Demand. If at any time when it is eligible to use a Form S-3

registration statement, the Company receives a request from holders of at
least 50% of the Series C Preferred Stock then outstanding (“Initiating
Series C Holders™) that the Company file a Form S-3 registration statement
with respect to the shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of
such holder’s Series C Preferred Stock having an anticipated aggregate
offering price, of at least $5 million, then the Company shall (i) within ten
(10) days after the date such request is given, give notice thereof (the “Series
C Demand Notice™) to all holders of Series C Preferred Stock other than the
Initiating Series C Holders; and (ii) as soon as practicable, and in any event
within one hundred twenty days (120) after the date such request is given
by the Initiating Series C Holders, file a Form S-3 registration statement
under the Securities Act covering all shares of Common Stock issuable
upon conversion of Series C Preferred Stock requested to be included in

10
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such registration by any other holders, as specified by notice given by each
such holder to the Company within twenty (20) days of the date the Series
C Demand Notice is given, and in each case, subject to the limitations of
Section 10(b).

(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing obligations, if the Company furnishes to

holders requesting a registration pursuant to Section 10(a) a certificate
signed by the Company’s chief executive officer stating that in the good
faith judgment of the Board of Directors it would be materially detrimental
to the Company and its stockholders for such registration statement to either
become effective or remain effective for as long as such registration
statement otherwise would be required to remain effective, because such
action would (i) materially interfere with a significant acquisition, corporate
reorganization, or other similar transaction involving the Company; (ii)
require premature disclosure of material information that the Company has
a bona fide business purpose for preserving as confidential; or (iii) render
the Company unable to comply with requirements under the Securities Act
or Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, then the Company shall
have the right to defer taking action with respect to such filing, and any time
periods with respect to filing or effectiveness thereof shall be tolled
correspondingly, for a period of not more than one hundred twenty (120)
days after the request of the Initiating Series C Holders is given; provided,
however, that the Company may not invoke this right more than once in any
twelve (12) month period.

(c) Company Registration. If the Company proposes to register any of its

Common Stock under the Securities Act, in connection with the public
offering of such securities solely for cash, other than (i) a registration
relating .to the sale of securities to employees of the Company pursuant to
a stock option, stock purchase, or similar plan; (i1) a registration relating to
transaction pursuant to Rule 145 promulgated by the Securities and
Exchange Commission under the Securities Act; or (iil) a registration in
which the only Common Stock being registered is Common Stock issuable
upon conversion of debt securities that are also being registered, the
Company shall, at such time, promptly give each holder of Series C
Preferred Stock notice of such registration. Upon the request of each such
holder given within twenty (20) days after such notice is given by the
Company, the Company shall cause to be registered all of the shares of
Common Stock issuable upon conversion of such holder’s Series C
Preferred Stock that each such holder has requested to be included in such
registration.

(d) Obligations of the Company. Whenever required under this Section 10 to

effect the registration of any shares of Common Stock issuable upon
conversion of Series C Preferred Stock, the Company shall, as expeditiously
as reasonably possible:
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(1) prepare and file with the SEC a registration statement with respect
to such securities and use its commercially reasonable efforts to
cause such registration statement to become effective and, upon the
request of the holders of a majority of the Series C Preferred Stock
requesting registration, keep such registration statement effective
for a period of up to one hundred twenty (120) days or, if earlier,
until the distribution contemplated in the registration statement has
been completed; and

(i1) prepare and file with the SEC such amendments and supplements to
such registration statement, and the prospectus used in connection
with such registration statement, as may be necessary to comply
with the Securities Act in order to enable the disposition of all
securities covered by such registration statement.

(e) Furnish Information. It shall be a condition precedent to the obligations of

(M

the Company to take any action pursuant to this Section 10 with respect to
the Common Stock issuable upon conversion of any selling holder that such
holder shall furnish to the Company such information regarding itself, the
securities held by it, and the intended method of disposition of such
securities as is reasonably required to effect the registration.

Indemnification. If any securities are included in a registration statement

under this Section 10:

(i) To the extent permitted by law, the Company will indemnify and
hold harmless each selling holder, and the partners, members,
officers, directors, and stockholders of each such holder; legal
counsel and accountants for each such holder; any underwriter (as
defined in the Securities Act) for each such holder; and each person,
if any, who controls such holder or underwriter within the meaning
of the Securities Act, against any damages, and the Company will
pay to each such holder, underwriter, controlling person, or other
aforementioned person any legal or other expenses reasonably
incurred thereby in connection with investigating or defending any
claim or proceeding from which damages may result, as such
expenses are incurred; provided, however, that the indemnity
agreement contained in this Section 10(f) shall not apply to amounts
paid in settlement of any such claim or proceeding if such settlement
is effected without the consent of the Company, which consent shall
not be unreasonably withheld, nor shall the Company be liable for
any damages to the extent that they arise out of or are based upon
actions or omissions made in reliance upon and in conformity with
written information furnished by or on behalf of any such holder,
underwriter, controlling person, or other aforementioned person
expressly for use in connection with such registration.



(i1) To the extent permitted by law, each selling holder, severally and
not jointly, will indemnify and hold harmless the Company, and
each of its directors, each of its officers who has signed the
registration statement, each person, if any, who controls the
Company within the meaning of the Securities Act, legal counsel
and accountants for the Company, any underwriter (as defined in the
Securities Act), any other holder selling securities holder, against
any damages, in each case only to the extent that such damages arise
out of or are based upon actions or omissions made in reliance upon
and in conformity with written information furnished by or on behalf
of such selling holder expressly for use in connection with such
registration; and each such selling holder will pay to the Company
and each other aforementioned person any legal or other expenses
reasonably incurred thereby in connection with investigating or
defending any claim or proceeding from which damages may result,
as such expenses are incurred; provided, however, that the
indemnity agreement contained in this Section 10(f) shall not apply
to amounts paid in settlement of any such claim or proceeding if
such settlement is effected without the consent of the holder, which
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld; and provided further
that in no event shall any indemnity under this Section 10(f) exceed
the proceeds from the offering received by such holder, except in
the case of fraud or willful misconduct by such holder.”

B. Additional Provisions. The following language is hereby added as a new Section 8(c) to
Article II1, Section A (the INITIAL PREFERRED STOCK) of the Articles:
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(c) Additional Protective Provisions. The Corporation shall not, either directly
or indirectly by amendment, merger, consolidation or otherwise, do any of
the following without (in addition to any other vote required by law or the
Articles) the written consent or affirmative vote of at least a majority of the
outstanding shares of Initial Preferred Stock, given in writing or by vote at
a meeting, consenting, or voting (as the case may be) separately as a single
class, and with each share of Initial Preferred Stock having one vote on such
matter:

(i11) increase or decrease the authorized number of shares of any class or
series of capital stock;

(iv) redeem or repurchase any shares of Common Stock or Preferred
Stock (other than pursuant to employee or consultant agreements
giving the Corporation the right to repurchase shares upon the
termination of services pursuant to the terms of the applicable
agreement);

(v) declare or pay any dividend or otherwise make a distribution to
holders of Preferred Stock or Common Stock; or



(vi)

liquidate, dissolve, or wind-up the business and affairs of the
Corporation, effect any Liquidation Event, or consent, agree or
commit to do any of the foregoing without conditioning such
consent, agreement or commitment upon obtaining the approval
required by this Section 8(c).

C. Additional Provisions. The following language is hereby added as a new Section 8(c) to
Article I11I, Section B (the SERIES A PREFERRED STOCK) of the Articles:

(d) Additional Protective Provisions. The Corporation shall not, either directly

or indirectly by amendment, merger, consolidation or otherwise, do any of
the following without (in addition to any other vote required by law or the
Articles) the written consent or affirmative vote of at least a majority of the
outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock, given in writing or by vote
at a meeting, consenting, or voting (as the case may be) separately as a
single class, and with each share of Series A Preferred Stock having one
vote on such matter:

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

increase or decrease the authorized number of shares of any class or
series of capital stock;

redeem or repurchase any shares of Common Stock or Preferred
Stock (other than pursuant to employee or consultant agreements
giving the Corporation the right to repurchase shares upon the
termination of services pursuant to the terms of the applicable
agreement);

declare or pay any dividend or otherwise make a distribution to
holders of Preferred Stock or Common Stock; or

liquidate, dissolve, or wind-up the business and affairs of the
Corporation, effect any Liquidation Event, or consent, agree or
commit to do any of the foregoing without conditioning such
consent, agreement or commitment upon obtaining the approval
required by this Section 8(c).

D. Typographical Corrections and Additional Provisions. The first subsection of Section 8
of Section C of Article III of the Articles, currently incorrectly numbered as subsection “(c)” is
hereby corrected to be subsection “(a”). The second subsection of Section 8 of Section C of Article
Il of the Articles, currently incorrectly numbered as subsection *(d)” is hereby corrected to be
subsection “(b™). The following language is hereby added as a new Section 8(c) to Article III,
Section C (the SERIES B PREFERRED STOCK) of the Articles:
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(c) Additional Protective Provisions. The Corporation shall not, either directly

or indirectly by amendment, merger, consolidation or otherwise, do any of
the following without (in addition to any other vote required by law or the
Articles) the written consent or affirmative vote of at least a majority of the
outstanding shares of Series B Preferred Stock, given in writing or by vote

14



at a meeting, consenting, or voting (as the case may be) separately as a
single class, and with each share of Series B Preferred Stock having one
vote on such matter:

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

increase or decrease the authorized number of shares of any class or
series of capital stock;

redeem or repurchase any shares of Common Stock or Preferred
Stock (other than pursuant to employee or consultant agreements
giving the Corporation the right to repurchase shares upon the
termination of services pursuant to the terms of the applicable
agreement);

declare or pay any dividend or otherwise make a distribution to
holders of Preferred Stock or Common Stock: or

liquidate, dissolve, or wind-up the business and affairs of the
Corporation, effect any Liquidation Event, or consent, agree or
commit to do any of the foregoing without conditioning such
consent, agreement or commitment upon obtaining the approval
required by this Section 8(c).

E. Authority to Amend. These Articles of Amendment have been duly adopted by the
unanimous written consent of the Corporation’s board of directors as of March 3, 2020 in
accordance with the provisions of Sections 607.0821, 607.0602 and 607.0603 of the Florida
Business Corporation Act.

F. Effective Time. The foregoing amendments of the Articles of Incorporation shall
become effective March 31, 2020.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed these amendments to the Articles
of Incorporation as of February March 11, 2020.
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Cytonics Corporation

By: 9«97, Boae

Name: Joey Bose
Title: President
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Gaetano Scuderi, MD
Founder & Chairman of the
Board (Full Time)

Gaetano Scuderi, MD is the Founder and
Chaeman of the Board of Oytorics Corporation,
Dr. Scuderi is a fellowship-trained (UCSD, San
Diego, CA) spine surgeon who has practiced
mMediing since 1993, He was also appointed to
Clinical Asssstant Professor in the Department of
Orthopedic Surgery of Stanford Universaty. He
graduated medical school from State University
of New York (BuMalo, NY) and completed his
Residency at University of Miami School of
Medicine (Miami, FL). Dr. Scuden has publshed
ower 45 schntific articles and has lectured
worldwido, Dr. Scuden curramly practces
orthapedic surgery in Jupiter, FL,

£

Joey Bose
CEO & President (Full Time)

Mr, Bose has aver 10 years' expenence in

I gy ch devel and
healthcare investment banking. As President of
Cytonics, his primary responsibilities include
coardinating capatal ralsing eMorts, initiating
climical trials for the compary’s lead drug
candidate (CYT-108), filing and maintaning
patent protection of intellectual property, and
identifying strategic buyers and cut-licensing
opportunities for the company, He holds a BS in
Biomedical Engneering from the Univensity of
Virginia (Chartottesville, VA) and an MS in
Biomadical Engnearing from Johns Hopkins
University (Baltimare, MD).

1n addvtion to his clinical practice and his role
with Cytonics, Dr. Scuderi is a dth-degree black
belt i Ju-su and the founder/principal
Instructor of Scudert Setf Detanse (Jupiter, FL),
Dr. Scudert’s love for this martial art is only
surpassed by his passion for helping the sick
and elderly reclaim their mobility and guality of

lide,

Lewis Hanna, PhD Phil LoGrasso, PhD

Chief Scientific Officer Director (Part Time)

Dr. Hanna has served as Chied Phil LoGrasso, Ph.D. joined the
Scientific Officer of Cytonics comparry's growing Board of
since February 2008, Dr. Directors in December of
Hanna has over 28 yoars' 2020. Dr. LoGrasso’s axportise
QXPOreNce In pharmaceutical In the biatechnology industry
research and Lop (T P asa
specalzing in the Program Director at the
development of recombinant National Institute of Health
protein theraples, He has (NIM), Research Fellow in drug
extonsive knowbedge of protein dwcovery and development at
folding, purdication, Maovck and Avera

formulation, large-scale Pharmaceuticals, and as a

production, quality, and the
regulatory requirements to
obtain FOA new deug approval.
Untd 2004, Dr, Hanna was the
Director of Process
Devedopment at Alson
Pharmaceutical, and prior to
that he was a Group Leader at
Bristol-Myers Squbb
Pharmaceutical Research
Institute, He also served a
Principal Research Sclentist at
R.W. Johnson Pharmaceutical
Resoarch Institute (Raritan,
NJ) for 7 years. Or. Hanna
received his BS degree from
Cairo Unwversity (Giza, Egypt),
received his PhD from City
University of New York (New
York City, NY), and completed
a postdoctoral fellowshp at
Cornall University (Ithaca, NY).

AN

sonior analyst at GQG Partners
(2 $568 global hedge fund),
Phil has spent almost theee
decades actively involved in
forming relationships with Big
Pharma, venture-backed
otech companies, academic
researchers at the NIH, and
biotech-focused hedge funds,

Tracy Goeken, MD
Director (Part Time)

Cytonics recently welcomed
Tracy Goeken, MD 10 the
company’s Board of Directons,
As a mambaer of the Board, Dr.
Gooken will help drive the
company’s directon and
manage clinical trnats, Or.
Goeken brings over 15 years of
expertise in the
biopharmaceutical industry
and currently s0rves as the
Chilof Modical Officer for Linical
Americas, a contract research
organization that provides the
full spectrum of drug
development services, Prior to
Linical, Dr. Goeken held
positions at The Methodst
Hospital Resoarch Institute in
Houston, Texas, Pharm-Clam
International, Nuron Biatech,
and Semahlution, During his
tenure as Vice President of
Clinical and Medical Aftairs at
Nuron Blatech Inc,, the
company secured $80mm in
financing for the
commercialization and
expansion of its vaccine
Merngitec

o



Gordon Ramseler
Director (Part Time)

M, Ramseier is the President,
co-founder and an equity
member of BCI LiteSclences
LLC. Ho has over forty years of
ongnation and operations
experience, building and
commercializing new
technologies. He was a
Founder of The Sage Group,
and has hadd senior lavel
@xpcutive and board of
directors positions with a
number of companies in the
lide sciences industry,
inchuding: OncoTherapeutics,

Phar

Inc. {later Dura
Pharmaceuticals), the
Healthcare Industries Practice
of Bocz, Allen & Hamilton, G.D,
Searle, and Plizer Laboratories,
Me, Ramseier received his
MBA, (with distinction) from
the Amos Tuck School of
Business Administration,
Dartmouth College and his B.S.
In Chamistry from Washington
& Loo University.
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Did you miss the last investment
opportunity?

Cylenics is delighted 1o anrnounce a unique coportunity - we will be opening cur
doors to new sharehcloers. For thase whoe missed out on our last crowdfunding
this iz your chance Lo join us as investors in culting-edge bictechnology
research and development, And for aur layal shareholders, now & your
opportunity 10 centinue %0 support Cytonics as we advance inlo Phase 1 dinical
als - our sngle biggest milestons to date!

Our story Is cna of innovation and determination. Founded by Dr. Gastano
Souderi, a prominent orthopedic surgean and researcher, Cytonics is on a
mission 10 aradicae catecanhnis through the davelopmant of 8 novel biclogic
therapy. We've made significant strides in this pursuit, including the
develcpment of cur ravelutonary frst-genaraton tharapy that has treated over
8,000 patients.

Now we're ready 1o introcuce "CYT-108," a blopharmaceutical that may be
he first and only di modifying for osteoarthritis If
approved by the FDA

After socyears of dedicatec HAD and a $5 million Investment, CYT-108 is
poised for its (rsi-in-hunan Phase 1 clinical trial in January 2024. Thisis a
photal moment n our journey, and we invie you 1o join us on our mission 1o nd
the werld of ostecarthritis.

To seize this opportunity, visit waw.starttengine com/olierng/cytonics and
resorve your shores today and receive an additional 5% bonus shares
‘when you Invest!

Warm regards,

Jony Bose

President & CEC
Cytonics Corp

joay bose @ otonice. oo

NO MONEY OR OTHER CONSIDERATION IS BEING SOLICITED, AND IF
SENT IN RESPONSE, WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED. NO OFFER TO BUY THE
SECURITIES CAN BE ACCEPTED AND NO PART OF THE PURCHASE
PRICE CAN BE RECEIVED UNTIL THE OFFERING STATEMENT IS FILED
AND ONLY THROUGH AN INTERMEDIARY'S PLATFORM. AN INDICATION
OF INTEREST INVOLVES NO OBUGATION OR COMMITMENT OF ANY
KIND. "RESERVING' SECURITIES IS SIMPLY AN INDICATION OF
INTEREST.
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Cytonics s delighted 10 annouUNCe & unique opportundy - we will be opening our
doores to new shareholders. For those who missed out on our kst crowdfunding,
this is your chanca to join us as Investors in cutting-edge blotechnology

r h and devel . And for our loyal sharehalders, now Is your
oppartunity to continue % support Cytonics as we advance into Phase 1 cinical
trials - our single biggest milesione to date!

Our story is one of innovation and determination. Founded by Dr. Gaetano
Scuden, a prominent orthopedc surgeon and ressarcher, Cytonks ison a
rission 1o eradicate ostecarthritis through the development of a novel biologic
therapy. We've made significant strides in this pursunt, including the
development of our revolutionary first-generation therapy that has treated over
8,000 patients.

Now we're ready to intreduce *CYT-108," a biopharmaceutical that may be
the first and only di difying for thritis if
approved by the FDA

After six years of dedicated R&D and a $5 million investment, CYT-108 is
poised for its fiest-in-humnan Phase 1 clinical trial in January 2024. This is a
pivotal mement in cur joumey, and we nvite you 10 join us on our migsion 1o nd
the workd of ostecarthritis,

To seize this opportunity, visit www.startengine.com/offering/cytonics and
reserve your shares today and receive an additional 5% bonus shares
when you Invest!

Warm regards,

Joey Bose
President & CEO
Cytonics Cerp

joey hase @ cytonics coer

NO MONEY OR OTHER CONSIDERATION IS BEING SOLICITED, AND IF
SENT IN RESPONSE, WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED. NO OFFER TO BUY THE
SECURITIES CAN BE ACCEPTED AND NO PAAT OF THE PURCHASE
PRICE CAN BE RECEIVED UNTIL THE OFFERING STATEMENT IS FILED
AND ONLY THROUGH AN INTERMEDIARY'S PLATFORM. AN INDICATION
OF INTEHREST INVOLVES NO OBLIGATION OR COMMITMENT OF ANY
KIND. "RESEAVING" SECURITIES IS SIMPLY AN INDICATION OF
INTEREST.
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12/6/23, 1:35 PM Join the Fight Against Osteoarthritis By Investing In A Breakthrough
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Let's Rid the World of Joint
Pain and Inflammation

We are gearing up for a first-in-human Phase 1 clinical trial of our novel
biopharmaceutical treatment for osteoarthritis (OA). Are you ready to join
us on our mission to bring relief to the 600M sufhrlnl from OA?

i ‘?‘?f(c%omcs.
On the verge of a breakthrough

Are you ready to be a part of a remarkable mission that will potentially restore
the quality of life of over 600M suffering people worldwide? Cytonics is. Since
2006, we have been committed to developing pioneering treatments for
osteoarthritis (OA), a debilitating joint disease that is characterized by cartilage
degeneration and joint pain and inflammation. And now, we are on the verge of
a breakthrough.

Riding on the success of our first-generation, FDA-approved
medical device therapy for OA, we are gearing up for a first-in-

https:/imailchi.mp/991953bfdaf8/investment-opportunity-in-novel-biologic-therapy-for-osteoarthritis- 17623924 113
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Cytonics is on a mission to make a real difference in huma well-being. Founded
by Dr. Gaetano Scuderi, an accomplished orthopedic surgeon and researcher,
the company has already developed an FDA-approved therapy that has
provided relief to over 8,000 patients suffering from OA.

We’re ready to introduce "CYT-108," a novel biopharmaceutical
designed to put an end to OA once and for all.

After six years of intense research and development and an investment of $5
million in R&D, CYT-108 is on the verge of its debut: a first-in-human Phase 1
clinical trial. This is our opportunity to change the lives of millions, and we invite
new and returning investors to join us on this life-changing mission.

We will be offering Preferred Stock of the company valued at
$2.30 per share on the StartEngine equity crowdfunding_platform.

Early investors and our existing shareholders will receive preferential terms:

« |f you reserve shares you will be eligible for an automatic 5% bonus
shares as a “Thank You" for helping our crowdfunding campaign gain
momentum.

» Early investors and existing shareholders may be eligible for up to 30%
bonus shares, free of charge, as an incentive for your commitment to our
mission!

» Larger investors may also qualify for one-on-one discussions with
management and complementary treatment with our FDA-approved
medical device therapy for osteoarthritis.

Together, we can bring relief to the millions of people suffering
from OA and give them their lives back.

For more details on this investment opportunity, please visit:

https://imailchi.mp/991953bfdaf8/investment-opportunity-in-novel-biologic-therapy-for-osteoarthritis- 17623924 213
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THE PURCHASE PRICE CAN BE RECEIVED UNTIL THE OFFERING STATEMENT IS FILED AND
ONLY THROUGH AN INTERMEDIARY'S PLATFORM. AN INDICATION OF INTEREST INVOLVES NO
OBLIGATION OR COMMITMENT OF ANY KIND. "RESERVING" SECURITIES IS SIMPLY AN
INDICATION OF INTEREST.

This letter may contain forward-looking statements and information relating to, among other things, the
company, its business plan and strategy, and its industry. These statements reflect management’s current
views with respect to future events based information currently available and are subject to risks and
uncertainties that could cause the company’s actual results to differ materially. Investors are cautioned not
to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements as they contain hypothetical illustrations of

cal

mathematical principles, are meant for illustrative purposes, and they do not represent guarantees of

future performance, or achievements, all of which cannot be made. Moreover, no

results, levels of activit

person nor any other person or entity assumes responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of
forward-looking statements, and is under no duty to update any such statements to conform them to

actual results

Want to change how you receive these emails?

You can update your preferences or unsubscribe from this list.

Copyright © 2023 Cytonics Corporation, All rights reserved

https:/imailchi.mp/991953bfdaf8/investment-opportunity-in-novel-biologic-therapy-for-osteoarthritis- 17623924
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Cytonics will be accepting new shareholders soon.

Past Issues Translate ¥

YCYTONICS.
Accepting

New

eholders
sSoon.

For those that missed out on our last crowdfund, your
opportunity to become an investor in cutting-edge v

biotechnology research and development is coming soon.
=

Did you miss the last investment
opportunity?

Cytonics is delighted to announce a unique opportunity - we will be opening our
doors to new shareholders. For those who missed out on our last crowdfunding,
this is your chance to join us as investors in cutting-edge biotechnology
research and development. And for our loyal shareholders, now is your
opportunity to continue to support Cytonics as we advance into Phase 1 clinical
trials - our single biggest milestone to date!

Our story is one of innovation and determination. Founded by Dr. Gaetano
Scuderi, a prominent orthopedic surgeon and researcher, Cytonics is on a
mission to eradicate osteoarthritis through the development of a novel biologic
therapy. We've made significant strides in this pursuit, including the
development of our revolutionary first-generation therapy that has treated over
8,000 patients.

https:/imailchi.mp/e654e566f2f3/investment-opportunity-in-novel-biologic-therapy-for-osteoarthritis- 17623404
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approved by the FDA

After six years of dedicated R&D and a $5 million investment, CYT-108 is
poised for its first-in-human Phase 1 clinical trial in January 2024. This is a
pivotal moment in our journey, and we invite you to join us on our mission to rid
the world of osteoarthritis.

To seize this opportunity, visit www.startengine.com/offering/cytonics and
reserve your shares today and receive an additional 5% bonus shares
when you invest!

Warm regards,

Joey Bose

President & CEO
Cytonics Corp
joey.bose@cytonics.com

NO MONEY OR OTHER CONSIDERATION IS BEING SOLICITED, AND IF
SENT IN RESPONSE, WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED. NO OFFER TO BUY THE
SECURITIES CAN BE ACCEPTED AND NO PART OF THE PURCHASE
PRICE CAN BE RECEIVED UNTIL THE OFFERING STATEMENT IS FILED
AND ONLY THROUGH AN INTERMEDIARY'S PLATFORM. AN INDICATION
OF INTEREST INVOLVES NO OBLIGATION OR COMMITMENT OF ANY
KIND. "RESERVING" SECURITIES IS SIMPLY AN INDICATION OF
INTEREST.

https:/imailchi. mp/e654e566f2f3/investment-opportunity-in-novel-biologic-therapy-for-osteoarthritis- 17623404 2/3
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DEFSON Nor any otner person or entny assumes responsibimy 1or the accuracy and completeness or
forward-looking statements, and is under no duty to update any such statements to conform them to
actual results.

Want to change how you receive these emails?
You can update your preferences or unsubscribe from this list.

Copyright © 2023 Cytonics Corporation, All rights reserved

https:/imailchi.mp/e654e566f2f3/investment-opportunity-in-novel-biologic-therapy-for-osteoarthritis- 17623404
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12/6/23, 1:36 PM Cytonics is now raising capital on StartEngine! Don't miss this chance to invest ahead of our pivotal Phase 1 human clinical trial
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Reserve your shares today!

Sign Up to be
the First to

Invest

Join Johnson and Johnson and invest in a biotechnology
startup that is redefining regenerative medicine!

Exclusive Opportunity to Reserve Your

Imvestment In Cytonics
(and receive bonus shares)

We are pleased to announce that Cytonics will be
raising capital on StartEngine!

Since our last equity crowdfund, Cytonics has accomplished every milestone
promised to our investors:

https:/imailchi.mp/15b0f3ccd 30d/investment-opportunity-in-novel-biologic-therapy-for-osteoarthritis- 17624056
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Cytonics is now raising capital on StartEngine! Don't miss this chance to invest ahead of our pivotal Phase 1 human clinical trial
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« Finalized the Phase 1 clinical trial protocol and engaged the Contract
Research Organization which will conduct the study.

» Scheduled the first-in-human Phase 1 clinical trial of CYT-108 for late
January 2024 and engaged the clinical trial sites where patients will be
treated.

Now, you have the opportunity to invest right before we accomplish our most
significant milestone to date: the first-in-human Phase 1 clinical trial of CYT-108
as a treatment for osteoarthritis of the knee.

We're not just offering shares; we're inviting you to directly
contribute to Biotechnology Research & Development

As a forward-thinking biotech company, we are redefining the landscape of
regenerative medicine. With your investment, you'll play a crucial role in our
mission to eradicate osteoarthritis and make a significant impact on global
healthcare.

Our dedication to innovation and research is unquestionable. Led by renowned
orthopedic surgeon and researcher, Dr. Gaetano Scuderi, Cytonics has
developed groundbreaking therapies that have already provided relief to over
8,000 patients. Now, with our cutting-edge biopharmaceutical, "CYT-108,"
we're graduating from a preclinical to clinical-stage biotech company, and we
want you to be part of this exciting endeavor.

Sign up now to be among the first to invest and join the ranks of esteemed
investors like Johnson & Johnson in supporting a pioneering biotechnology
startup that is on the brink of revolutionizing regenerative medicine.

To secure your shares and become an integral part of our vision, visit
www.startengine.com/offering/cytonics and receive up to 35% bonus shares
when you invest. Don't miss this chance to invest in a future where
regenerative medicine knows no bounds.

Together, we can bring relief to the millions of people suffering
from OA and give them their lives back.

For more details on this investment opportunity, please click the button

https:/imailchi.mp/15b0f3ccd 30d/investment-opportunity-in-novel-biologic-therapy-for-osteoarthritis- 17624056
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Reserve Shares

NO MONEY OR OTHER CONSIDERATION IS BEING SOLICITED, AND IF SENT IN RESPONSE, WILL
NOT BE ACCEPTED. NO OFFER TO BUY THE SECURITIES CAN BE ACCEPTED AND NO PART OF
THE PURCHASE PRICE CAN BE RECEIVED UNTIL THE OFFERING STATEMENT IS FILED AND
ONLY THROUGH AN INTERMEDIARY'S PLATFORM. AN INDICATION OF INTEREST INVOLVES NO
OBLIGATION OR COMMITMENT OF ANY KIND. "RESERVING" SECURITIES IS SIMPLY AN
INDICATION OF INTEREST.

This letter may contain forward-looking statements and information relating to, among other things, the

company, its business plan and strategy, and

s industry. These statements reflect management's

o Wi . atin ~nrrently available and ar
vs with resp ition currently available and a

~arfaintioc that eotild ralico the romnanv’e arfiral rociilte to Adiffo satariallv Inve Aro o innod no
uncertainties that could cause the company’s actual results to differ materially. Inv re cautioned not

to place undue reliance on these forward king statements as they contain hypothetical illustrati of
mathemnatical principles, are meant for illustrative purposes, and they do not represent guarantees of
future results, levels of activity, performance, or achievements, all of which cannot be made. Moreover, no
person nor any other person or entity assumes respor / for the accuracy and completeness of
forward-looking statements, and is under no duty to update any such statements to conform them to

actual resulls

Want to change how you receive these emails?

You can update your preferences or unsubscribe from this list.
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Your continued support and reinvestment are not just vital for our progress but
also for the fruition of your initial faith in us. By funding our upcoming Phase 1
clinical trial, you're not only propelling us towards a pivotal milestone but alsc
ensuring that your initial investment yields its maximum return.

Every step we've taken, every achievement we've celebrated, has been
possible because of your trust and investment. Now, as we stand on the brink
of this significant leap in our journey, your reinvestment will be the key in
turning our shared vision into a reality.

We've judiciously utilized every resource you've entrusted us with, achieving
each promised milestone, and now, we're ready to make this critical advance
into clinical tral. Let's continue this journey together, ensuring that your
investment in Cytonics not only supports a groundbreaking medical
advancement but also brings a well-deserved return on your faith in us.

Investing in Cytonics is more than a financial decision, it's a commitment to
enhancing the well-being of you, your loved ones, and pecple worldwide. Your
contribution plays a pivotal role in our groundbreaking efforts to improve
global health.

Request share deck and video

Appreciatively,

ooy Pse

Joey Bose
President & CEO

joey bosa@@cylonics .com
443-827-8135

NO MONEY OR OTHER CONSIDERATION IS BEING SOLICITED, AND IF SENT IN RESPONSE,
WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED. NO OFFER TO BUY THE SECURITIES CAN BE ACCEPTED AND NO
PART OF THE PURCHASE PRICE CAN BE RECEIVED UNTIL THE OFFERING STATEMENT IS
FILED AND ONLY THROUGH AN INTERMEDIARY'S PLATFORM. AN INDICATION OF INTEREST
INVOLVES NO OBLIGATION OR COMMITMENT OF ANY KIND. "RESERVING" SECURITIES IS
SIMPLY AN INDICATION OF INTEREST.



TTW 4: [%4Sign Up To Be The First To Invest - December 5

Subject: Exclusive Opportunity to Reserve Your Shares in Cytonics!
Dear X,
We are pleased to announce that Cytonics will be raising capital on StartEngine!

Since our last equity crowdfund, Cytonics has accomplished every milestone promised to our
investors:
e We have completed drug manufacturing of CYT-108, our novel biopharmaceutical
treatment for osteoarthritis (OA).
¢ We have finalized the Phase 1 clinical trial protocol and engaged the Contract Research
Organization which will conduct the study.
e We have scheduled the first-in-human Phase 1 clinical trial of CYT-108 and engaged the
clinical trial sites where patients will be treated.

Now is your opportunity to invest right before we accomplish our most significant milestone to
date: the first-in-human Phase 1 clinical trial of CYT-108 as a treatment for osteoarthritis of the
knee. We're not just offering shares; we're inviting you to be part of a transformative journey. As
a forward-thinking biotech company, we are redefining the landscape of regenerative medicine.
With your investment, you'll play a crucial role in our mission to eradicate osteoarthritis and
make a significant impact on global healthcare.

Our dedication to innovation and research is unquestionable. Led by renowned orthopedic
surgeon and researcher, Dr. Gaetano Scuderi, Cytonics has developed groundbreaking
therapies that have already provided relief to over 8,000 patients. Now, with our cutting-edge
biopharmaceutical, "CYT-108," we're entering a new phase of research, and we want you to be
part of this exciting endeavor.

Sign up now to be among the first to invest and join the ranks of esteemed investors like
Johnson & Johnson in supporting a pioneering biotechnology startup that is on the brink of
revolutionizing regenerative medicine.

To secure your shares and become an integral part of our vision, visit
www.startengine.com/offering/cytonics and receive an additional 5% bonus shares when you
invest.. Don't miss this chance to invest in a future where regenerative medicine knows no
bounds. Join us in shaping a healthier world.

Warm regards,



NO MONEY OR OTHER CONSIDERATION IS BEING SOLICITED, AND IF SENT IN RESPONSE, WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED. NO OFFER TO BUY THE SECURITIES CAN BE ACCEPTED AND NO PART OF THE PURCHASE

PRICE CAN BE RECEIVED UNTIL THE OFFERING STATEMENT IS FILED AND ONLY THROUGH AN
INTERMEDIARY’S PLATFORM. AN INDICATION OF INTEREST INVOLVES NO OBLIGATION OR COMMITMENT
OF ANY KIND. "RESERVING" SECURITIES IS SIMPLY AN INDICATION OF INTEREST.



TTW 5: [Y4Cytonics Crowdfunding FAQ - December 10

Subject: Join the Osteoarthritis Revolution with Cytonics' Equity Crowdfunding Campaign!

Dear X,

Get ready to be a part of something truly extraordinary. Cytonics is thrilled to announce the
launch of our equity crowdfunding campaign on StartEngine.
What is Equity Crowdfunding?

Equity Crowdfunding is revolutionizing the investment landscape. Think of it as
Kickstarter for stock! Under Regulation CF, startups like Cytonics can offer their stock to
the public without going through a public stock exchange. This means you, ordinary
investors, have the unique opportunity to become shareholders in private companies
during their early stages, a privilege previously reserved for Venture Capital. Once we
achieve our drug development milestones, our shareholders may reap the rewards. The
best part? You don't need to be an accredited investor to participate. It's the
democratization of investing! Learn more at StartEngine.com.

What are the investment terms?

Our goal is to make this opportunity accessible to as many people as possible. We're
looking to build a diverse community of shareholders to champion our mission. You can
become a shareholder for as little as $500, which will secure you 217 shares of preferred
stock (valued at $2.30 per share). Preferred stock is especially valuable because it holds
a "senior" position, ensuring repayment before common shareholders.

If you reserve shares you may be eligible for up to 20% bonus shares, free of charge, as
an incentive for your commitment to our mission! Larger investors may also qualify for
one-on-one discussions with management and complementary treatment with our
FDA-approved medical device therapy for osteoarthritis (in addition to the bonus
shares!). And as a “Thank You" for your continued support, our current shareholders will
receive an additional 10% bonus shares.

What will we use your investment for?

We allocate over 70% of our funding directly to research and development, making us
agile and efficient. Our unwavering focus is on CYT-108, a pioneering biopharmaceutical
treatment for osteoarthritis. Your investment will play a pivotal role in funding our
first-in-human Phase 1 clinical trial — a historic milestone for Cytonics.

But that's not all; we have plans to explore other disease indications such as Chronic
Obstructive Pulmonary Disease and Acute Respiratory Distress Syndrome, diversifying
our pipeline and enhancing our company's value.

When are you launching the Equity Crowdfund campaign?

Our equity crowdfunding campaign is set to launch very soon. You'll receive an official
notification of the launch date from StartEngine! Be ready to join us on this remarkable

journey. Reserve your shares today.



An investment in Cytonics is not just an opportunity to participate in state-of-the-art
biotechnology research and development, it's an investment in the future health of yourself, your
friends, and your family.. We can't wait to have you on board.

Best regards,

NO MONEY OR OTHER CONSIDERATION IS BEING SOLICITED, AND IF SENT IN RESPONSE, WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED. NO OFFER TO BUY THE SECURITIES CAN BE ACCEPTED AND NO PART OF THE PURCHASE
PRICE CAN BE RECEIVED UNTIL THE OFFERING STATEMENT IS FILED AND ONLY THROUGH AN
INTERMEDIARY’S PLATFORM. AN INDICATION OF INTEREST INVOLVES NO OBLIGATION OR COMMITMENT
OF ANY KIND. "RESERVING" SECURITIES IS SIMPLY AN INDICATION OF INTEREST.



TTW 5.5: [%410% Reservation Bonus (12/9)

Subject: Reserve your Cytonics investment and receive 10% bonus shares

Preview text: Place your reservation before our campaign launches in the next few
days.

You are a valued member of our community, and we are pleased to offer you an extra
10% bonus shares for reservations made before our Equity Crowdfunding campaign
goes live in the next few days!

This Reservation Bonus stacks on top of the other bonuses we are offering for
investments made early on in the campaign. This is to incentivize early investment
which will help our campaign gain momentum and visibility within the StartEngine
community.

Combo/Avid Investor Perks:
e Early Bronze: Invest $2,000+ in the first two weeks for 10% bonus shares.
e Early Silver: Invest $5,000+ in the first two weeks for 15% bonus shares.
e Early Gold: Invest $10,000+ in the first two weeks for 20% bonus shares.

By making your reservation before the campaign goes live and completing your
investment within the next 2 weeks, you may be eligible for up to 30% bonus shares.

This is equivalent to a 220% reduction in share price, which is less expensive than the

valuation in our previous campaign!

Appreciatively,

 Gacy EBase

Joey Bose
President & CEO
joey.bose@cytonics.com

443-827-8135



NO MONEY OR OTHER CONSIDERATION IS BEING SOLICITED, AND IF SENT IN RESPONSE, WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED. NO OFFER TO BUY THE SECURITIES CAN BE ACCEPTED AND NO PART OF THE PURCHASE
PRICE CAN BE RECEIVED UNTIL THE OFFERING STATEMENT IS FILED AND ONLY THROUGH AN
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OF ANY KIND. "RESERVING" SECURITIES IS SIMPLY AN INDICATION OF INTEREST



TTW 6: ["4Why invest in Cytonics? - December 7

Dear X,

Why should you invest in Cytonics? Since 2006, we've been on a relentless mission to eradicate
osteoarthritis (OA), a debilitating condition affecting over 600 million people worldwide and
costing the global economy a staggering $240 billion in ineffective treatments. Our track record
speaks volumes:

Our Pioneering Therapy: APIC System
e Our journey began with the development of the Autologous Protease Inhibitor
Concentrate ("APIC") system,. which purifies a therapeutic protein, known as "A2M,"
directly from the bloodstream.
e APIC is FDA-approved and has been used to treat over 8,000 patients to date.
A2M: The Cartilage Protector
e A2M is a naturally occurring blood protein that plays a role in blood clotting. It does this
through a mechanism called “protease inhibition.”
e A2M serves as a shield against the destructive protease enzymes responsible for
cartilage degradation in arthritic joints.
e The success of our APIC treatment is tangible proof that A2M works.
Introducing CYT-108: A Game-Changer
e We are currently developing a genetically modified A2M variant, "CYT-108."
e We have demonstrated that CYT-108 is 3x more potent than the naturally occurring A2M
molecule, and reduces cartilage degradation by up to 60% within 3 months of treatment
(2 doses).
e |f approved by the FDA, CYT-108 will be a groundbreaking pharmaceutical, addressing
the very root cause of osteoarthritis by targeting those troublesome enzymes.
De-Risked Development
e The development of CYT-108 isde-risked thanks to the resounding clinical and
commercial success of APIC.
e APIC is a testament to A2M’s efficacy, and we are poised for a transformative leap
forward with the development of CYT-108
The Precipice of Progress
e We stand on the brink of the most pivotal milestone in Cytonics' history: the
first-in-human Phase 1 clinical study of CYT-108 as a treatment for osteoarthritis of the
knee. This is the moment that could change the future of osteoarthritis treatment.
Your Opportunity to Make a Difference
e Now is your chance to invest in Cytonics, right before we reach this critical milestone.
Your investment will propel CYT-108 through the rigorous FDA clinical trial process,
paving the way for a revolution in osteoarthritis management.

Are you ready to be part of this transformative journey? Reserve shares today.You will then
receive step-by-step instructions on how to invest when our Equity Crowdfunding campaign
goes live.



We will be offering Preferred Stock of the company valued at $2.30 per share. Early investors
will receive preferential terms:

e |f you reserve shares you may be eligible for up to 20% bonus shares, free of charge, as
an incentive for your commitment to our mission!

e Larger investors may also qualify for one-on-one discussions with management and
complementary treatment with our FDA-approved medical device therapy for
osteoarthritis.

e And as a “Thank You" for your continued support, our current shareholders will receive
an additional 10% bonus shares.

Together, we can rid the world of osteoarthritis and restore the health of over 600M people
debilitated by this disease.

Best regards,

NO MONEY OR OTHER CONSIDERATION IS BEING SOLICITED, AND IF SENT IN RESPONSE, WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED. NO OFFER TO BUY THE SECURITIES CAN BE ACCEPTED AND NO PART OF THE PURCHASE
PRICE CAN BE RECEIVED UNTIL THE OFFERING STATEMENT IS FILED AND ONLY THROUGH AN
INTERMEDIARY’S PLATFORM. AN INDICATION OF INTEREST INVOLVES NO OBLIGATION OR COMMITMENT
OF ANY KIND. "RESERVING" SECURITIES IS SIMPLY AN INDICATION OF INTEREST.

Y4Extra email: Join us in our mission to rid the world of osteoarthritis
Dear X,

Cytonics is thrilled to extend a special invitation to you - the opportunity to join our mission to
eradicate osteoarthritis. We're not just offering an investment opportunity; we're inviting you to
invest in the future health of yourself, friends, and family.. Our mission is crystal clear: we are
developing the first therapy that directly targets the root cause of cartilage degeneration in
arthritic joints..

Founded in 2006 by Dr. Gaetano Scuderi, a pioneering orthopedic surgeon and researcher,
Cytonics is committed to developing the cure for osteoarthritis. Our journey has led us to
significant breakthroughs, including a transformative therapy that has positively impacted the
lives of over 8,000 patients. Now, we're on the brink of FDA human clinical trials for "CYT-108,"
a groundbreaking advancement designed to eliminate OA once and for all.

After six years of unwavering dedication and a $5 million investment, CYT-108 is primed for its
first-in-human Phase 1 clinical trial in January 2024. This pivotal moment is the culmination of



our collective effort to develop a therapy that addresses the root cause of cartilage
degeneration. Now, we are inviting new and current shareholders to participate in our
groundbreaking research and accelerate the development of CYT-108 through FDA clinical
trials.

We will be offering Preferred Stock of the company valued at $2.30 per share. Early investors
will receive preferential terms:

e If you reserve shares you may be eligible for up to 20% bonus shares, as an incentive
for your commitment to our mission!

e Larger investors may also qualify for one-on-one discussions with management and
complementary treatment with our FDA-approved medical device therapy for
osteoarthritis.

e And as a “Thank You" for your continued support, our current shareholders will receive
an additional 10% bonus shares.

To join us on our mission, please visit www.startengine.com/offering/cytonics to research your
shares today.
Warm regards,

NO MONEY OR OTHER CONSIDERATION IS BEING SOLICITED, AND IF SENT IN RESPONSE, WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED. NO OFFER TO BUY THE SECURITIES CAN BE ACCEPTED AND NO PART OF THE PURCHASE
PRICE CAN BE RECEIVED UNTIL THE OFFERING STATEMENT IS FILED AND ONLY THROUGH AN
INTERMEDIARY’S PLATFORM. AN INDICATION OF INTEREST INVOLVES NO OBLIGATION OR COMMITMENT
OF ANY KIND. "RESERVING" SECURITIES IS SIMPLY AN INDICATION OF INTEREST.



